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You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do 1t will help Companies House If there Is a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
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REPORT OF THE PRC AUDITOR

M Huazhen

All Shareholders of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of China Petroteumn & Chemtcal Corparation (the “Company”), which comprise the consohidated
balance sheet and balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the consohdated income statement and income statement the consohdated statement of
changes in equity and statement of changes m equity, the consohdated cash flow statement and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements

1 MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company s management ts responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China This responsibility includes (1) desigaing, implementing and maintaning
internal control relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, (2) selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (3) making accounting estimates that are reascnable in the circumstances

2 AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with Chuna Standards
on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error In making those risk assassments, the auditor considers internal cantrol relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit eidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opimon

3 OPINION

In our opinien, the financial statements comply with the requirements of China Acceunting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of Chuna and present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated results of operations and results of operations and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows
of the Company for the year then ended

KPMG Huazhen Certihed Public Accountants
Regstered in the People's Republic of China

Hu Jianfel
Zhang Yansheng

Betjing, The People's Republic of China 25 March 2011

- A COMPANIES HOUSE
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(A) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER CHINA ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

a5 ot 31 December 2010

2010 2008

RMB millions RMB milhans

Assels
Current assets

Cash at bank and on hand 5 15,140 10,018
Bills recevabla 6 15,950 2110
Accounts receivable 7 43,093 26,592
Other recevables B 9,880 4,505
Prepayments 9 5,247 3,614
Inventories 10 156,546 141,727
Other current assets 594 856
Total current assets ) . . . . = 249,450 189,422
Non-current assets
Long term equity investments 11 45 037 33503
Fixed assets 12 540 700 484 815
Construction in progress 13 89,59% 120 375
Intangible assets 14 27,440 22 862
Goodwill 15 8 288 14,163
Long term deferred expenses 16 7,560 6,281
Defarred tax assets 17 15,578 13,683
{ Other non current assets 1727 1792
Total non-current assets A A . A L . . 735,939 697,474
| Total assets 985,389 BBE6,896
! Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
! Current liabilities
' Short term loans 19 29,298 34,900
Bills payable 20 3.818 23,111
; i Accounts payable 21 132,528 96,762
. Advances fram customers 22 57,324 37,270
: Employee benefits payable 23 7.444 4,526
! Taxes payable 24 33,814 16,777
| Other payables 25 54,871 50,202
J Short term debentures payable 28 1,000 31 000
Non current habilities due within one year 26 5530 9 316
- Total current liabilitias 3 B 325,627 303,864
& Non-current habihhies
= Long term loans 27 58,895 58,962
< Debentures payable 28 115180 93,763
E Prowisions 29 15573 11,860
g Deferred tax liabilities 17 15,017 8707
= Other non current habilities 2415 2192
g Total non-current liabitities _ ~ N B A . . . ol 207,080 } 176484
= Total Ilabllmes‘ _ . i i . 532,707 489,348
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 30 86 702 86,702
Capital reserve 31 29.414 38 202
Specific reserve 1325 -
Surplus reserves 32 141,711 115,031
Retained profits 163,132 140,596
Foreign currency translation differences (1,157) (70)
Total equity attributable to shargholders of the Company 421,127 380,461
Minority interests 31,558 26,087
Total shareholders’ equity o A . L. . L o 452_,_682 . 406154@
Total Liabllities and shareholders' equity 985.389 886,896

These financial staterments have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
Su Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua

Chatrman Vice Chairman, President Chiaf Financial Officer
{Authorised representative)

The notes on pages 82 to 138 form part of these financial statements

72

Annual Repert 2010 CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPOMATION




BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
RMB millions EMB mullions

Assets
Current assets

Cash at bank and on hand 5 11,882 4,724
Bills recewvable 5 11,093 123
Accounts recewable 7 16,660 10,990
Other recevables 8 27,433 19,250
Prepayments 9 6,394 3,032
Inventories 10 103,170 88,993
Other current assets 507 110
Totalf-urrem assets . oL i N L o }72.139__ L 1_2_7.322
Non-current assets
Long term equity investments 11 11] 354 88,920
Fixed assets 12 436 870 380,979
Construction in progress 13 76 830 112 217
Intangible assets 14 20080 16 013
Long term deferred expenses 16 6 058 5,300
Deferred tax assets 17 11,832 8,596
QOther non current assets 173 212
Total non-current assets ~ A o . o 663,197 612,237
Total assets 840,336 739.459
Liahilities and shareholders’ equity !
Current liabilities \
Short term loans 19 7,229 5,728 !
Bills payable 20 2,670 14,084 !
Accounts payable 21 87,244 63,067 1
Advances from customers 22 51,190 32,966 !
Employee benefits payable 23 7.037 4,093
Taxes payable 24 24,598 12,817
Other payables 25 73,825 75,760
Short term debentures payable 28 — 30,000 !
Nan current habilities due within one year 26 4109 4 865
Total current hiabtlities ) ) N . . 257,902 . 243,380
Non-current liabilities i~
Long term toans 27 58,377 51,549 g
Debentures payable 28 115,180 93,763 -
Provisions 29 14 362 10,883 5
Deferred tax habilities 17 7 951 4,544 5
Other non current habihties 1,045 959 a2
Total non-current habilities o } ] ) ) 197,015 ) 1_61.698 ]
Total lisbilittes _ ) N . . - 454,917 405,078 H
Shareholders’ equity =
Share capital 30 86 702 86,702
Capital reserve 31 37 922 38,234
Specific resarve 1,025 —
Surplus reservas 32 141,711 115031
Retained profits 118 059 94,414
Total shareholders’ equity _ L . o __ __ _ 385419 = 334,381
Total liabihities and shareholders’ equity 840,336 739,459

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
Su Shulln Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua

Chairman Vice Chairman, President Chief Financial Officer
(Authonised representative)

The notes on pages 82 to 138 farm part of these financial statements
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CCNSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 Becember 2010

S
RMB millions RMB milligns
Operating income 33 1,913,182 1,345,052
Less Operating costs 33 1,537,131 1,029,443
Sales taxes and surcharges 34 157,189 132884
Selling and distnibution expenses 31,981 27 644
General and admunistrative expenses 57,774 46,821
Financial expenses 35 6,847 7,248
Exploration expenses. including dry holes 36 10,955 10 545
impairment losses 37 15,445 7.453
Loss from changes in fair value 38 179 365
Add _Investment income 39 5671 3589
Operating profit 101,352 86,238
Add Nen operating income 40 2,108 1,275
Less Non operating expenses 41 1,282 1,401
Profit before taxation 102,178 86,112
Less Income tax expense 42 25,335 19,581
Net profit 76,843 66,521
Including Net profit of acquiree before the consolidation 3,043 2,583
Attributable to
Egquity shareholders of the Cempany 70,713 62,677
Mnornity interests 6,130 3,844
' Basic earnings per share 54 0816 0723
‘ ! Diluted earnings per share 54 0.808 0.718
Net profit_ ) . . 76,843 . 66,521
QOther comprehensive income 43
! Cash flow hedges (221) 54
Available for sale financial assets ()] (175)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates (533) 806
Foreign currency translation difference {1,360) (4)
T_t_)tal other com_grehensive Income . . __ . _ e (2,123 [:1:5)
Total comprehensive income 74,720 67,202
Attnibutable to
Equity sharehglders of the Company 68,706 63,397
Minarity interests 6,014 3,808
Thesa financial staterments have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
Su Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua
Chairman Vice Charrman President Chief Financial Officer

(Authonsed representative)

Finantial Statements (PRCY

The notes on pages 82 to 138 form part of these financial statements
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INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
RMB millians
Operating mcome 33 1,188,495 876,303
Less Operating costs 33 900,404 638,168
Sales taxes and surcharges 34 124,586 105,741
Selling and distribution expenses 26,291 23327
General and administrative expenses 48.336 38 527
Financial expenses 35 6,096 5,317
Exploration expenses, including dry holes 36 10,955 10,545
Impairment losses 37 14,410 6,693
Loss from changes in fair value 38 222 281
Add _Investment income 39 23073 12 456
Operating profit 80,268 £0,159
Add Non operating income 40 1,803 1,100
Less MNon operating expenses 41 1016 1,208
Profit before taxation 81,055 60,051
Less Income tax expense 42 14,257 10,526
Net profit o L. e ... .. _68798 N 49,525
Other comprehensive income 43
Available for sale financial assets [©)] 24
Share of other comprehensive income of associates (633) 806
Total other comprehensive iIncome } A ) . . . (552) o . 830
Total comprehensive income 66,256 50,355

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
Su Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua

Chatrman Vice Chairman, President Chief Financial Officer
{Authorised representativa)

The notes on pages 82 ta 138 form part of these finanoal statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

tor the year endesd 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

RMB millions

2009
RMB millions

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services 2,215,212 1,550,786
Rentals received 392 388
Other cash receved relating to operating activities 8279 7,481
Sub-total of cash inflows_ = _ . R A o ) 2,223,883 1,558,655
Cash paid for goods and services {1.758,556) {1,155,786)
Cash paid for operating leases (12,414) (8,189)
Cash paid to and for ermployees (30,754) (29,182)
Value added tax pad (63,125) (41,166)
Income tax paid (14,158) (6,045)
Taxes paid other than value added tax and sncome tax (154,716) (133,859)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities (18 898) (18 419)
Sub-total of cash outflows =~~~ _ ol o f2,052,621) {1,392,646)
Net cash flow from operating activities A ~ B . 45(a) 171,262 166,009
Cash flows from investing activties
Cash received from disposal of investments 1,687 504
Dividends recetved 1,335 1,133
Net cash recewved from disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets 16,145 692
Cash received on maturity of time deposits with financial institutions 3,626 1,820
| Cash received from derivative financial instruments 4,646 3,253
| Other cash received relating to mvesting activities 660 277
| Sub-total of cash inflows B _ . . L. . 28,099 7,679
: Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets (114,711) (116 789)
: Cash paid for acquisition of nvestments (11 31Q) (3240
Cash paid for acquisition of time deposits with financial institutions (3.522) {2.304)
Cash paid for derivative financial instruments (5,273) (3,197)
! Sub-total of cash outflows o o e L . _(134,816) = (125,530)
Net cash flow from investing activities ) (106,717) (1;7.851)
! Cash flows from financing activities
, Cash receivad from 1ssuance of shares 2 —
Cash received from borrowings 663,491 781,212
Cash received from 1ssuance of corporate bonds 21,000 651,000
5 Cash received from contribution from minonty shareholders of subsicharies 408 714
T Sub-total of cash inflows _ _ o .. . o ) _ 684,901 _ 842,926
£ Cash repayments of borrowings (672,804) {850 683)
g Cash repayments of corporate bonds £31,000) (15,000)
H Cash paid for acguisition of minority interests from subsidiaries, net — {213)
@ Cash paid for dividends profits distribution or interest {23,130y (21,321)
2 Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidianes {1,051) (B38)
'E Distributions to Sinopec Group Company (13,210% {1,262)
= Sub-total of cashoutflows . _{781195) _.(889,337)
Net cash flow from financing activities . - . (56,294) (46,411)
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate . L (25) L)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45(b) 8,226 1,742

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011

Su Shulin
Charrman
(Authonised representative)

Wang Thanpu
Vice Chairman, President

Wang Xinhua
Chief Financial Officer

The notes on pages B2 to 138 farm part of these financial statements
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

2010
RMB millions

20039
RMB ~illions

Cash receved trom sale of goods and rendering of services 1,383,041 1,019,516
Rentals recewved 163 192
Qther cash received refating to operating activities 12 635 19 646
Sub-total of cashinflows o 1,395,839 1,039,354
Cash pald d for ¢ goods and services (1 034 940) (730, 312)
Cash paid for operating leases (9.948) {6,351)
Cash paid to and for employees (24,742) {24,040)
Value added tax paid (48,521) (32.671)
Income tax paid (8.420) (111)
Taxes paid other than value added tax and income tax (123,684} (109,150)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities £19,399) (18,617)
Sub-total of cash outflows } _ . (1.269_,_654) (921,252)
Net cash flow frnm operating activities B B ) o 45(a) . 126,185 118,102
Cash flows from s investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments 146 16
Dividends received 19,815 10,976
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets and mtangible assets 16,137 527
Cash received an maturnity of time deposits with financial institutions 73 57
Other cash recawed relating ta investing activihies 290 107
Sub-total of cash inflows e - e _ 36481 11,683
Cash paid for acquisition of “tixed assets and mtanglme 2ssets {104,495) {99,362)
Cash paid for acquisition of investments (26,539) (7.394)
Cash paid for acquisition of time deposits with financiat institutions (50) (50)
Sub-}_ota_l of cagh out_flow_s _ . e (131l084) ~ _ (ICI_G,BDQ)
Net cash flaw from Inyestlng activities . _ . . (94,623) B (95,123)
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash recemved frorm issuance of shares 2 —
Cash recewved from borrowings 292 370 581,704
Cash recerved from issuance of corporate bonds 20,000 60,000
Sub-total of cash Igﬂo!s o oo o = . . _ 312,_3_72 N 641,704
Cash repayments of borrowings (2B84,918) (626,552)
Cash repayments of corporata bonds {30,000} (15,000}
Cash paid fer acquisition of minority interests from substdiaries, net — {213)
Cash paid for dividends, profits distnbution or interest (21,802) (19,183)
Distributions to Sinopec Group Company (33 {1,262}
Sub-total of cash outflows B o o o _{336,753) (662, 210)
Net cash flow I'rom linancmg achivities . - (24,381) (20.506)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45(h) 7,181 2,473

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011

Su Shulin
Chairman
(Authonsed representative)

Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua

Vice Chairman, President

The notes on pages 82 to 138 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Capal
a5erye
FEis mllicns

40848 90078

Retaned

ar

i3

m lhars

Farz:gn
cureney
translatio-
4 rerenze

3
FME mill gns rMZ m laans

25 Iy
RMEB Vil ans

Balance at 31 December 2008 111 672 - 329 300 20 866 350,166
Adjustment for the combination of
entities under comman control {Note 1) — — — 1962 (68) 1,894 1552 3,446
Batance at 1 fznuary 2009 86,702 40,848 90,078 113,634 (68) 331,194 22,418 353,612
Change fer the year
1 Netprofit - - . - 62,677 - _  Bueml? 1,844 66,521
2 Other comprehensive income
- Cash flow hedges — 54 — —_ - 54 - 54
= Available for sale financral assets — _(138) - - - (138) {37) {175)
- Share of othar comprehensive
income of asseciates — 806 — - - 806 - 808
- Foreign currency translation difference — — — — (2) {2} (2) &3]
Total other comprehensive income —_ 722 — - o(2) 720 {39) 681
Total comprehensive incame i ~ = 722 .- 62677 () _ 6339 3805 67,202
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in shareholders’ equity
3 Appropriations of profits
= Appropriatien for surplus reserves — — 24 953 {24,953) — - - -
- Distribubions to shareholders (Note 44) — — — {13.872) — (13872) — {13,872)
4 Consideration for the combination af
entities under common control (Note 1) — (771} - — — {771) - {7711}
5 Acquisihien of rinonty interests - {18) — s — (18) (43 (22}
6 Disinbutions to mincrity interests net of contributions — — —_ — — — (144) (144)
7 __Distribution o Sinopec Group Company - {49) — - — {48) e _ (49}
8 Government grants - 580 - — — 580 12 532
9 Reclassriication — (3110) — 3,110 — — — -
Total transachions with owners . L A — __(33%8) 249553 (3515 - . (14,130) (136) {14,266}
Balance at 31 December 2009 886,702 38,202 115,031 140,536 (70) 380,461 26,087 406,548
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conTinueD)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

currengy  sharebolders U

(Authorised representative)

raserved staterrenia the Company
B~ z KB dhens 1 S FAS il ons RMS mulhiens g
Balance at 1 January 2010 . 8702 202 - _ ls0m 14089 (70} 380 461 26087 406,548
Change for the year
1 Netpefit . - A - - - Jfomy o — 70713 6130 16843
2 Other comprehensme incams
= Cash {low hedges - (221) _— - - — {221) - {221)
= Available for sale financial assats - 9) - - - - {9) - Q)
- Shara of othar comprehensiva income of
associates - (533) - - - - (533) — {533)
- Foregn currency translaticn difference — — — — — {1 244) (1 244) (116) {1,360)
Total other comprahensve income ) .- (763) - - - (L2 (2.007) (116) (2,123}
Total comprehensive income - (63) - - 70713 (1244) 68,706 6014 FI¥F)
Transactians with awners, recorded
directly in shareholders” equity !
3 Appropnations of profits
= Appropniateon for surplus reserves - - — 26,680 (26,680) - - - -
- Distnbutions to sharehalders {Note 44) — — — — {16473) — (16,473) — {16 473) :
4 Warrants exereised (Note 30} - 2 - - - - 2 - 2 ‘
§  Consideration for the combinabion of entities !
under comman contral (Note 1) - {13177) —_ - - - (13179 —_ {13,177)
§  Acquisition of mingnity interests (Note 31) - (93 - - - — 9) - 8) ‘
7 Distnbutions to minonty interasts net of
contributons — — — — — — - {643) (643)
8 Net increase in special reserve for the year — — 1,325 — — — 1,325 &0 1,385
9 Government grants — 321 — — - - 321 37 358
10 Reclassification — 4,867 — - {5.024) 157 — — - |
11 Others —_ (29) — - — — {29} — (29)
Total transactions with owners . - . (8,025) . 1.?25 26,680 _ (481 157 (28,040) _ (546) (28,586} "
Balance at 31 December 2010 86,702 29,414 1,325 41711 153,132 (1.157) 421127 31,555 452,682 E
These tinancial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011 ‘é
Su Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua §
Chauman Vice Chairman, President Chief Financial Officer =

The notes on pages 82 to 138 form part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2010

S-are
cap ial
RMB m~ithons

Surplus
raserves
RNB milhio-s

Total
shareholders’
equity

RMB milltons

Retanad
profis
RME millicns

Balance at 1 January 2009 _ o o 86,702 38,464 90,078 83,714 298,958
Change for the year
1 Net profit . L. . . — - - 49,525 49,525
2 Other comprehensive mcome

- Available for sate financial assets — 24 — —_ 24

- Share of ather comprehensive income of

assoclates — 806 — — 806

Total other comprehensive income — . . B30 L= - 830
Total comprehensive income . . j _ —_ _ 830 - 49,525 80,355
Transactions with owners recorded directly in

shareholders’ equity
3 Appropriations of profits

- Appropriation for surplus reserves — — 24,953 {24,953) —

= Distributions to shareholders (Note 44) — — — (13 872) {13,872)
4 Distributions o Sinopec Group Company — (1,600) — — {1,600}
5 Government grants —_ 540 — — 540
Total transactions with owners — (1.060) 24,953 (38,825) {14,532}
Balance at 31 December 2009 86,702 38,234 115,031 94,414 334,281 |
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Share
capital

RMB mull-ons

Capital
rasdrva
RMB mullians

Special
reserve
RMZ milhions

Surplus
ragerves

Retained
profits

RMB millions RMB milhons

Total
shareholdars’
equity

RMB mullions

Balance at 1 Janvary 2010 86 702 38,234 — 115,031 _ 94,414 334,381
Change for the year
1 Net protit . . N - L =~ 66,798 66,798
2 Other comprehensive income

- Available for sale financial assets — (9) — — - (9)

— Share of other comprehensive income of

associates — (533) — — — (533)

Total other comprehensive income — (54_2) A - = R - . {542)
Total comprehensive iIncome —_ (542) .= L 66,798 66,256
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in

sharehglders’ equrty
3 Appropriations of profits

- Appropriation for surplus reserves {Note 32) — — — 26,680 (26,680) -

= Distnbutions to shareholders (Note 44) — — —_ —_ (16,473} (16,473)
4  Warrants exercised (Note 30) —_ 2 — _ _ 2
5 Net.increase n special reserve for the year — — 1,025 — — 1,025
6 Government grants —_ 257 — - — 287
7__Others — (29} = — — {29)
Total transactions with owners —_ 230 1,025 26,680 (43,153) (15,218)
Balance at 31 December 2010 86.702 37,922 1,025 141,711 118,059 385,419

These financial statements have been approved by the board of directors on 25 March 2011

Su Shubin
Chairman

(Authonised representative)

The notes on pages 82 to 138 form part of these financial statements

‘Wang Tianpu
Vice Chairman, Prasident

‘Wang Xinhua
Chiaf Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1 STATUS OF THE COMPANY

China Petreleum & Chemical Corporation (the “Company”™) was established an 25 February 2000 as a joint stock himited company

According to the State Council's appreval to the *Preliminary Plan for the Reorgamisation of China Petrochemical Corporation” { tha “Reorganisation™)
the Company was established by China Petrochemical Corporation { 'Sinopec Group Company™), which transferred its core businesses together with the
related assets and hiabilities at 30 September 1999 to the Company Such assets and labthties had been valued jointly by China United Assets
Appraisal Coerporation, Beying Zhong Zheng Appratsal Company, CIECC Assets Appraisal Corporation and Zhong Fa International Properties Valuation
Corparation The net asset value was determined at RMB 98,249 084,000 The valuation was reviewed and approved by the Ministry of Finance (the
“MOF") (Cai Ping 21 [2000] No 20 “Comments on the Review of the Valuation Regarding the Formation of a Joint Stock Limited Company by China
Petrachemical Corparation™)

In addition, pursuant to the notice Cai Guan Zi [2000] No 34 “Reply to the Issue Regarding Management of State-Owned Equity by China Petroleum
and Chemical Corporation™ 1ssued by the MOF, 68 8 billion domestic state owned shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each were 1ssued to Sinopec
Group Company, the amount of which 1s equivalent to 70% of the above net asset value transierred from Sinopec Group Company to the Company in
connection with the Reorganisation

Pursuant to the notice Guo Jing Mao Qv Gai [2000] No 154 “Reply on the Farmation of China Petroleum and Chermical Corporation”, tha Company
obtained the approval from the State Economic and Trade Commission on 21 February 2000 for the formation of a joint stock ltmited company

The Company took aver the exploration, development and production of crude oil and natural gas, refining, chemicals and related sales and marketing
business of Simopec Group Company after the establishment of the Company

The Company and its subsidiarias (the “Group™) engage In the oll and gas and chernical aperations and businesses, including
(1) the exploration, development and production of crude o1l and natural gas,

(2) the refining transportation, storage and marketing of crude o1l and petroleum product, and

{3) the production and sale of chemicals

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Directors' meeting on 27 March 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of Sinopec Qingdao
Petrochemical Company Limited and certain storage and distribution operations (collectively the “Acquired Group®) from Sinopec Group Company for
total cash considerations of RMB 771 million (hereainafter referred to as the Acquisition of the Acquired Group”™)

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Directors’ meeting on 26 March 2010, the Group acquired 55% equity interests of Sonangol Sinopec
International Limited (“SSI1™) from Sinopec Overseas Ol & Gas Limited (“SO0GL"), a subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company, and the shareholder's
loans of USD 292 million provided by SOOGL to SSI at a total cash consideration of USD 2 259 mithon (hereinafter referred to as the “Acquisition of
5581

As the Group and S5} are under the common control of Sinopec Group Company the Acquisition of SS11s considered as “combination of entities under
comman control” Accordingly, the assets and liabihittes of SSI have been accounted for at historical cost and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company prior to this acquisition have been restated to include the results of operations and the assets and habilities of SS1 on a combined basis
The difference between the tatal considerations paid over the amount of the net assets of S51 was accounted for as an equity transaction

The financial information of 85I from 1 January 2010 to 30 September 2010 (acquisition date) are set out as below

Fevenues from Net profit from
Reasons far the judgement that Substanbial 1 January 2010 to 1 January 2010 to

the acquisit-on 15 considerad as controlier af the 30 September 2010 30 September 2010
The acquires “combination of antit-&s under camman cantral”™ common confrol RMEB muliens RMB ~uiligns
] The acquiree and the Company aré under common Sinopec Group Company 12,009 3,043
contral of Sinopec Group Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(1) Statement of compliance China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (“ASBE™)
The financial staterents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises - Basic
Standards and 38 specific standards 1ssued by the MOF on 15 February 2006 and the practice guide of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterpnises, the explanations to the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and other regulations 1ssued thereafter (collectively, ASBE)
These financial statements present truly and completely the consolidated financial position and financial position, the consolidated results of
operations and results of operations and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company

These financial statements also comply with the disclosure requirements of “Regulation on the Preparation of Information Disclosures of Companies
Issuing Public Shares No 15 General Requirements for Financial Reports”™ as revised by the China Secunities Regulatory Commussion (“CSRC™) in
2010

(2) Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group s from 1 lanuary te 31 December

(3) Measurement basls
The financial statements of the Group have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except for the assets and habilities set out below

— Available for sale financial assets {see Note 3(11))
— Convertible bonds {see Note 3(11))

{4) Functional currency and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company's and most of 1ts subsidiaries 1s Renminbn The Group's consclidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbr The Company translates the financial statements of subsicdianes from their respective functional currencies into Renminbi (see Note
3(2)) 1f the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are not Renminbi

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Accounting treatment of business combination involving entities under common control and not under cormmon cantrot

{a) Business comhbination involving entities under common control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common contrel 1s a business combination i which all of the combining entities
or husinesses are ult:mately cantrolled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that ¢ontrol 1s not
transitory The assets and habilities that the acquirer receives in the acquisition are accounted for at the acquiree’s carrying amount on the
acquisition date The difference between the carrying amaount of the acquired net assets and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for
the acquisition {or the total nominal value of shares 1ssued) 15 recagnised in the share premium of capital reserve, or the retained profits i case
of any shortfall 1n the share premium of capital reserve The acquisition date 1s the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains cantrol of the
acquiree

(b) Business combination involving entities not under common control

A business combination involving entities or businesses not under common control 15 a business combination in which all of the combining
entities or businesses are not ultimately contrelled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination Difference
between the consideration paid by the Group as the acquirer, comprises of the aggregate of the fair value at the acquisition date of assets given,
including equity interest of the acquiree held before the acquisition date, habihities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by the
acquirer in exchange for control of the acquiree, and the Group's interest in the fair value of the dentifiable net assets of the acquires, 15
recognised as goodwill (Note 3¢9)) if 1t 1s an excess otherwise in profit or loss The expense Incurred for equity securities and debt securities
1ssued as the consideration of the combination is recognised in the initial cost of the secunties Any other expense directly attributable to the
business combination 1s recognised n profit or loss for the pencd The ditference between the fair value and the book value of the assets given
1s recognised in profit or loss The acquisition date 15 the date on which the acquirer effectively obtans contral of the acquiree
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
{1) Accounting treatment of business combination involving entities under carmmon control and not under common control (Contmued)

(c) Method for preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsicianes Control 1s the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtam benefits from its activities In assessing control, potential voting nghts, such as warrants and convertible
bonds, that are currently exercisable or canvertible, are taken mto account The financial statements of subsidraries are included in the consolidated
{inancial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

Where the Company combines a subsidiary during the reporting period through a business combination invalving entities under common
control, the financial statements of the subsicdiary are included 1n the consolidated financial statements as if the combinaticn had occurred at
the beginning of the earhiest comparative year presented or, if |ater, at the date that common control was estabhshed Therefore the opening
balances and the comparative figures of the consolidated financial statements are restated in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the subsidiary’s assets, habilities and results of operations are included in the consolidated balance sheet and the consclidated
income statement respectively, based on their carrying amounts in the subsidiary's financial statements, from the date that common control
was established

Where the Company acquires a subsidiary during the reporting year through a business combination involving entities not under common
control, the identifiable assets, habilittes and results of operations of the subsidiaries are consolidated into consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences, based an the fair value of those dentifiable assets and habihties at the acquisition date

Where the Company acquired a minonty interest from a substdiary's minority shareholders, the difference between the investment cost and the
newly acquired interest into the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets 1s agdjusted to the capital reserve in the consohdated balance sheet Where
the Company partially disposed an investment of a subsidiary that do not result in a lass of contral, the difference betwean the proceeds and
the corresponding share of the interest inta the subsidiary 1s adjusted to the capital reserve in the consolidated balance shast If the credit
balance of capital reserve 15 insufficient, any excess 15 adjusted to retained profits

In & business combination involving entities not under common control achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree on the acquisition date The difference between the fair value and the net book value s recogrised as investment income
for the period If other comprehensive income was recognised regarding the equity interest previously held in the acquiree before the acquisition
date, the relevant other comprehensive income s transferred to investment income in the period i which the acquisitian occurs

Where control of a subsidiary is lost due to partial dispasal of the equity investment held in a subsidiary or any other reasons, the remaning
equity investment 1s remeasured to fair value at the date tin which control 1s lost The sum of consideration recewved from disposal of equity
investment and the fair value of the remaining equity invastment net of the fair value of the Group’s previous share of the subsidiary's
identifiable net assets recorded from the acquisition date 1s recogmsed in investment income tn the period in which control 15 lost Other
comprehensive income related to the previous equity investment in the subsidiary, s transferred to investment income when control 15 lost

Minonty interest 1s presented separately in the consohdated balance sheet within shareholders’ equity Net profit or loss attributable to minonity
shareholders 1s presented separately in the consoclidated income statement below the net profit ine item

The excess of the loss attributable to the minority interests during the period over the minority interests’ share of the equity at the beginning of
the reporting period 15 deducted from minonity interests

Fuaancial Statements (PRC) _

Where the accounting policies and accounting penod adopted by the subsidiaries are different from those adopted by the Carnpany, adjustrments
are made to the subsidiaries’ financial statements according to the Company’s accounting policies and accounting period Intra group balances
and transactions, and any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra group transactions, are elumninated in prepaning the consohdated financial
staternents Unrealised losses resulting from intra group transactions are eliminated 1n the same way as unrealised gans but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment

{2) Transactions tn foreign currencies and translation of financial statements in foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are, on iitial recognition, translated into Renrmuintu at the spot exchange rates quoted by the Pecple's Bank of China
(“PBOC rates™) at the transaction dates

Foraign currency monetary items are translated at the PBOC rates at the balance sheet date Exchange differences, except for those directly related
to the acquisition, construction ar production of quahfied assets, are recognised as income or expenses in the income statement Non monetary
items denominated in foreign currency measured at historical cost are not translated Non monetary items denominated in foreign currency that
are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined The difference between the
translated amount and the ortginal currency amount 15 recognised as capital reserve, if it 15 classified as avallable for sale financial assets, or
charged to the income statement «f 1t 1s measured at tair value through profit or loss

The assets and habahities of foreign operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The equity items,
excluding “Retammed profits®, are translated into Renminbs at the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates The income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated into Renmunbi at the spot exchange rates on the transaction dates The resulting exchange differences are separately
presented in the balance sheet within equity Upon disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in which relate to that foreign operation 1s transferred to profit or loss in the year in which the disposal occurs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

for the year ¢nded 31 Deeember 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand depasits, short term and highly Liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in value

(4) Inventories
Inventeries are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost includes the cost of purchase and processing and other cost Inventories are stated at cost upon acquisition The cost of inventories 1s
calculated using the weighted average method In addition to the cost of purchase of raw matenal, work 1n progress and finished goods include
direct labour and an appropriate allocation of manufacturing overhead costs

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of each item of inventories 1s recognised as a proviston for diminution in the value of mventories
Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the normal course of business less the estimated costs to completion and the estimated
expenses and related taxes to make the sale

Inventaries mclude raw materiats, work in progress, sem finished goods, fimshed goods and reusable materals Reusable matenats tnclude low
value consumables packaging materials and other maternials, which can be used repeatedly but do not meet the defimition of fixed assets Reusable
materials are amortised in full when receved for use The amounts of the amortisation are included in the cost of the related assets or profit or
loss

Inventories are recorded by perpetual method

(5) Long-term equity investments

(a) Investment in subsidiaries
In the Group’'s consolidated financial statements, tnvestment in subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with the principles described in
Mote 3(1)(¢)

In the Company's financal statements, investments in substdiaries are accounted for using the cost method The cash dividends or profits
declared to be distributed by the investee entity are recognised as tnvestment income of the current penod based on the Company's proportionate
interest In the investes antity, excluding the cash dividends or the profits declared but not distributed 1n the considerations paid to acquire the
investment The investments are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 3(12)) in the balance sheet At imitial recogmtion such
investments are measured as follows

The inutial investment cost of a long term equity investment obtained through a business combination ivolving entities under common control
1s the book value of the acquired entities’ net assets at the combrnation date The difference between the initial investment cast and the carrying
amounts of the consideration given is adjusted to share premium in capital reserve If the balance of the share premium 1s insufficient, any
excess 1s adjusted to retained prohts

In a business combination involving entities not under common control achieved in stages, the total cost of initial investment comprises of book
value ot investmant in the acquiree held by the Company and the cost of additional investment acquired on the acquisition date Other
comprehensive incomne recognised for holding the equity interest 1n the acquiree belore the acquisiion date, 15 transferred to the investment
income when investment 1s disposad

Financial Statements (PRC)

The tnitial investment cost of a long term equity investment obtained through other business combtnations involving entities not under common
control 1s accounted for as the aggregate of the fair value of assets given on the acquisition date, habilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities 1ssued by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree

An investment in a subsidiary acquired otherwise than through a business combination i1s imitially recognised at actual purchase cost if the
Company acquires the investment by cash, or at the fair value of the equity securities issued 1f an Investment 1s acquired by I1ssuing equity
secunities, or at the value stipulated in the investment contract or agreement if an investment s contributed by investors

{b) Investment in jointly controlled entities and associates
A jotntly controlled entity 1s an entity of which the Group can exercise Jaint cantrol with ather venturers Joint control represents the contractual
agreement of sharing of control over the entity s econormic activities, hmited to economuc activibies related to sigmficant financia!l and operating
policies that require agreement of all venturers

An assotiate 15 an entity of which the Group has signuficant influence Significant influence represents the rnight to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but 15 not contrel or jont contraol over the establishment of these policies

An investment in a jointly controlled entity or an associate 1s accounted for using the equity method, unless the investment 1s classihied as held
for sale {see Note 3(10))

At the balance sheet date, imparment losses on investment in jointly controlled entities and associates are measured according to Note 3(12)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Investment in jointly controlled entities and associates (Continued)
The nitial cost of investment in jointly controlled entities and associates 15 stated at the consideration paid if the investment 1s made in cash,
or at the fair value of the non monetary assets exchanged for the investment The difference between the fair value of the non monetary assets
being exchanged and 1ts carrying amount 1s charged to profit or loss

The Group's accounting treatments when adopting the equity method include

Where the initial investment cost of a long term equity investment exceeds the Group's interest in the fair value of the investee's identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition, the mvestment s inthially recognised at the imitial investment cost Where the imitial investment cost is less
than the Group's Interest in the fair value of the investee's identifiable net assets at the time of acquisition, the investment 1s intially recognised
at the investor’s share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets, and the difference 1s charged to profit or loss

After the acquisitton of the investment, the Group recognises its share of the investee's net profits or losses, as investment incame or losses,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly Once the investee declares any cash dividends or profits distributions the
carrying armount of the investment 1s reduced by that attributable to the Group

The Group recogruses Its share of the investee's net profits or losses after making appropriate adjustments to align the accounting policies or

accounting pertods with those of the Group based on the fair values of the investee s net identifiable assets at the time of acquisttion Under the
equity accounting method unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates or jointly controlled
entities are ehiminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or Jjointly controlled entities Unreahised fosses resulting from
transactions between the Group and s associates or jointly controlled entities are fully recognised in the event that there 1s an evidence of
impairment

The Group discontinuas recogmising 1ts share of net losses of the investee after the carrying amount of the long term equity investment and any
| long term nterest that in substance forms part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the jointly controlled entity 1s reduced to zero,
‘ except to the extent that the Group has an obligation to assume additional losses Where net profits are subsequently made by the associate or

jointly controlled entity, the Group resumes recognising Its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
' recognised

(c) Other long-term equity investments
Other long term equity investments refer to investments where the Group does not have control, joint control or significant influence over the
investeas, and for which the investments are not quoted 1n an active market and their fair value can not be reliably measured

The wtial investment cost 1n these entities 1s onginally recogmised in the same way as the imtial investment cost end measurement principles
for investment 1n jointly controlled entities and associates

Other long term investments are subsequently accounted for under the cost method The cash dividends or profits declared to be distnibuted by
the investee entity are recognised as investment income of the current period based on the Group's proportionate interest in the investee entity, excluding
the cash dwidends or profits declared but not distributed in the considerations paid to acquire the investments

(6) Fixed assets and construction in progress
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Group using in the production of goads, rendering of services and for operation and
administrative purposes with useful life over L year

FInancial Statements {PRC)

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparrment losses (see Note 3(12)) Construction in
progress is stated in the balance sheet at cost less impairment tosses (see Note 3(12))

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes and any directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
warking condition for its intended use The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of matenials direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs
(ses Note 3(19)), and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use Costs of dismanthag and
removing the items and restoring the site on which the related assets located are inctuded n the initial cost

Caonstruction in progress 1s transferred to fixed assets when the asset 1s ready for its intended use No depreciation i1s provided against constructian
N Progress

Where the individual component parts of an item of fixed asset have different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group 1n different patterns thus
necessitating use of different depreciation rates or methods, each part i1s recognised as a saparate fixed asset

The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets are recognised in the carrying amount of the item if the
recognition cniteria are satished, and the carrying amount of the replaced part 1s derecognised The costs of the day to day servicing of fixed assets
are recognised in profit or toss as incurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(6) Fixed assets and construction In pragress (Continued)
The Group terminates the recogrition of an item of fixed asset when it 1s 1n a state of disposal or it 1s estimated that 1t 15 unable to generate any
economic benefits through use or disposal Gains or losses ansing from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determmed as the
ditference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recogrised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
dispasal

Fixed assets other than o and gas properties are depreciated using the straight line method aver thewr estimated useful ives The estimated useful
Iives and the estimated rate of residual values adeopted for respective classes of fixed assets are as follows

Estimated Estimated rate

usetul e ot residual value
Plants and buildings 15 45 years 3% 5%
Machinery, equipment, vehucles and others 4 18 years 3
Oil depots storage tanks and service stations 8 25 years 3% 5%

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at teast each year end

(7) Oil and gas properties
Qil and gas properties include the mineral interests in properties, wells and related support equipment arising from oll and gas exploration and
production activities :

Mineral interests m properties are capitalised as o1l and gas properties when acquired Costs of development wells and related suppart equipment
are capitahised The cost of exploratory wells s inttially capitalised as construction in progress pending determination of whether the well has
found proved reserves Exploratory well costs are charged to axpenses upon the determination that the well has not found proved reserves However,
in the absence of a determination of the discovery of proved reserves, exploratory well costs are not carried as an asset for more than one year
following completion of driling If, after one year has passed a determination of the discovery of proved reserves cannot be made, the exploratory
well costs are impaired and charged to expense All other exploration costs, including geological and geaphysical costs, are charged to profit or loss
in the year as incurred

Gains and losses on the disposal of proved oil and gas properties are not recognised unless the disposal encompasses an entire property The
proceeds on such disposals are credited to the carrying amounts of o1l and gas properties

The Group estimates future dismantlement costs for ot and gas properties with reference to engineenng estimates after taking inte consideration
tha anticipated methad of dismantlement required in sccordance with the industry practices These estimnated future dismantiement costs are
discounted at credit adjusted risk free rate and are capitahised as o1l and gas properties, which are subsequently amortised as part of the costs of
the oIl and gas properties

Capitahsed costs relating to proved properties are amortised on a unit of production method

(8) Intangible assets
Intangible assets, where the estimated useful Eife i1s finite, are stated in the balance sheet at cost fess accumulated amertisation and provision for
impairment losses {see Note 3(12)) For an intangible asset with finite useful life, 1ts cost less residual value and impairment losses 1s amortised on
a straight hine basis over the expected useful lives, uniess the intangible 2ssets ara classified as held for sale (see Note 3(10)

Frnangral Statements (PRC)

An intangible asset 1s regarded as having an indefinite useful hte and is not amortised when there 15 no foreseeable imit to the year aver which the
asset 15 expected to generate economic benehits for the Group

{9) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost of business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the
acquiree under the business combination involving entities not under common control

Goodwill 1s not amortisad and 1s stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note 3(12)) On disposal of an asset group or a set of
asset groups, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill 1s written off and included n the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal

(10)Non-citrrent assets held for sale
A non current asset 1s classified as held for sale when the Group has made a decisien and signed & non cancellable agreement on the transfer of the
asset with the transferee, and the transfer 1s expected to be completed within one year Such non current assets may be fixed assets, intangible
assets, investment property subsequently measured using the cost model, long term equity investment, etc but not include deferred tax assets
Non current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and net realisable value Anyexcess of the carrying amount over the net
reahsable value s recogmised as impairment loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{11)Financial Instruments
Financial instruments of the Group include cash and cash equivalents bond iwestments, equity securities other than long term equity investments,
receivables, derivative financial instruments, payables, loans bonds payable, and share capital, etc

(a) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial instruments
The Group recognises a financial asset or a financial hatuhity on its balance sheet when the Group enters into and becomes a party to the
underhning contract of the financial instrument

The Group classifies financial assets and lrabilities into different categories at inihial recognition based on the purpose of acquiring assets and
assuming habihies financial assets and financial habilties at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recervables held to maturity investments,
avallable for sale financial assets and other financial habihities

Financtal assets and financial habihties are mitially recognised at fair value For financial asset or financial hability of which the change inits farr
value 1s recognised in profit or loss, the relevant transaction cost s recognised in profit or loss The transachion costs for other financial assets
or financial habilities are included in the initially recognised amount Subsequent to inmitial recogrition financial assets and habilities are
measured as follows

88

Financial asset and financeal liability at fair value through profit or loss (including financial asset or financial habehity held for trading)

Finaneial assets, financial habilities and derrvative tnstruments held by the Group for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 1y short term
Thase financial instruments are inihially measured at fair value with subsequently changes in tair value recogmised in profit or 10ss

Receivables

Recewvables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable recoverable amount and with no quoted price in active market
After the inihial recognition, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Held to maturity investment

Held to matunity investment ncludes non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable recoverable amount and fixed maturity that
the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity

After the initial recogrition, held to maturity investments are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
Avaulable for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets include non derivative financial assets that are designated as avarlable for sales and other financial assets
which do net fall into any of the abaove categones Investments in equity Instruments that do not have quoted market prices in active markets
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost

Other than the above equity instrument investments whose fair values cannot be measured reliably, other availabla for sale financial assets
are inbally stated at fair values The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are directly recognised 1n equity, except for the
impatrment |osses and exchange differences from monetary hinancial assets denorminated in foreign currencies, which are recognised in
profit or loss The cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in equity are transterred to profit or loss when the avaitable for sale
financial assets are derecognised Dividend mcome from these equity instruments i1s recognised in profit or loss when the investee declares
the dividends Interest on available for sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest method 1s recognised in profit or loss (see
Note 3(17Xc))
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
{11)Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification, recognition and measurement of financial Instruments ¢(Continued)
— Other financial habilities
Financial habihties other than the financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss are classified as other financial habilities

Among other financial liabihties, financial guarantees are contracts that require the 1ssuer () e the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficrary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder mcurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Wiiere the Group 1ssues a financial guarantee, subsequent to initial recognition, the
guarantee 15 measured at the higher of the amount imitialty recognised less accumutated amortisation and the amount of a provision
deterrmined in accordance with the principles of contingent liabilities {see Note 3(16))

Except for the other financial habilities described above, subsequent to imtial recogrition, other financial labilities are measured at emortised
cost using the effective interest method

In the balance sheet, financial assets and financiat habilities are separately disclosed and not offset unless alt of the followmng condstions are
met

— the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset financral assets against financial labilities, and |

— the Group intends to settle the financial assets and hiabilities on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilties s:imultaneously |

(b) Determination of fair value !
Fair value of financial asset or financial hability 1s determined with reference to quoted market price 1n active market without adjusting for
transaction costs that may be incurred upon future disposal or settlement 15 used to establish the fair value of financial asset or financial
hability For a financial asset held or a financial hability to be assumed, the quated price 1s the current bid pnice and, for a financial asset to be
acquired or a ftnancial habihty assumed, it is the current asking price

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a valuation technique 1s used to establish the fair value Valuation techmques include using
arm s length market transactions between knowledge, willing parties, reference to the current fair value of other instrument that 1s substantially
the same, discounted cash flows and option pricing model The Group calibrates the valuation technique and tests 1t for validity periodically

(c) Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting 15 a method which recogruses the coffsetting effects on profit or loss of changes in the fawr values of the hedging instrument
and the hedged item n the same accounting pericd(s)

Hedged 1tems are the items that expose the Group to risks of changes in fair value or future cash flows and that are designated as being hedged
The Group's hedged items include fixed rate borrowings that expose the Group to risk of changes in fair values, floating rate borrowings that
expose the Group to risk of variability tn cash flows, and a forecast transaction that is settled with & fixed amount of foresgn currency and expose
the Group to foretgn currency risk

Financial Statemeants {PRC)

A hedging instrument is a designated derwative whose changes in fair value or cash flows are expected to offset changes in the fair value or cash
flows of the hedged item For a hedge of fore:gn currency rnisk, a non dervative financial asset or nan derivative financial lability may also be
used as a hedging instrument

The hedge 1s assessed by the Group for effectiveness on an ongoing basis and deterrmined to have been highty effective throughout the accounting
periods for which the hedging relationship was designated The Group uses a ratio analysis to assess the subsequent effectiveness of a cash
flow hedge, and uses a regression analysis to assess the subsequent effectiveness of a fair value hedge
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the ycar ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contrnued)
{11)Frnancial Instruments {Continued)

(c) Hedge accounting (Continued)
— Cash flow hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to vaniability in cash flows The portion of the gatn or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge 15 recognised directly «n sharehclders’ equity as a separate component That effective portion i1s
adjusted to the lesser of the following (in absolute amounts)

~ the cumulative gain or loss an the hedging mstrument from inception of the hedge
— the cumulative change in present value of the expected future cash flows on the hedged item fram inceptian of the hedge

The portian of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an ineffective hedge 1s recegnised n profit or loss

1f a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a nen financial asset or non financial hability, the associated
gam or loss 1S removed from shareholders’ equity, included in the inibial cost of the non financia!l asset or hability, and recognised n profit
or loss In the same year dunng which the financial asset or financial hability affects profit or loss Howaver, if the Group expects that all or
a portion of a net loss recognised directly in shareholders’ equity will not be recovered in future accounting periods, it reclassilies the
amount that 15 not expected to be recovered into profit ar loss

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results i the recagnition of a financial asset or a financial bability, the associated gatn or
loss 15 removed from equity and recogmised n profit or loss in the same peried during which the financial asset or financial hability affects
profit or loss However, If the Group expects that all or a portion of a net loss recognised directly in shareholders’ equity will nat be recovered
in future accounting periods, it reclassifies the amaunt that 1s not expected to be recovered into profit ar loss

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding twe policy statements, the associated gain or loss 15 removed from
shareholders' equity and recogmised in profit or loss in the same period or penods duning which the hedged forecast transaction affects
profit or loss

When a hedging instrument expires or Is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
! Group will discontinue the hedge accounting treatments prospectively In this case, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains
recognised directly in shareholders’ equity from the period when the hadge was effective shall not be reclassified into profit or loss and 15
recognised n accordance with the above policy when the forecast transaction occurs If the forecast transaction s no langer expected to
occur, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recogmsed directly in shareholders’ equity from the pericd when the hadge
was effective shall be reclassified into profit or loss immediately

— Fair value hedges

A fair value hedge 15 a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or hability or an unrecognised firm commitment,
or an identifred portion of such an asset, liability or unrecognised firm commitment

The gain or loss from re measuring the hedging instrument at fair value 1s recognised in profit or lass The gain or loss on the hedged item
attnibutable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised in profit or loss

Financtal Siatements (PRC)

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised. or no longer meets tha critena for hedge accounting, the Group
discontinues prospectively the hedge accounting treatments If the hedged item (s a financial instrument measured at amortised cost any
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s amortised to profit or loss from the adjustment date to the matunty date using the
recalcuiated effective interest rate at the adjustment date

— Headge of net investment in foreign operation

A hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation 15 a hedge of the exposure to foreign exchange risk associated with a net investment in a
toretgn operation The portion of the gain or loss on a hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly
in equity as a separate component until the disposal of the foreign operation, at which time the cumulative gamn or loss recognised directly
In equity 15 recognised in profit or lass The ineffective portion 1s recognised immediately in profit or foss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(11)Financial Instruments (Continued)

(d) Convertible bonds
— Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the holder, where the nurmber of shares that would be issued
on conversion and the value of the consideration that would be received at that time do not vary are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a babihity component and an equnty component

At initial recogrition the hability component of the convertible bonds 1s measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discaunted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial recognstion to similar habihities that do not have a
conversion option Any excess of proceeds over the amount imtially recognised as the habihty component 1s recognised as the equity
component Transaction costs that relate to the 1ssue of the convertible bonds are allocated to the hability and eguity components in
propartion to the allocation of proceeds

The Latulity component I1s subsequently carried at amortised cost The interest expense recogrised v profit or loss on the hability companent
15 calculated using the effective interest method The equity component 1s recogmised in the capital reserve until either the bond (s cornverted
or redeemed

If the bond 15 converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the Lhabihty component at the time of conversion, 1s
transferred to share capital and capital reserve (share premum) as consideration for the shares issued If the bond 15 redeemed, the capital
reserve (other capital reserve) s transferred to capital reserve (share prermiurm)

— Other convertible bonds
Corwertible bonds 1ssued with a cash settlement option and other embedded denvative features are spht into liabtlity and derivative components

At inital recagmtion the derivative component of the convertible bonds 1s measured at fair value. Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the derivative component 1s recogmised as the hability component Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative components in preportion to the allocation of proceeds The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the liability component 1s recogmsed initially as part of the hability The portion relating to the dervative
component 1s recognised mmediately as an expense in profit or loss

The derivative component ts subsequently remeasured at each balance sheet date and any gains or losses arising from change in the far
value are recognised in profit or loss The liability component 1s subseguently carried at amartised cost until extinguished on conversion or
redemption The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the hability component 1s calculated using the effective interest method
Both the hability and tha related dervative components are presented together for financial statements reporting purposes

If the convertible bonds are converted, the carrying amounts of the derwvative and liability components are transferred to share capital and
share premium as constderation for the shares 1ssued If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and
the carrying amounts of both components 1s recognised in profit or loss

(e) Derecognition of hinancial assets and financial liabilities
The Graup derecognises a financial asset when the contractual right to receive cash flows fram the financial asset expires, or where the Group
transfers substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership.

On derecognition of a financial asset the differenca between the following amounts 15 recogrused n profit or loss
— the carrying amounts. and
— the sum of the consideration recewved and any curmulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity

Where the obligattons for financial habilities are completely or partially discharged the entire or parts of financial habilitres are derecognised
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{1)Impairment of financial assets and non-financial long-term assets

(a) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount ¢f financial assets {other than those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed at each balance sheet date ta
determine whether there 15 abjective evidence of impairment If any such evidence exists, imparrment lass 1s provided

Objective evidences of impatrment include but not imited to
(a) significant financial difficulty of the debtor,
(b) a breach of contract, such as e default or delingquency in interest or principal payments,
{c) 1t becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or othér financial reorgamisation,
{d) due to the significant financial difficulty of the debtor, financial assets 1s unable to be traded 1n active market,
(e) sigrmificant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor, and
(f) a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument befow 1ts cost
— Recevables and held to matunty investments
Recevables end held to maturnity investments are assessed for impairment on an indwvidual basis

Where impairment 15 assessed on an indiwvidual basts, an impairment loss 1n respect of a receivable or held to matunity investment 1s
calculated as the excess of its carrying amount over the present value of the estimated future cash flows (exclusive of future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate All imparrment losses are recogrused in profit or loss

Impairment loss on receivablas and held to matunty investments s reversed in profit or loss iIf evidence suggests that the financial assets'
carrying amounts have increased and the reason for the increase i1s objectively as a result of an event occurred after the recognition of the
impairment loss The reversed carrying emount shall not exceed the amortised cost i the financial assets had no impairment recogmised

— Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are assessed for impairment on an individual basis

When available for sale financial assets are impawred, despite not derecognised, the cumulative losses resulted from the decrease in tair
value which had previously been recognised directly in shareholders' equity, are reversed and charged to profit or loss

Impairment loss of avalable for sale debt instrument 15 reversed, 1If the reason for the subsequent 1ncrease in fair valua 15 objectively as a
result of an event occurred after the recognition of the impairment loss Impairment less for available tor sate equity instrument 1 not
revarsed through profit or foss

(b) Impalrment of other non-financial long-term assets

92

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date far indications that the following assets, including fixed
assets, construction in progress, goodwill, intangible assets and investments 1n subsidianies, associates and jointly controlled entities may be
impaired

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the:r carrying amounts may not be recoverable The
recaverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets with uncertamn useful hives are estimated annually no matter there are any indrcations of
impairment Goodwill 1s tested for impairment together with related asset units or groups of asset units

An asset unit 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets An asset unit comprises related assets that generate associated cash inflows In (dentifying an asset unit the Group
primanly considers whether the asset unit 1s able to generate cash inflows independently as well as the management style of production and
operational activities, and the decision for the use or disposal of asset

The recoverable amount 1s the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the present value of expected future cash flows generated by the
asset (or asset unit set of asset units)

Fair value less costs to sell of an asset 1s based on its selling price in an arm’s length transaction less any direct costs attributable to the
disposal Present value of expected future cash flows 15 the estimation of future cash flows to be generated from the use of and upon disposal
of the asset, discounted at an appropniate pre tax discount rate over the assets remaining useful Iife

It the recoverable amount of an asset 1s less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 18 reduced to the recaverable amount The amount
by which the carrying amount 1 reduced 1s recognised as an impairment [oss in profit or lass A provision for impairment loss of the asset is
recognised accordingly Impairment losses related to an asset unit or a set of asset units first reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the asset unit or set of asset units, and then reduce the carrying amount of the other assets «n the asset umt or set of asset units
on a pro rata basis However, that the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be reduced below the hughest of its individual fair value less
costs to sell (if determinable), the present value of expected future cash flows (if deterrminable) and zero

impairment losses for assets are not reversed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

tfor the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{13)Long-term deferred expenses
Long term deferred expensas are amortised on a straight hne basis aver their beneficial periods

(14)Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given and other related expenses incurred in exchange for services rendered by employees When
an employee has rendered service to the Group dunng an accounting period, the Group shall recogmise the employee benefits payable {other than
termunation benefits) as a hability and charged to the cost of an asset or as an expense in the same time

(a) Retirement benefits
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has joined a basic pension insurance for the employees arranged by local
Labour and Social Secunty Bureaus The Group makes contributions to the pension insurance at the applicable rates based on the amounts
stipulated by the government organisation The contributions are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis When employees retire, the local
Labour and Social Security Bureaus are responsible for the payment of the basic pension henefits to the retired employees The Group does not
have any other abligations in this respect

{b) Housing fund and other socizl insurance
Besides the pension benefits, pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has joined defined social security contributions
for employees, such as a housing fund, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance Injury insurance and maternity insurance The Group
makes contributions to the housing fund and other social insurances mentioned above at the applicable rate(s) based on the employees’
salartes The contributions are recogrised as cost of assets or charged to profit or lass on an accrual basis ! .

(c) Termination benefits ! !
When the Group terminates the employment relationship with employees before the employment contracts have expired, or provides compensation |
as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy, & provision for the termmination benefits provided, 15 recognised in profit or
loss when both of the following conditions have been satisfied J

I
— Thea Group has a formal plan far the termination of employment or has made an offer to employees for voluntary redundancy, which will be I }
implemented shortly

— The Group 1s not allowed to withdraw from termination plan or redundancy offer umilaterally

(15)Deterred tax assets and liabilities :
Deferred tax assets and habilities are recognised based on deductible temporary differences and taxable temporary differences respectively
Temporary difference 15 the difference between the carrying amounts of assets and habihties and their tax bases including unused tax losses and
unused tax credits able to be utiised in subsequent years Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that future taxable
incame will be available to offset the deduchible temporary differences

Temporary differences arise 1in a transaction, which i1s not a business combination, and at the time of transacticn, does not affect accounting profit
or taxable profit (or unused tax losses), will not result in deferred tax Temporary differences ansing from the imitial recognition of goodwill will not
result in deferred tax

At the balance sheet date, the amounts of deferred tax recognised s measured based on the expected manner of recovery or settliement of the
carrying amount of the assets and habilitres, using tax rates that are expected to be applied in the pertod when the asset i1s recovered or the liability
is settled in accordance with tax laws

Finan¢ial Statements (PRC)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date If it 1s unlikely to obtasn sufficient taxable income to offset
against the benefit of deferred tax asset, the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets is written down Any such write down should be subseguently
reversed where it becomes probable that sufficient taxable income will be available.

At the balance sheet date, deferrad tax assets and habilities are offset if all the following conditions are met
— the taxable entity has a legally enfarceable night ta set off current tax assets against current tax habihties, and
— they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either

— the same taxable entity, or

— different taxable entities which esther to intend to settle the current tax habilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the habilities simultaneously in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax habihties or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(16)Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a contingent event, it 1s probable that an outfiow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a relrable estimate can be made Where the effect of time value of money 15 matenal
provisions are deterrmined by discounting the expected future cash flows

Provisions for future dismanilement costs are initially recagnised based on the present value of the future costs expected to be incurred in respect
of the Group's expected dismantlement and abandonment costs at the end of related ol and gas exploration and development activities Any
subsequent change in the present value of the estimated costs, other than the change due to passage of time which i1s regarded as interest costs,
15 reflected as an adjustment to the provision of ol and gas properties

A provision for onerous contracts 15 recognised when the economic benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cast of meeting its obligations under the contract The provision 1s measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continwming with the contract

{17}Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s the gross inflow of economic benefits arising in the course of the Group's normel activities when the nflows result in ingrease in
shareholder's equity, other than increase relating to contnbutions from shareholders Revenue s recognised in profit or loss when it 1s probable that
the econarmic benefits will flow to the Group, the revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the following respective conditions are met

(2) Revenues from sales of goods
Revenue from the sales of goods 1s recogrmised when all of the general conditions stated above and following conditions are satistied

— the significant risks and rewards of ownership and title have been transferred to buyers, and

— the Group does not retain the management rights, which ts normally associated with owner, on gocds sold and has na control cver the gaods
sold

! Revenue form the sale of goods 1s measured at fair value of the considerations received or receivable under the sales contract or agreement

(b) Revenues from rendering services
The Group determines the revenue from the rendering of services according to the fair value of the received or to be receved price of the party
that receives the services as stipulated in the contract or agreement

At the balance sheet date, when the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet
date, revenue from rendering of services s recagnised in the income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction based
on the proportion of services performed to date to the total services to be performed

When the outcome of rendering the services cannot be estimated reliably revenues are recognised only to the extent that the costs incurred are
expected to be recoverable |f the costs of rendering of services are not expected to be recoverable, the costs incurred are recognised in profit
or loss and no service revenue Is recognised

{c) Interest income
Interest income 1s recognised on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and the apphcable effective interest rate

Financial Statements (PRC)

{18)Government grants
Government grants are the gratuitous monetary assets or non monetary assets that the Group receives from the government, excluding capital
injection by the government as an investor Special funds such as investment grants allocated by the government, \f clearly defined 1n official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital contributians, and not regarded as government grants

Government grants are recogmsed when there 1s reasonable assurange that the grants will be received and the Group 1s able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them Government grants in the form of monetary assets are recorded based on as the amount received or recevable,
whereas non monetary assets are measured at fair value

Government grants recewved in relation to assets are recorded as deferred income, and recognised evenly (n profit or loss over the assets' useful
lives Government grants received in relation to revenue are recorded as deferred income, and recognised as income in future periods as compensation
when the associaed future expenses or losses arise, or directly recognised as income in the current period as compensation for past expenses or
losses

{19)Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred on berrowings for the acquisition, construction or production of qualiied assets are capitahised into the cost of the
related assets

Except for the above other borrowing costs are recognised as financial expanses tn the income statement when incurred

94

Annual Repart 2010 CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPORATION




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

for the year ended 31 Decomber 2010

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(20)Repairs and maintenance expenses
Repairs and maintenance (including overhauling expenses) expenses are recognised tn profit or loss when incurred

{21)}Environmental expenditures
Environmental expenditures that relate to current ongoing operations or to conditions caused by past aperations 1s expensed as incurred

{22)Research and development costs
Research and developrment costs are recogrused in prohit or loss when mcurred

{23)0Operating leases
Operating lease payments are charged as expenses on a straight line basts over the period of the respective leases

(24)Dividends }
Diwmidends and distributions of profits proposed in the profit appropriation ptan which will be authorised and declared after the balance sheet date,
are not recognised as a hability at the balance sheet date and are separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

{25)Related parties
If & party has the power to control, jointly contral or exercise significant influence over another party, or vice versa, or where two or more parties are
subject to common control, jaint control from another party, they are considered to be related parties Related parties may be individuals or !
enterprises Where enterprises are subject to state control but are otherwise unrelated, they are not related parties Related parties of the Group ,
and the Company include, but nat hmited to l

(a) the holding company of the Company, |

(b} the subsidianies of the Company,

(c) the parties that are subject to commen control with the Company,

(d) investors that have joint control or exercise significant influence over the Group,

(e) enterprises or individuails If a party has control, joint control aver both the enterprises or individuals and the Greup,
(f) jointly controlled entities of the Group, including subsidiaries of the jointly controlled entities,

(g) associates of the Group, tncluding subsicharies of the associates,

(h) the major individual investors of the Group and a close family member of such indwiduals,

(1) the member of key management personnel of the Group, and a close farmily member of such individuals,

{1} the member of key management personnel of the Company's holding company,

(k} close family member of key management persannel of the Company’'s holding company, and

Financial Statements (PRC)

{l) an entity which s under control, joint control of major individual investor, key management personnel or a close family member of such
indweduals

(26)Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identifred based on aperating segments which are determined based on the structure of the Group's internal orgamsation,
management requirements and internal reporting system An operating segment s a component of the Group that meets the following respective
conditions

— Engage in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,

— Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions about resource to be allocated to the segment
and assess its performance, and

— For which financial mnformation regarding financial pasttion, results of operations and cash flows are available

Inter segment revenues are measured on the basis of actual transaction price for such transactions for segment reporting, and segment accounting
policies are consistent with those for the consohdated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

4 TAXATION

Financial Statements {(PRC)

Major types of tax applicable to the Group are income tax, cansumption tax, resources tax, value added tax special il income levy, city construction
tax and education surcharge

The Corporate Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China (“new tax law™) took effect on 1 January 2008 According to the new tax law, the
ingome tax rate applhicable to the Group 1s changed to 25% from 1 Januvary 2008, however, certain entibes previously taxed at a preferential rate are
subject to a transition pernigd duning which their tax rate will gradually be increased to the unified rate of 25% over a five year pericd starting from 1
January 2008

Based an the new tax law, the income tax rate applicable to the Group, except far certain entities of the Group, 1s changed from 33% to 25% from |
January 2008 Based on a tax notice 1ssued by the State Council on 26 December 2007, the applicable tax rates for foreign investment enterprises
operating in specral economic zones, which were previously taxed at the preferential rate of 159, are 1B%, 20%. 22%, 24% and 25% for the years
ending 31 December 2008, 2008, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively The applicable tax rate for entities operating in the western region of the PRC
which were granted a preferential tax rate of 15% remains at 15% for the years ending 31 December 2010

Effective fram I January 2009, the consumphion tax rates on gasoline, diesel naphtha, solvent oil, lubricant oil, fuel il and et fuel oil changed to RMB
1,388 O per tonne, RMB 940 8 per tonne, RMB 1,385 0 per tonne, RMB 1,282 0 per tonneg, RMB 1,126 0 per tonne, RMB 812 0 per tonne and RME
996 B per tone, respectively Among them, the consumption tax of jet fuel oil 1s suspended

Resources tax is levied on crude oil and natural gas at rates ranging from RMB 14 per tonne to RMB 30 per tonne and RMB 7 to RMB 15 per 1000 cubic
metre, respectively Effechve from 1 June 2010, the resources tax rate of crude ol and natural gas in Xinjiang adopted rate on value method with tax
rate of 5%, instead of the previous amount on volume methed, and effective from 1 December 2010, the resources tax rate of crude oil and natural gas
in the western region adopted rate on value method with tax rate of 5% instead of the previous amount on volume method

Value added tax rate for hquefied petroleurn gas, natural gas and certan agricultural praducts 1s 139 and that for other products i1s 175

The Ministry of Finance imposed a special oil income levy on any income derived from the sale by an ol exploration and production enterprise of tacally
produced crude o1l exceeding a standard price The levy starts at USD 40 per barrel and the imposed rate ranges from 20% to 40%

The branches and subsidianes granted with tax concession are set out below

Name of branches and subsidiaries Preferential tax rate Reasons for granting concession

Sinopec National Star Xibei Branch 159 Tax preterential policy 1n the western part of China
Tahe Qiuifield Petrochermical Factory 15% Tax preferential palicy in the western part of China
Zhanjiang Dangxing Petrochemical

Company Limited 229% Foreign Investrnent enterprise
Sinopec Hatnan Refining and Chemical 2 year exemption and

Company Limited 3 year 50% reduction Foreign investment enterprise
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for the year ended 31 Decembear 2010

5 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

The Group

Original
currency
millions

Cash on hand

2010

Exchange

ratas

Griginal
RMB currency
millions millions

2003
Exchange
rates

RMB
m ihans

Renmint 130 140
Cash at bank
Renminbi 9,072 4,070
US Dollars 43 6 6227 284 43 6 8282 330
Hong Kong Doltars 31 0 8509 26 100 Q 8805 88
Japanese Yen 123 0 0813 10 190 00738 14
Euro 2 8 BO65 15 4 9 7971 40
9,537 4,682
Deposits at related parties
Renminb 8,363 3,328
US Dollars 22 6 6227 147 272 6 8282 1,858
Hong Kong Dollars 6 0 8509 5 69 0 B80S 61
Euro 10 8 BO65 88 9 9 7971 89
Total cash at bank and on hand 18,140 10,018

The Company

Original

currency
millions

Cash gn hand

2010

Exchange

rates

Criginal
RMB currency
millions millrons

2009
Exchange
rates

RMB
millions

Renminti 110 111
Cash at bank
Renmintn 4,953 2,290
US Dollars — 6 6227 1 — 6 8282 1
5.064 2,402
Deposits at refated parties
Renminbt 6,817 2,321
US Dallars — 6 6227 1 — 6 8282 1
Total cash at bank and on hand 11,882 4,724

Depasits at related parties represent deposits placed at Sinopec Finance Company Limited and Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Limitad

Deposits interest 1s calculated based on market rate

At 31 December 2010, time deposits with financial institutions of the Group and the Company amounted to RMB 1,132 milhon (2009 RMB 1,235

milhion) and RMB 1 mullion (2009 RMB 24 million), respectively

6 BILLS RECEIVABLES

Bills recevable represents mainly the bills of acceptance 1ssued by banks for sales of goods and products

At 31 December 2010, the Group's and the Company's outstanding endorsed or discounted bills (with recourse) amounted to RMB 6,155 million
(2009 RME 10,213 mullion) and RMB 5 725 million (2009 RME 9,597 million), respectively, all of which are due betore 31 December 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

7 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millians RMB millions RMB millions EMB millians
Amounts due from subsidiaries — — 9,930 9,509
Amounts due from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 1,848 697 1,180 494
Amaunts due from associates and jointly controlled entities 8,886 335 4,344 187
Amounts due from others 33,681 27,481 2,293 2326
44,415 28,513 17,747 12,516
Less Allowance tor doubtful accounts 1322 1,921 1,087 1,526
Total 43,093 26,592 16,660 10,9590

Ageing analysis on accounts recewable s as follows

The Company

The Group
2010 2009
Parcentage Percentage
Percentage of allowance Percentage o allowarce
of total to accounts of total o accounts
Amount accounts  Allowance receivabie Amount accounts  Alipwance  recewable
RMB receivable RMB balance EMB receivable RMB balance
milligns millions -- m:lhons 95 milbons o
Within one year 43,037 96 9 0 00 26422 92 7 7 00
Between one and two years 61 01 25 410 185 086 3l 168
| Between two and three years 27 01 16 593 32 01 21 656
| Over three years 1,290 29 1,281 99 3 1,874 66 1.862 99 4
! Total 44,415 100 0 1,322 28,513 1000 1,921
|
{

Percentage Parcentage
| Percentage of allowance Percentage of allowance
of total to accounts of total to accounts
! Amount accounts  Allowance receivable Amoeunt accounts  Allewance  recewvable
RMB  receivable RMB halance RMB recewable RMB balance
millions ; millions ; mithons 4 mullions %
g Within one year 16,620 936 0 00 10,829 865 6 01
[ Between one and two years 39 02 24 61 5 174 14 24 138
£ Between two and three years 23 01 ] 261 28 02 20 714
§ Over three years 1,065 61 1057 99 2 1,485 119 1,476 99 4
] Total 17,747 1000 1,087 12,516 100 0 1,526
w
§ At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the total amounts of the top five accounts recevable of the Group are set out below
a
<
Tetal amount (RMB millions) 12,890 9.603
Ageing Within 1 year Within 1 year
Percentage to the total balance of accounts recewvable 29 0% 31 8%

At 31 December 2010, the Group’s and the Company's accounts receivable due from related parties amounted to RMB 10,734 mullion and RMB 15,454
milhan (2008 RMB 1,032 million and RMB 10,190 mulhion), representing 24 2% and 87 1% (2009 3 69 and 81 49%) of the total accounts recevable

Except for the balances disclosed in Note 46, there 1s no amount due from shareholders who hold 5% or mare voting right of the Company included in
the balance of accounts receivable

During the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indwidually significaat accounts recevable been fully or
substantially provided allowance for doubtful accounts

During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had na indwidually significant write off or recovery of daubtful debts
which had been fully or substantially provided for in prior years

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indmidually significant accounts recewvable that aged over three years
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8 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Tre The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions RME millicns RMB millions RMB mithons
Amounts due from subsidiaries - — 23,103 17,737
Amounts due from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes 556 705 428 615
Amounts due from assocrates and jointly controlled entities 2,488 57 2,468 41
Amounts due from cthers 8912 6,229 3,690 3855
11,956 6,991 29,689 22,248
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,076 2,486 2,256 2,998
Totzl 9,880 4,505 27,433 19,250

Ageing analysis of other receivables 1s as follows

The Company
2010 2009
Percentage Percantage
Percentage of allowance Percentage of allowance

The Group
2010 2009
Percenlage Percertage
Percentage of allowance Percentage o allowarce
of total of other of toral of other
Amount other  Allowance receivables Amount other  Allowance recewvables
RMB receivables RMB balance RMB receaivables RMB balance
miltions % millians 25 mll ans <, m-lhans = l :
Within one year 8,994 753 78 09 3,184 48 4 40 12 ! |
Between one and two years 412 34 33 840 528 76 85 161 [ \
Between two and three years 144 12 85 382 342 49 119 348 I
QOver three years 2,406 201 1,910 794 2,737 391 2,242 819 f
Total 11,956 1000 2,076 6,991 1000 2,486 ‘
|

of total of other of total of other

Amount other  Allowance receivables Amount other  Allowance recewabtles
RMB raceivables RMB balance FMB recevables RMB balance
millions o millions % milhigns -8 mllans %%

L
Within one year 26,769 90 2 2 00 18,275 822 39 02 &
Between one and two years 199 o7 22 111 389 17 39 100 £
Between two and three years 133 04 50 376 227 10 58 256 ]
Qver three years 2,588 87 2182 84 3 3,357 151 2,862 85 3 ﬁ
Total 29,689 1000 2,256 22,248 1000 2,998 »
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the total amounts of the top five other receivables of the Group are set out below E
a
Total amount (RMB mithions) 3,129 710
Ageing From within From within
one year to ane year to
over three years over three years
Percentage to the total balance of ether receivablas 26 2 9% 1029

At 31 December 2010 the Group’s and the Company's other receivables due from related parties amounted to RMB 3,044 mullion and RMB 25,999
muthion (2009 RMB 762 mulion and RMB 18,393 mibon), representing 25 5% and 87 6% (2009 10 9% and 82 7%) of the total of other receivables

Except for the balances disclosed m Note 46, there is no amount due from shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included in
the balance of other receivables

During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no individually significant other receivables been fully or
substantially prowided allowance for doubtful accounts

During the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indmidually sigmficant wnite off or recovery of doubtful debts
which had been fully or substantially prowided for in prior years

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no individually significant other recevables that aged over three years
9 PREPAYMENTS
All prepayments are aged within one year

Except for the balances disclosed in Note 46, there 1s no amount due from shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included in
the balance of prepayments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

tfor the year ended 31 December 2010

10 INVENTORIES

Tre Group

2010
RMB millions

RMB

2009
millians

The Company

2010

RMB miltions

2009
RMB milhons

Raw matenals 84,428 87,587 56,858 54,326
Work in progress 13,089 11,609 9 393 8,182
Finished goods 55,945 39,737 34,706 24,782
Spare parts and consumables 4,175 3,832 2908 2,285

157,637 142,765 103.865 89,575
Less Prowision for dirminution in value of inventories 1,091 1,028 €95 582

156,546 141,727 103.170 88,993

Provision for diminution 1n value of inventones 1s mainty against spare parts and consumables For the year ended 31 December 2010, the provision
far diminution in value of inventones of the Group and the Company was primarily due to the costs of inventories of the refining and chemicals

segments were hugher than thair net realisable value
11 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The Group

Investments
n jointly

controlled
&ntiies
RMB millians

Investinents in
associntes
RMB millions

inve
RMB

Other
equity
siments
mithons

Provision
for

mpa rment
losses

RMB millions

Total
RMB milligns

Balance at } January 2010 13,928 18,162 1,610 (197) 33,503
Additions for the year 3,526 4,057 922 — 8,505
Share of prohits less losses from investments

accounted for under the equity method 3,179 2,211 — — 5,390
Change of capital reserve trom mvestments

accounted for under the equity method — (533) — — (533)
Dwidends receivable / received {434) (910 — — (1,344)
Disposals far the year — {172) {325) — (497)
Movement of provision for impairment losses — — — 13 13
Balance at 31 December 2010 20,199 22,815 2,207 (184) 45,037

Tha Company

inyestments in
subsidiarias
RME mull gns

controllad

RMB millions

lovestments
n jointly

entities

Investments in

associates

RMB millians

Other

equity
‘nvestments
RMB millions

Provision

tor
imparrment
losses

FMB milhions

Total
RMB mullions

Balance at 1 Janvary 2010 67,574 6806 13,796 891 (147) 88,920
Additions for the year 20,378 3,319 3,225 218 —_ 27,140
Share of profits less losses from investments

accaunted far under the equity method — 1825 1,354 — — 3,179
Change of capital reserve from investments

accounted for under the equity method — — {633) — — (533
Dividends receivable / received — {298) {538) — — (836)
Disposals for the year — — {165} (98) — (263)
Movement of provision for impairment losses — —_ —_ — (6 253) {6,253)
Balance at 31 December 2010 £7,952 11,652 17,139 1,011 {6,400) 111,354

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out 1n Note 48
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11 LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Principal jointly controlled entities and associates are as follows

Sercemiage of
eg.dy/vaing
cEridraciycr
nd rocily reld
by tha Company

Trtal assels
at the

yaar end

sl lat sy Cperaing
2:the [CICIN el
year eng ihe year

RS millicrs PUE milsns

Beastar
REgIstier

l-zatan

-egal
rIrresgmane

Reg sidras
capital
RUB el oy RuB ~illiers

hama ot nasiees

1 Joint controlled entities
Shanghai Sscco Petrochemical

Company Limited Shanghar Jeanne Mare Johns USD 901 50% 18,079 7,809 29,169
BASF YPC Company Limited Jiangsu Provice Ma Qulin 13634 40% 24,100 9,006 17.304
Fujian Refimng and Petrochemical
Company Limited Fujian Province Lv Dong 12,808 50% 45,993 34,648 £8,571
SINOPEC SABIC Tianjin
Petrochemical Compary Limited Tianpn Khaled A Almana 6120 50% 22,764 16,518 18 688
2 Associates
Sinopec Finance Company Limitad Bayjing Li Chunguang 2000 49% 112,609 99,213 2,294
China Awtation Qil Supply
Comnpary Limited Beijing Sun Lt 3.800 29% 14 834 8333 62,854 .
Zhonghan Synergetic Energy h
Company Lirnited Inner Mongolia Cao Zumin 3678 38 75%, 4,510 81 - !
Shanghai Chemical Industry Park i
Development Company Limited Shangha Rang Guangdao 2,372 38 26% 7,288 1735 16 I
Shanghai Petroleum Company Limited Shanghal Xu Guobao 300 0% 3,763 734 1,180 l
All the jointly contralled entities and associates above are hmited compantes E
The Group's effective interest share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets, operating income ang net profit are as follows | i
2010 2009 '
RMB millions RMB millions
Net assets 20,1958 13,528 [
Operating income 61 523 25 141
Nat profit 3,179 1,240

Other equity investments represent the Group's interests in PRC privately owned enterprises which are mainly engaged in non o1l and natural gas and
chemical activities and operations This includes non consolidated investments which the Group has over 509% eguity interest but the Group has no
contrel on the entities

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had no indiidually significant long term investments which had been provided for impairment
losses, for the year ended 31 December 2010, the company has recognised impairment losses of RMB 6,257 rmuillion on goodwill related to acquisition
of minority interests (n prior years (Note 15)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

12 FIXED ASSETS

The Group - by segment

Exploration
and
product:on
RMB miihons

Cost/valuation

Retining
RMB nullians

Marketing
and
drstrioution
RMB mitlions

Crermicals
RMB trullicns

Cthers
BMB millions

Total
RMEB mullions

Balance at 1 January 2010 434,266 203,215 116 080 194,956 11,308 959,825

Additions tor the year 4,021 123 1,100 88 255 5,687

Transferred from construction in progress 67.922 11,922 12,370 22,964 2,872 118,050

Reclassifications 343 144 271 (169) {589) —

Disposals {(370) (2,980) (2,144 (2,603) (141) (8,238)
Contnibuted to a jointly controlled entity — - — {280) —_ (290)
Foreign exchange loss (B09) - (103) — (4) (916)
Reclassification to other assets — (39) (451) — (146 (636)
Balance at 31 December 2010 R .. 505373 212,385 127,123 214,946 13,555 1,073,382

Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2010 203,777 93 141 31,598 122 465 3,861 454,842

Depreciation charge for the year 31,393 11,227 5,946 8,483 925 57 974

Reclassifications 12 (28) 25 {120) 111 —_

Written back on disposals (167) (2,402) (1,001) (2,278) {109) (5.957)
Foretgn exchange loss {218) — (41) — {1} (260)
Reclassification to other assets — {3) {68) — {12y (83)
Balance at 31 December 2010 = _ 234,797 _ 101,935 _ 36459 128,550 4775 506,516

Provision lor impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 2010 7,827 1,278 2,882 8,075 6 20,168

Additions for the year 1,889 1649 1.055 2,953 21 7.567

Raclassifications —_ 25 — {25) — —_

Written oft for the year (10 (376) (952) {221) (10) (1,569)
Balance at 31 December 2010 L 9,806 2,576 2,985 10,782 . 17 26,166

Net book value

Balance at 31 December 2010 260,770 107,874 87,679 75,614 8,763 540,700

Balance at 31 December 2009 222,562 108,796 81,600 64.416 7,441 484 815
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12 FIXED ASSETS (Contrnued)

The Company - by segment

Cast/valuation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

for the year anded 31 December 2010

Exploration
and

product on
RME mull.ors

Rehimng
REB nullions

Markating
and
distnipution
RMB mulhons

Cremicals

EM3 misthicns FMB mull

Others Total

1ons  RMB millions

Balance at 1 January 2010 376,008 163,600 88,024 121,273 9.452 759,447
Additions for the yesar 3,508 96 184 21 59 4,268
Transferred from construction tn progress 62.683 10,280 8291 20,934 2,716 104,904
Transferred from subsidiaries — 112 21 247 —_ 380
Jransferred to subsidiaries — (15) (654) {6) (67) (742)
Reclassilicabions 343 142 279 (178) (586) —
Disposzls (369) (2 869) (1.899) (2.055) (105) (7.297)
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity — —_ —_ {290) — {290)
Raclassitication to other assets — (39) (432) o (48) (519)
Balance at 31 December 2010 442,663 171,307 . 94814 @ 139946 11421 860,151
Accurmulated depreciation - ” ” -

Balance at 1 January 2010 178 215 80,552 26,829 73,717 2,990 362,303
Depreciation charge for the year 25,165 8,580 4,360 5,810 785 44,700
Transferred from subsidiaries — 2 1 131 — 134
Transferred to subsidraries — — (2143 — {25) (239)
Reclassifications 12 (41 41 (161) 149 -
Written back on disposals {166) (2,303) (886) (1.791) (92) (5,238)
Reclassification to other assets —_ (3) (68) — — {71)
Balance at 31 December 2010 203,226 86,787 _ 30,063 77,706 _ 3,807 401,589
Provision for impairment losses

Balance at 1 January 2010 5721 1,168 2,595 6,675 [2) 16,165
Additions for the year 1,856 1,638 946 2,484 21 6,945
Reclassifications — 25 —_ (25) _ -
Written off for the year {(10) (369) (866) (163) (10} (1418)
Balance at 31 December 2010 7,567 2,462 . 2,675 8,971 17 21,692
Net book value

Balance at 31 December 2010 231,870 82,058 62,076 53,269 7,597 436,870
Balance at 31 December 2009 192,162 81,880 59,600 40,881 6,456 380,979
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for the year cnded 31 December 2010

12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
The Group - by asset class
ol

depots.
storage Machinery.

Cil tanks a~d equipment.

Plants and and gas sarvce vehicles and
builldings propertias stations othars Tatal
RMB mitheons RMB milhans RMB mullions RY'B mihors RME millions

Cost/valuation

Balance at 1 January 2010 61,142 366,089 136,706 395,888 959,825
Additions for the year 259 3,421 1,023 884 5 587
Transferred from construction in progress 5150 58,465 17,889 36,546 118,050
Reclassifications 996 5 325 (1,326) —
Disposals {(767) — (1 675) (5 796) (8 238)
Contributed to a jointly controlled antity {290) — — — (290)
Foreign exchange loss (33) {809) (22) (52) (916)
Reclassification to other assets {204) — (389) 43) (636)
Balance at 31 December 2010 66,253 427171 153,857 426,101 1,073,382
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2010 28,497 172,493 31,723 222,129 454,842
Depreciation charge for the year 2,442 28,196 6,857 20,479 57,974
Reclassifications 259 (9) {21) (229) —
Written back on disposals (319) - (771) (4 867) (5,957)
Foreign exchange loss (i4) (218) {8) (20) (260)
' Reclassification to other assets —_ — (77) (6) (83)
Balance at 31 December 2010 - . _ 30865 200462 37,703 = 237.486 .. . 306,516
' Provision for impairment losses
. | Balance at 1 January 2010 1695 7,875 2,483 8115 20,168
I Additions for the year 6560 1,789 1,070 4 048 7.567
! Reclassifications 4 —_ 7 (11) —_
! Witten off for the year (180) — (762) (627) (1,569)
Balance at 31 December 2010 2,179 9,664 2.798_ B 1_1.525 26,166
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2010 33,209 217,045 113,356 177,090 540,700
Balance 2t 31 December 2009 30,950 185,721 102,500 165,644 484,815
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

12 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The Company - by asset class

Ol
depots.
siorage Machinery,

i tanks a~d equipment,

Plants and and gas sarv.ce vehicles and
buildings propértias stations others Total
RMB millions RMB milians RiB mullions RMB milhors RiMB millons

Cost/valuation

Balance at 1 lanuary 2010 43,332 314,118 114,278 287,719 759,447
Additions for the year 45 3,310 537 376 4,268
Transterred from construction i1n progress 4,450 53,423 14,423 32,608 104,904
Transterred from subsidiaries 157 —_ 172 51 380
Transferred ta subsidianes {175) —_ (495) (72) (742)
Reclassifications 689 5 403 (1,097 —_
Disposals (696) - (1,541) (5.060) (7.297)
Contributed to a josntly controlled entity (290) — — - {250)
Reclassification to othar assets (107} — (370) (42) (519)
Balance at 31 December 2010 . 47,405 370,856 127,407 314,483 . B80,151
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2010 17,792 148,755 27,839 167,917 362,303
Depreciation charge for the year 1,807 22,117 5,444 15,332 44,700
Transferred trom subsidiaries 31 — B4 19 134
Transferred to subsidiaries (106) - (116) {17) (239)
Reclassifications 267 (9 26 (284) —_
Written back on disposais (278) —_ (724) (4 236) (5,238)
Reclassification to other assets —_ —_ (66) (5} (71)
Balanca at 31 December 2010 . 19,513 _ 170883 32,487 } 178,726 . 401,589
Provision for impairment losses

Balance at 1 Januvary 2010 1,396 5,674 2431 6,664 16,165
Addition for the ysar 634 1,789 957 3,565 6,945
Reclassifications 4 — 7 (11) —
Written off for the year {158) — (729) (5313 (1418)
Balance at 31 Dacember 2q10 A 1.8'{6 . 7,463 o 2,666 ) 9,687 o 21,6?2
Net book value

Balance at 31 December 2010 26,016 192,530 92,254 126,070 436,870
Balance at 31 December 2009 24,144 159,683 84,008 113,138 380,979

Notes The additions in the exploration and production segment and o1l and gas properties of the Group &nd the Company lor year ended 31 December 2010 includec RMB
3 389 mullign (2009 RMB 2 013 million) and RMB 3,278 mullion (2009 RMB 1,897 mulhan), respectively of the estimated dismantlemant ¢osts for site restaration

Financial Statements (PRC)

The factor resulting 1n the exploration and production {"E&P™) segment impairment losses of RMB 1.889 million (2009 RMB 1,595 million) of fixed
assets for the year ended 31 December 2010 was high operating and development costs The carrying values of these E&P properties were written
down to respective recaverable amounts which were deterrmined based on the present values of the expected future cash flows of the assets using a
pre tax discount rate 15 6% (2009 13 5%) The o1l and gas pricing was a factor used in the determination of the present values of the expected future
cash flows of the assets and had an impact an the recognition of the asset impairment

Impairment losses recognised on fixed assets of the refining and chemicals segments were RMB 1,649 million (2009 RMB 377 million) and RMB
2,953 milhion (2009 RMB 3,728 million) for the year ended 31 Decamber 2010 These impairment losses relate to certain refining and chemicals
production facihities that are held for use The carrying values of these facilities were written down ta their recoverable amounts that were primarly
determined based on the asset held for use model using the present value of the estimated future cash Tlows of the preduction facihties using the pre
tax discount rates ranging from 15 29 to 15 9% (2009 11 2% to 12 19%,) The primary factor resulting in the impairment losses on fixed assets of the
refintng and chernicals segments was due to higher operating and productron costs caused by the increase in the prices of raw matenals that are not
expected to be covered through an increase in selling price

Provision for impairment losses recogrused on fixed assets of the marketing and distnibution segment of RMB 1,055 million {2009 RMB 1,425%
million) for the year ended 31 December 2010 primarity relate to certain service stations that were closed or chisposed during the year In measuring
the amounts of impairment charges, the carrying amounts of these assets were compared to the present value of the expected future cash flows of the
assets, as well as information about sales and purchases of similar properties in the same geographic area

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no individually stgnificant fixed assets which were pladged

Al 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indmdually significant fixed assets which were temporarily idle or pending for
disposal

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indidually sigmificant fully depreciated fixed assets which were still in use
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lor the year ended 31 December 2019

13 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The Group
Exploraion Marketirg
and and
production Refining distribution Cremucals Ot-ers Total

RMB mill.ons  RMB mulhons  RMB millions  RMBnullicns BMB mullions  RMB millions
Cast/valuation
Balance at 1 January 2010 46,886 13,720 17,410 38,589 3,931 120,536
Additions for the year 56,924 19,746 25,017 13,183 1,620 116,490
Transferred to a jointly controlled entity — - - (17,459) —_ (17 459)
Reclassification — — 219 (219) — —
Dry hole costs written off (4,986) — — — — (4,986)
Transferred to fixed assets {67 922) (11,922) {12,370) (22 S64) (2,872) (118,050)
Reclassification to other assets (528) (270) (2,757) {2,145) (426) {6,126}
Other decreases — (83) (9) — — {92)
Balance at 31 December 2010 ) 30,374 21,191 27,510 8,985 2,253 50,313
Provision for impairmant losses
Balance at 1 January 2010 —_ 83 78 —_ —_ 161
Additians for the year — 516 128 —_ —_ 644
Decreases for the year -— (83) (8) —_ —_ {91)
Balance at 31 December 2010 oL A 516 198 . - o= 714
Naet book value
Balance at 31 December 2010 30,374 20,675 27,312 8,985 2,253 89,599
Balance at 31 December 2009 46,886 13,637 17,332 38,589 3,931 120,375

At 31 December 2010, major construction projects of the Graup are as fallows

Accunlated
intarest
Balarce at et azdtonse Balance at capitzlised at
Buzgated 1 Janwary  {decreases) ior 11 Decembet Percentage o Source o 31 December
Prg act nams anrouT 2010 the yaar 2010 Cimelet on ingng 2010
RWE mill-ons FVE mll gns Ri'E mlhions RMB millions < AMB millions
Changling Crude Oil Quahty Upgrading Project 5,704 1,060 2,504 3,564 649, Bank lcans &
self financing 39
Wuhan 800,000 tonnas per year Ethylens
Construction Project 16,563 459 1,893 2,752 17% Bank loans &
self financing K3
Baihar Refining Qffsite Madification
Patroleum & Chermical Project 6,069 366 2,128 2,491 Alq Bank loans &
self inancing 5
15,000 mullion cubic per year Natural Gas
Capacity Impravement Project 33,700 22665 (20,427) 2,238 86% Bank loans &
salf financing 2,287
Yulin Jinan Pipeline Project 6042 2314 {1,006) 1,308 65% Bank loans &
selt inancing 43

The interest rates per annum at which borrowing costs were capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2010 by the Group and the Company

ranged from 3 0% to 6 5% (2009 3 0% to 6 8%)
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13 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (Continued)

The Company

Explorat on hiareeting
and and

product on Retintng distnibution C-emicals Ctrers Total
RME mmilhars  RME aulhons  RMB millions  BM2 midhens  PMB nullions RMB rilhons

Cost/valuation

Balance at 1 January 2010 45,832 12,418 13,487 36,710 3,924 112,371
Additions for the year 51,746 17,725 16,281 10,606 1,414 97,772
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity — —_ — (17,459) — (17.459)
Reclassification —_ —_ 219 (219) —_ —_
Dry hole costs wnitten off (4,986} — — — — {4,986)
Transferred to fixed assets (62 683) (10,280} (8.291) (20 934) (2,716) (104,904)
Reclassification to other assets {509) (201) (2 005) (2 143) (426) (5,284)
Other decreases —_ (83) (9) — — (92)
Balance at 31 December 2010 . . 29400 _19,579 19682 6,561 219 77418
Provision for impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2010 —_ 83 71 — — 154
Additians for the year _— 516 9 —_ -— 525 e
Decreases for the year —mm (83) (8) —_ —_ (91) !
Balance at 31 December 2010 = L .= 516 72 . - - 588

|

1
Balance at 31 December 2010 29,400 19,063 19,610 6,561 2,186 76,830 :
Balance at 31 December 2009 45832 12,335 13,416 36,710 3,924 112,217

Net book value - i
|
|

Financial Statements (PRC)

107

CHINA PETROLELIM & CHEMICAL CORPORATICN  Annual Renort 2010




Financial Statements {PRC)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

for Lhe year ended 31 December 2010

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group
Land use Non-patant Cperation
rneghts Patents technology rights Othars Total

RMB rmill ons  BME mullions  PMEB mulhions  BRM2 mruthizns RMB mithons  RME ~ilhons
Cost
Batance at 1 January 2010 19,259 3,523 1,518 3,397 1,256 28,953
Additions for the year 4,139 52 1,114 754 411 6,470
Contributed to a jointly controlied entity {350) — — (198) — {548)
Other decreases (25) — — — — (25)
Balance at 31 December 2010 o 23,023 L3575 2,632 3,953 .. 1667 34,850
Accumulated amortisation
Batance at 1 January 2010 2,070 2,383 642 297 620 6,012
Additions for the year 607 221 174 156 188 1,346
Contributed to 2 jointly controlled entity — — — (18) - (18
Qther decreases (9) —_— — — — (9)
Balance at 31 December 2010 A 2,668 _ 2,604 816 435 808 7,331
Provision for impaﬁment losses
Balance at 1 January 2010/31 December 2010 - . 55 F L - 79
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2010 20,355 916 1,792 3,518 859 27,440
Balance at 31 December 2009 17,189 1,085 852 3,100 636 22,862

Amortisation charged to the intangible assets of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 15 RMB 1,279 milhon (2009 RMB 1,002 millron)
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14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Company

Land use Non-patent Operaticn
r1ghts Patents technology nghts Others Total

RMB null ors BRMB milbons RMB mulhions RMB rmalhions RMB milhons RMB mullions
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2010 12,063 2,789 1,365 3,310 914 20,441
Additions for the year 3,473 38 1,111 607 294 5,523
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity {350) —_ —_ (198) —_ (548)
Qther decreases (18) —_ —_ —_ — (18)
Balance at 31 December 2010 o A 15,168 = 2827 = 2476 3719 1208 25,398
Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2010 B52 2,141 559 287 510 4,349
Additions for the year 318 169 170 151 104 912
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity — — — (18) — (18)
Other decreases {4) — — — — {4)
Balance at 31 December 2010 . 1,166 = 2,310 729 . 420 614 . 5,239
Provision for impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2010/31 December 2010 —_ 55 24 .- - 79 :
Net book value 1
Balance at 31 Decemnbar 2010 14,002 462 1,723 3,299 594 20,080 !

\

Amortisation charged to the intangible assets of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 1s RMB 905 rmulhion {2009 RMB 676 million)

i
Balance at 31 Decernber 2009 11,211 593 782 3.023 404 16,013 '

Financial Statements (PRC)
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

15 GOODWILL

Goodwill 15 allocated to the following Group's cash generating units

Net book

Balance I~crease/ Provision “ar value at

at 1 January (decrease) ‘or impairment 31 December

20.0 the year losses 2010

Mame of investes RMB mill.ans RMB mill ons RMB millions RMB miflions
Sinopec Beijing Yanshan Branch (“Sinopec Yanshan") 1,157 — — 1,157
Sinopec Zhenhai Refining and Chemical Branch (*Sinopec Zhenhai™) 4,043 —_ —_ 4,043
Sinopec Qilu Branch (“Sinopec Qlu™) 2,159 — (2 159) —
Sinopec Yangz Petrochemical Company Limited (“Sinopec Yangzi™) 2,737 — (2 737y —
Sinopec Shengli Oil Field Dynamic Company Limited (“Dynamic”) 1,361 — {1,361) —_
Hang Kong service stations 926 {31) — 895
Multiple units without indwidually significant goodwill 1,780 432 @) 2203
Total 14,163 401 (6,266 ) 8,238

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of purchase over the fair value of the underlying assets and habulibhes The recoverable amounts of the above
cash generating units are deterrmined based on value in use calculations The calculations for Sinopec Yanshan, Sinopec Zhenhai, Simopec Qilu,
Sinopec Yangzi and Hong Kong service stations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by managemant covering a one year
period and forecast on market supply and demand for the second to the fifth year based on market research performed by an external research
institution Cash flows beyond the five year period are maintained constant The calculation for Dynamic use cash flow projection based on reserve
estimation performed by an external reserve valuer and management expectation on crude oif price The pre tax discount rates range from 15 2% to
16 8%, (2009 11 2% to 13 6%)

\

‘ Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations for these entities are the gross margin and sales volume Management determined the budgeted
| gross margin based on the gross margin achieved in the period immediately before the budget period and management's expectation on the future

[ trend of the prices of crude ail and petrochemical products The sales volume was based on the production capacity and/or the sales volume in the

‘ period immediately before the budget period, and the forecast en market supply and demand based on market research performed by an external

} research institution

During the year 2010, the carrying amounts of the cash generating units Sinopec Qilu, Sinopec Yangzi and Dynamic, were determined to be higher
, than thesr recoverable amounts The reduction tn recoverable amounts of Sinopec Qifu and Sinopec Yangzi was primarnily due to the drap in future cash
flow projections as a result of intense market competition caused by an increase in future supply of relevant petrochemical products in the internattonal
market The reduction in recoverable amount of Dynamic was a result of unsuccessful development drilling «n this cash generating unst The total
imparrment losses recogrised on the goodwill of Sinopec Qilu, Sinopec Yangz) and Dynarmic were RMB 6,257 million for the year 2010 Management

g belteves any reasonably pessible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of Sinopec Yanshan, Sinopec Zhenhai and Hong
% Kong service stations are based would not cause carrying amounts of these cash generating units to exceed their recoverable amounts
£
£ 16 LONG-TERM DEFERRED EXPENSES
-]
@ Long term deferred expenses primarily represent prepaid rental expenses over one year and catalysts expenditures
L]
§ 17 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
[ ™
The Group
Assets Liabilities t balance
2010 2009 2010 2009 2009
RMB millions  RMB millions  RMB millions  RME milhens RMB muilligns
Current
Receivables and inventories 3,507 3,207 —— — 3,507 3,207
Accruals 1,588 815 - — 1588 Bl5
Cash flow hedges 31 7 —_ (18) 31 (11)
Non current
Fixed assets 7,961 5,601 (794) (1178) 7,167 4,423
Accelerated deprecration —_ — (14,142) (8.410) (14 142) (8,410)
Tax value of losses carried forward 2,116 3,954 — — 2,116 3.954
Embedded derwvative component
of the Convertible Bonds _ —_ (64) (96) {64) (96)
Qthers 375 89 17) {5) 358 94
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 15,578 13,683 {15,017) (9.707) 561 3,976

110

Annual Report 2010 CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPORATION




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

17 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Contrnued)

The Company
Assats Liabilities Nat halance
2010 200¢ 2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions PMB millions RMB millions RMBS miflicns  RMB millions RMB millians

Current
Receivables and inventones 3.084 2,928 — — 3084 2,928
Accruals 1.617 811 — —_— 1,617 811
Non current
Fixed assets 65,852 4,803 _(35) (429) 6,817 4,374
Accelerated deprectation — — (7.836) (4,015) {7.836) {4,015)
Embedded dervative component of

the Convertible Bonds — — (64) (96) (64) (96)
Others 279 B4 (16) (4) 263 50
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 11,832 8,596 {7,951) {4,544) 3,881 4,052

At 31 December 2010, certain subsidiaries of the Company did not recognise the tax vatue of losses carried forward of RMB 4,215 milhon (2009 RMB
5,555 million), of which RMB 369 million (2009 RMB 472 million) was incurred for the year ended 31 December 2010, because it was not probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised The tax value of these losses carned forward of RMB 64 mulhion, RMB 461 mullion, RMB 2,933 million, RMB
388 milhion and RMB 369 mullion will expire in 2011 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively

Periodically, management performed assessment on the probability that taxable profit will be available over the perniod which the deferred tax assets
can be realised or utilised In assessing the probability, both positive and negative evidence was considered, including whether 1t 1s probable that the
operations will have future taxable profits over the periods which tha deferrad tax assets are deductible or utilised and whather the tax losses resuit
from tdentifiable causes which are unlikely to recur

18 DETAILS OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

At 31 December 2010, impairment losses of the Group are analysed as follows

Balance at Balance at
1 lanuary Provision for Written back Written off 31 December

2010 the year for the year for the year 2010
RMB millions AMB milhons RMZ mullicns RMB millians RMB millions

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In¢cluded

Accounts recevable 7 1,921 43 (130} (517) 1,322
Other recevables 8 2,486 308 {(263) (455) 2,076
4,407 356 (393) {972) 3,398

Provision for diminutian
In value of inventorias 10 1,038 1,087 [¢)) (957) 1,091
Long term equhty investments 11 197 11 — (24) 184
Fixed assets 12 20 168 7,567 — (1,569) 26,166
Construction in progress 13 161 644 — (81) 714
Intangible assets 14 79 —_ e - 79
Goodwill 15 1,391 6,266 — — 7,657
Others 49 — {16) (1) 32
Total 27,490 15,931 (486) {3,614) 39,321

At 31 December 2010, impairment losses of the Company are analysed as follows

Balarce at Balance at
1 January Provision for Written back Written aff 31 December

2010 tha year for the year for the year 2010
RMB millions RMB nullons RME millions RMEB millians RMB millions

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Included

Accounts receivable 7 1526 42 (118) {363) 1,087
Other receivables B8 2998 206 (115) {833} 2 256
4,524 248 (233) (1,196) 3,343

Provision for diminution
in value of mventories 10 582 733 (75) (551) 695
Long term equity investments 11 147 6,277 - {24) 6,400
Fixed assets 12 16,165 6,945 — (1,418) 21,692
Construction In progress 13 154 525 — (91 588
Intangible assets 14 79 — — — 79
Others 45 — (16) — 29
Total 21,696 14,734 (324) (3,280) 32,826

See the note of each class of assets for the reason for its impairment losses recognised for the year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 Decembear 2010

19 SHORT-TERM LOANS

The Group's and the Cornpany’s short term loans represent

Tre Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milions RMB millions RMBm:hons
Short term bank loans 11,380 21,587 2,400 5,050
Loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 17,918 13,313 4829 678
Total 29,298 34,900 7,229 5,728

At 31 December 2010, the Group's and the Company's weighted average mterest rates per annum on short term loans were 2 74, (2009 2 5%) and
4 8¢, (2009 4 6%), respectively The majornty of the above loans are by credit

Except for the balances disclosed in Note 46, there 15 no amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included in the
balance of short term loans

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no significant gverdue short term loan

20 BILLS PAYABLE

Bills payable primarily represented hank accepted tills for the purchase of matenal, goods and products The repayment term 1s normally within one
year

21 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Except for the balances disclosed i Note 46, there 1s no amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included in the
balance of accounts payable

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had ne individually significant accounts payable aged over one year
22 ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Except for the balances disclosed in Nots 46, there 15 no amount due to shareholders who hold 53 or maore voting right of the Company included in the
balance of advances from customers

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no tndividually significant advances from customers aged over one year
23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PAYABLE

At 31 December 2010 and 2004, the Group's and the Company's employee benefits payable primarily represented wages payable and social insurance
payable

24 TAXES PAYABLE

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB millions RME mullicns RMB millions RMB ~llions

Recoverable value added tax (4.921) (9137 {5 287) (8.307)
Consumption tax 17125 14,586 12,50% 11,686
Income tax 10,754 3.034 7,620 1953
Special ol income tevy 5,249 3,719 5,242 3703
Resources tax 779 796 711 722
Other taxes 4 828 3,779 3,807 3 060
Total 33,814 16,777 24,598 12,817

25 OTHER PAYABLES
At 31 December 2010 and 2009 the Group's and the Company's other payables primarnly represented payables for constructions

Except for the balances disctosed in Note 45, there i1s no amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included n the
balance of other payables

At 21 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no indmdually sigmficant other payables aged over three years
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26 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
The Group's and the Company's non current liabihities due within one year represent

Tra Group Ths Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RME millions RMB millions RMB miitlions RMB milions

Long-term bank loans

= Renmunki loans 3.683 5,733 3,583 4,232
- Japanese Yen loans 308 306 307 306
- US Dollar loans 536 562 35 79
- Euro loans 27 85 27 85
. . 4554 6686 3952 . 4,702
Long-term other loans
- Renminbi loans 73 67 5 —
- US Dollar loans 12 10 2 3
. . & ____ . 1 .3
Long-term loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries
— Renminbs loans 150 330 150 160
- US Dollar loans 741 2,223 — —
A | ., B8:;1 . 25583 150 R _ 180
Long-term loans due within one year 5,530 9.316 4,109 4 865

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the Company had no significant overdue long term loans
27 LONG-TERM LOANS
The Graup's and the Company’s long term loans represent

ne Group The Company
Interast rate and final mat 4] 2009 10 2009

RMB millions RMEB mulkions RMB milli RMB mifhons

Long-term bank loans

Renminbi loans Interest rates ranging from interest
free to 5 649% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with

| |
i
x
|
|

maturities through 2025 23,161 18,869 22,886 17,064 o
Japanese Yen loans Interest rates ranging from g
2 6% to 2 949 per annum £
at 31 December 2010 with 2
matunities through 2024 1,488 1,660 1,488 1,660 3
US Dollar loans Interest rates ranging from interest b
iree to 7 8% per annum §
at 31 Dcember 2010 with 2
maturities through 2031 972 3,171 301 390 -
Euro loans Interest rates were 6 5684 per
annum at 31 December 2010 with
maturities through 2011 27 116 27 116
Less Current portion 4,554 6,686 3,852 4,702
Long-term bank loans o L _ 21094 _ 173130 20,750 .. las28
Long-term other loans
Renminbi loans Interest free to 4 325, per annum
at 31 December 2010 with
maturities through 2013 250 73 151 5
US Dollar loans Interest rates ranging from

interest free to 4 89%, per annum
at 31 December 2010 with

matunties through 2015 256 29 16 19
Less Current portion 85 77 7 3
Long-term other loans . . ] 191 .23 160 21
Long-term loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries
Renmnbi loans Interest rates ranging from interest

free to 6 549 per anaum
at 31 December 2010 with

maturnties through 2020 37,760 37,330 37,617 37,160
uUSs Dollar loans Interest rates were 0 92% per

annum at 31 December 2010 with

matunties through 2011 741 7,030 — —
Less Current portion 891 2,553 150 160
Long-term loans from Sinepec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 37,610 41,807 _ 37,467 37,000
Total 58 895 58,962 58,377 51,549
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

27 LONG-TERM LOANS ({Continued)

The maturity analysis of the Group's and the Company's long term loans i1s as follows

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions BMEB rmllicns RMB millions RMB midlions
Between one and two years 4,655 10,982 4 625 31,944
Between two and five years 17 546 11,181 17,105 10,885
After five years 36,694 36,799 36,647 36 720
Total long-term loans 58,895 58,962 58,377 51,549

At 31 December 2010, the top five long term loans (including long term loans due within one year) of the Group are set out below

Remaining Remairing

balance halance

Borrowing Maturity at 31 December  at 31 Decerber

dates dates Currency Interestrate 2010 2008

RMB millions RMB m lhons

Singpec Group Company 18 October 2000 31 December 2020 RMB interest free 35 561 35,561
China Development Bank 20 January 2005 20 December 2013 RMB 5 35% 10,000 13,000
Agricultural Bank of China 2 March 2010 1 March 2013 RMB 4 B6Y 3,500 —
Bank of China 31 August 2010 31 August 2013 RMB 4 86% 2,000 —
Bank of China 19 January 2010 18 Novermmber 2013 RMB 5 04% 2,000 —

Except for the balances disclosed in Note 46, there 1s no amount due to shareholders who hold 5% or more voting right of the Company included i the
balance of long term lcans

Long term loans are pnimarity unsecured, and carned at amortised costs

!
}
|

28 DEBENTURES PAYABLE

' ! The Group The Company
' E 2010 2009 2010 2009
E RMB millions RMB millians RMB millions RMB rllions
! Short term eorporate bonds (1) 1,000 31,000 — 30,000
Debentures payable
- Corporate Bonds (1) 78,500 58 500 78 500 58,500
- Convertible Bonds (i) 10,667 10,371 10,667 10,371
- Convertible Bonds With Warrants (iv) 26 013 24 892 26013 24,892
115,180 93,763 115,180 93,763

(1) A subsidiary of the Group 1ssued 330 day corporate bonds of face value at RMB 1 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 3
April 2009 at par value of RMB 100 The effective yield of the 330 day corporate bonds I1s 2 059 per annum The corporate bonds matured in
Marech 2010

Financial Staterments (PRC)

The Company 1ssued one year corporate bonds of face value at RMB 15 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 16 July 2009
Thae effective yield of the one year corporate bonds 15 1 88% per annum and interest 1s paid annually The corporate bonds matured in July 2010

The Company 1ssued one year corporate bonds of face value at RMB 15 billion to corporate investors inthe PRC debenture market on 12 November
2009 The effective yield of the one year carporate bonds 1s 2 30% per annum and interest 1s paid annually The corporate bonds matured in
November 2010

A subsidiary of the Company 1ssued ane year corporate bonds of face value at RMB 1 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on
22 June 2010 at par value of RMB 100 The effective yield of the one year corporate bonds 1s 3 27% per annum and interest i1s paid annually The
corporate bonds will mature in June 2011
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28 DEBENTURES PAYABLE (Continued)

(1) The Company 1ssued ten year corporate bonds of RMB 3 5 tullion to PRC citizens as well as PRC legal and non legal persons on 24 February 2004
The ten year corporate band bears a fixed interest rate of 4 61% per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current period
was included in cther payables

The Company 15sued ten year corparate bonds of RMB 5 billion to corporate investors in the PRC on 10 May 2007 The ten year corporate bond
bears a fixed interest rate of 4 209, per annum and interest 1S paid annually Interest payable for the current period was included in other payables

The Company 1ssued five year corporate bonds of RMB 8 5 billion to corporate investors in the PRC on 13 November 2007 The five year corperate
bond bears a fixed interest rate of 5 4095 per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current period was included In other
payables

The Company 1ssued ten year carporate bonds of RMB 11 5 billian to corporate investers tn the PRC on 13 Novermber 2007 The ten year corporate
bond bears a fixed interest rate of 5 689, per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current period was included in other
payables

The Company issued three year corporate bonds of RMB 10 billion to corporate wnvestors in the PRC debenture market on 27 March 2009 The
three year corporate bond bears a fixed interest rate of 2 259, per annum and interest 1s paid annually interest payable for the current period was
included in other payables

The Company 1ssued three year corporate bonds of RMB 20 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 26 June 2009 The three
year corporate bond bears a fixed interest rate of 2 4B, per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current peried was
included i other payables

The Company 1ssued five year corporate bonds of RMB 11 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 21 May 201C The five year
corporate bond bears a fixed interest rate of 3 759% per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current period was included
n ather payables

The Company issued ten year corporate bonds of RMB S billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 21 May 2010 The ten year
corperate bond bears a fixed interest rate of 4 059 per annum and interest 1s paid annually Interest payable for the current period was included
In other payables

(i} On 24 Apnil 2007, the Company 1ssued zero coupon convertible bonds due 2014 with an aggregate principal amount of HK$11 7 billion (the
“Convertible Bonds™) The Convertible Bonds are convertible into shares of the Company from 4 June 2007 onwards at a price of HK$10 76 per
share, subject to adjustment for, amongst other things, subdivision or consohdation of shares, bonus 1ssues, rights 15sues, capital distribution,
change of control and other events, which have a dilutive effect an the 1ssued share capital of the Company (“the Conversion component™) Unless
previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the Convertible Bonds will be redeemed on the maturity date at 121 069% of the
principal amgunt The Company has an early redemption option at any time after 24 April 2011 (subject to certain ¢ritena) (“the Early Redemption
Option™) and & cash settlement option when the holders exercise their converston right (“the Cash Settlement Option™) The holders also have an
early redemption aption to require the Company to redeem all or some of the Convertible Bonds on 24 April 2011 at an early redemption amount
of 111 5444 of the principal amount

At 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts of hability and derivative components, representing the Conversion component, the Early Redemption
Option and the Cash Settlement Ophion, of the Convertible Bonds were RMB 10,326 mulhion (2009 RMB 10,153 million) and RMB 340 mullion
{2009 RMB 218 million), respectively No conversion of the Convertible Bonds has occurred up to 31 December 2010

Flnancial Statements (PRC)

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the fair value of the derivative component of the Convertible Bonds was calculated using the Black Scholas Model
The following are the major inputs used in the Black Scholes Model

2019 2009

Stock price of underlying shares HKD 7 44 HKD 6 91
Conversion price HKD 10 76 HKD 10 76
Option adjusted spread 125 basis points 150 basis points
Average risk free rate 146% 087%
Average expected hife 1 B years 2 8B years

Any change in the major inputs into the Black Scholes Mode! will result tn changes in the fair vaiue of the derivative component The change in the
fair value of the conversion optian from 31 December 2009 to 31 December 2010 resulted in a loss from changes in fair vatue of RMB 127 millicn
{2009 loss from changes in fair value of RMB 218 rmillion), which has been recorded as “loss from changes in fair value”™ in the income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2010

The inihal carrying amount of the hability component 1s the residual amount, which 1s the cash proceeds from i1ssuance of debentures after
deducting the allocated issuance cost of the Convertible Bonds relating to the hability component and the fair value of the derivative camponent as
at 24 April 2007 Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 4 199, to the adjusted
lability component [f the aforesaid derivative component has not been separated out and the entire Convertible Bonds 15 considered 25 the hability
campanent, the effective interest rate would have been 3 03%
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28 DEBENTURES PAYABLE (Continved)

(v)On 26 February 2008, the Company 1ssued convertible bonds with stock warrants due 2014 with an aggregate principal amount of RMB 30 billion
in the PRC (the “Bonds with Warrants™) The Bonds with Warrants, which bear a fixed interest rate of 0 809 per annum payable annually, were
1ssued at par value of RMB 100 The Bonds with Warrants were guaranteed by Sinopec Group Company Every ten Bonds with Warrants are entitled
to warrants (the “warrants”) to subscribe 50 5 A shares of the Company The warrants were exercisable duning the five trading days between 25
February and 3 March 2010 During the year ended 31 December 2010, 188,292 units of warrants were exercised at an exercise price of RMB
19 15 per share {Note 30), the share prermum of RMB 2 million has been recorded as capital reserve, and the remaining warrants were expired

The imitial recognition of the liability compaonent of the Bond with Warrants 1s measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of mnitial recogrition to similar habihties that do not have a conversion
option Interest expense 1s calculated using the effective interest methad by applying the effective interest rate of 5 40%, to the hability component

Upon the expiry of the warrants, the amount initially recogmsed as the equity component in capital reserve of RMB 6,879 million was transierred
to share premium

29 PROVISIONS

Prowvisions prumarily represent provision for future dismantiement costs of ail and gas properties The Group has established certain standardised
measures for the dismantlement of 1ts retired o1l and gas properties by making reterence to the industry practices and 1s thereafter constructively
obligated to take dismanttement measures of 1ts retired o1l and gas properties Movement of provision of the Group's obligations for the dismantlement
of its retired il and gas properties 15 as follow

The Com

2010 2009

RMB millions RMB mithons

Balance at 1 January 11,789 9,547 10,882 8,794

Provigion for the year 3,389 2,013 3,278 1,887

“ Accretion expenses 574 447 533 405

Utilised for the year (242) (218) {231) (214)

! Balance at 31 Decemb 15,510 11,789 14,462 10,882
f
|

30 SHARE CAPITAL

2009

IMB rmilhons
Registered, issued and fully paid

69,922,039,774 domestic histed A shares (2009 69,921,951,000) of RMB 1 00 each 69,922 69,922
16,780,488,000 overseas hsted H shares (2009 16,780,488,000) of RMB 1 00 each 16,780 16,780
86,702 86,702

The Company was established on 25 February 2000 with a registered capital of 68 8 billion domestic state owned domestic shares with a par value of
RMB 1 00 each, which were all held by Sincpec Group Company (Note 1)

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 25 July 2000 and the approval from relevant
authorities, the Company 1ssued 15,102,4 39,000 H shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each in its initial globat offering i October 2000 The shares
include 12,521,864,000 H shares and 25,805,750 Amencan Depositary Shares ( ADSs”, each representing 100 H shares) at prices of HK $ 1 59 and
US$ 20 645 respactively As part of the offering 1 678,049,000 shares were offered in placing to Hong Kong and overseas investors

Fimancial Statements {PRC)

In luly 2001, the Company 1ssued 2,800,000,000 domestic hsted A shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each at RMB 4 22

On 25 September 2006, the shareholders of {isted A shares accepted the proposal offered by the shareholders of state owned A shares whereby the
shareholders of state owned A shares agreed to transfer 2 8 state owned A shares to shareholders of histed A shares for every 10 listed A shares they
held, in exchange for the approval for the listing of all state owned A shares &6,337,951,000 domestic stated owned A shares have been granted
trading right upon settlement of the above consideration The 784,000,000 stated owned A shares paud to the sharehaolders of the Listed A shares ware
tradable on 10 October 2006

On 3 March 2010, the Company i1ssued 88,774 domestic listed A shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each at RMB 19 15 as a result of exarcise of
188,292 warrants entitled to the Bonds with Warrants (Note 28(v)) with a net proceeds of RMB 1,700,022

All A shares and H shares rank parn passu 1n all matenal aspects

KPMG Huazhen had vertfied the above paid in capital The capital verification reports, KPMG C {(2000) CV No 0007, KPMG € (2001) CV No 0002,
KPMG C {2001) CV No 0006 and KPMG A (2010) CR No Q008 were 1ssuad on 22 February 2000, 27 February 2001, 23 July 2001 and 15 Apnl 2010
respectively
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31 CAPITAL RESERVE

The mavements in capital reserve are as follows

The Group The Compeny
RKiB PM3
milltans m llions
Balance at 1 January 2010 38,202 38,234
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedge, net of deferred tax (Note 43) (221) —
Changes in fair value of avalable for sale financial assets net of deferred tax (1) 9 (9)
Shere of other comprehensive income of associates (533) {533)
Consideration for the combination of entities under common control (Note 1) {13,177 —
Warrants exercised (Note 28 (v)) 2 2
Acguisition of minonty interests of subsidianes (1) (9) —
Reclassified to retained profits (su) 4,867 —
Government grants 321 257
Others (29) (29)
Balance at 31 December 2010 29,414 37,922

The capital reserve represents mainly (a) the difference between the total amount of the par value of shares issuad and the amount of the net assets
transferred from Sinopec Group Company in connection with the Reorganisation, {b) share premiums derived from issuances of H shares and A shares

by the Campany and excess of cash paid by investors over their proportionate shares (n share capital, and the proportionate shares of unexercised A
partion of the Bond with Warrants at the expiration date, (c) difference between consideration paid for the combination of entities uncar common |
contral over the carrying amount of the net assets acquired, and {d) adjustment for changes in fair value of available for sale financial assets i
Notes
\
(1) The available for sale financial assets held by the Group and the Company are carned 81 fair value with any change w fair value net of deferred tax, recognisad directly |
in capital reserve ‘ '
]
(n) During the eurrent year, the Group acquired minarity interests from subsidiaries The difference between the considerations peid over total amounts of the net assets ‘ h
acquired was recognised in capital reserve
I
() The Greup acquired $31 from Sinapee Group Company during the current year (Note 1) According to the sccaunting policy of business combination invelving entities ‘ !
under common control (Note 3(1)(a)) the Group s proportionate shares in retained profits’ credit balance of S5 on the acquisition date were transierred to capital i ,
reserve, and the Group’s propertionate shases of foreign currency exchange difference's debit balance of 551 on the acquisition date were transferred out from capital
reserve
g
32 SURPLUS RESERVES &
A
Maovements in surplus reserves are as follows E’
2
“he Group ang the Company 3
Statutory Discreiionary K
surplus reserve surplus reserve Tetal §
RME millizns PME millisns RMB miflions =z
Balance at 1 January 2010 48,031 67,000 115,031
Appropriatron 6,680 20,000 26,680
Balance at 31 December 2010 54,711 87,000 141,711

The Articles of Association of the Company and the PRC Company Law have set out the following profit appropriation plans

{a) 0% of the net profit 1s transferred to the statutory surplus reserve In the event that the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital, no
transfer 1s needed,

{b) After the transfer to the statutory surplus reserve, the directors authorised the transfer of RMB 20,000 million, subject to the sharehalders'
approval at the Annual General Meeting, to discretionary surplus reserve
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33 OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING COSTS

Tra Group The Campany
2010 2009 2010 2005
RMB millions BB milhons RMB millions RMRB ~uhons
Income from princtpal operations 1,876,758 1,315,915 1,153,494 849,049
Income from ather operations 36 424 29,137 35,001 27,254
Tatal 1,913,182 1,345,052 1,188,495 878,303
Operating cost 1,537,131 1,029,443 900,404 638,169

The income from principal operations represents revenue from sales of crude oil, natural gas, petroleum and chemical products net of value added tax
Operating costs primarily represents the products cost refated to the principal operations The Group s segmental information 1s sat out tn Note 51

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue from sales to top five customers amounted to RMB 154,500 milhon (2009 RMB 104,900 million)

which accounted for 8% (2009 B8%) of total operating incame of the Group

34 SALES TAXES AND SURCHARGES

Tre Group

2010
RMB millions

The Company

2008 2010 2009

RME milhians RMB millions

BMB midlions

Consumptton tax 117,928 110,206 89,918 85,951
| Special o1l Income levy 19,760 7.145 18,548 6,738
City construction tax 11,277 9212 9,159 7,669
Education surcharge 6,339 5,043 5,229 4,240
Resources tax 1,318 857 1274 815
Business tax 567 421 458 328
Total 157,189 132,884 124,586 105,741

The applicable tax rate of the sales taxes and surcharges are set out (n Note 4

35 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Tne Group

The Company

2010 2008 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milhans RMB millions RMB milhions
Interest expenses incurred 8,664 9,783 7,336 7,589
g Less Capitalised interest expenses 1,266 2,621 1,247 2 498
=8 Net interest expenses 7,398 7,162 6 0B9 5,081
£ Accretion expenses (Note 29) 574 447 533 405
£ Interest income (660) (277) (290) (107)
= Foreign exchange loss 609 345 302 236
f'_“ Foreign exchange gain (1,074) (425) {538) {308)
ke Total 6,847 7,248 6,096 5,317
[}
=
(™™

36 EXPLORATION EXPENSES

Exploration expenses include geological and geophysical expenses and written off of dry hole costs

37 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Tne Group

Thne Comparry

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB millians RMB millicns RMB millions RMB millions
Recervables {37) (53) 15 {108)
Inventories 1,010 216 664 61
Goodwill/Lang term equity investments 6,277 5 8,277 5
Fixed assets 7,567 7,133 5,945 6,587
Construction in progress 644 73 525 69
Intangible assets — 79 — 79
Others (16) - (16) —
Total 15,445 7,453 14,410 6,693
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38 LOSS FROM CHANGES [N FAIR VALUE

Changes in fair value of financial assets and habihties

Tre Group
2010 2009

RME mullions

RMB millions

Tre Company

2010
RMB millions

2009
RMB milhons

held for trading during the year 52 147 95 63
Fair vatue loss on the derwative component

of the Convertitble Bonds (Note 28{u)} 127 218 127 218
Total 179 365 222 281

39 INVESTMENT INCOME

Tra Group
2010 2009

RMB mullinng

RMB millions

The Company

2010
RMB millions

2009
RMB ~illons

Income from investment accounted for under cost method 132 40 18,706 10,456
lncome from tnvestment accounted for under equity method 5,390 2,897 3,179 1,920
tnvestment income from disposal of long term equity invastments 107 30 949 (8)
Investment income from disposal of avallable for sale financial assets 3 226 - —
Investment (loss)/income from disposal of financial

assets and habihties held for trading (3) 229 5 13 ¥
Gain/(loss) from inetfective portion of cash flow hedge 16 (16) - —
Otners 26 83 234 73 oty
Total 5,671 3.589 23,073 12,456 "

40 NON-OPERATING INCOME

Tne Groun
2010 2009

RMB mullizns

RMB millians

The Company
2010
RMB miilions

2009
BMB ~ilhons

Gain on disposal of non current assets 466 A57 430 320
Others 1642 818 1,373 780
Total 2,108 1,275 1,803 1,100

41 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

o

The Group The Company g

2010 2008 2010 2009 S

RM8 millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB miihons g

Loss on dispasal of non current assets 213 246 141 210 2
Fines, penalties and compensation 69 159 64 155 'f
Denations 177 174 169 166 2
Cthers 823 822 642 677 5
Total 1,282 1,401 1,016 1,208 “

42 |INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e Group
2010 2009

RIB millxans

RMB millions

The Company
2010
RMB millions

2009
RMB mihons

Prowision for PRC income tax for the year 22,177 19,229 14,426 12,387
Deferred taxation 3,457 874 171 (1,295)
Adjustment for over provision for income tax

in respect of preceding year {299) (512} (340 (566)
Total 25,335 19,591 14,257 10,526
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42 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between actual tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates 1s as follows

Tre Group The Campany
2010 2005 2010 2008
RMB millions RMB millizns RMB millions RMB millions
Profit befare taxation 102,178 B&1ll2 81 055 60,051
Expected mcome tax expense at a tax rate of 25% 25,545 21,528 20,264 15,013
Tax effect of non deductible expenses 2,361 326 2,249 214
Tax effect of non taxable income {1.815) (1,571) (6 B64) (3,552)
Tax effect of preferential tax rate (Note) {1,525) {1,621) {1.052) (583)
Etfect of income taxes fram foreign operations 1 excess
of taxes at the PRC statutory tax rate (Note) 2,639 2,006 _ —_
Tax effect of utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses and temporary difterences {},663) (683) — -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 92 118 — —_
Adjustment for over provision for income tax
in respect of preceding year (299) (512) {340) (566)
Actual income tax expense 25,335 19,591 14,257 10,526

Nate The prowtsion for current income tax I1s based on a statutory rate of 25% of the assessable income of the Group as deterrnened in accordance with the refevant income
tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain enhitigs of the Group, which are taxed at preferential rates of 15% or 225, and the fareign operation in the
Republie of Angola ("Angola®) that 15 taxed at 50% of the assessable income as determined 1n accardanca with the relevant income tax rules and reguiations of Angala

43 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income

. The Group
2010 2009
Belore-tax Tax Net-oi-tax Before-tax Tax Mat-of -tax
amaount benefit amount amowuni paneiit amgunt
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB mullicns  RMB millions  RMB m lhons
Cash flow hedges (263) 42 (221) 65 (1) 54
- Avallable for sale financial assets (9) — ()] (227) 52 (175)
-4 Share of other comprehensive
%— Income of associates {533) —_ (533) 806 - 806
] Translation ditference in foreign
E currency statements (1,360) — {1 360) {4) — (4)
g Other comprehensive income {2,165) 42 - (2,123) 640 41 681
"
g The Company
3

2010 2005

Beiore-tax Tax Net-of-tax Befzre-tax Tax Net-of-tax

amount benelit amount amount berefit amount

RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMZ mallions FMB nullions  RMB m llans

Available for sale financial assets (9) — {9) 24 - 24
Share of other comprehenstve

income of associates (533) — {533) 806 — 806

Other comprehensive income {542) — {542) 830 — 830
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43 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

{b) Reclassification adjustments relating to components of other comprehensive income

Tre Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB millions BME midlhigns RMB millions EME millicns

Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging

instruments recognised during the year {682) (2,058) — —
Amounts transferred to imbial carrying amount of hedged items 53 257 — —
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transferred

to the operating costs for the year 366 1,866 — —
Net deferred tax benefit / (expense) recogntsed
in other comprehensive income 42 {11) — —
Net movement during the year recognised
mn other comprehensive incorme {221) 54 — —
Available-for-sale financlal assets
Changes in fair value recogrised during the year (6) (1) 9 24
Gain on dispesal transferred to profit and loss (Note 39) 3) (226) — —
Net deferred tax benefit recognised In other camprehensive income — 52 — — .
Net movement during the year recognised T
in other comprehensive income )] {175) {9) 24 ;

Share of other comprehensive income tn associates
Met movernem during the year recogmsed
in other comprehensive income (533) 806 {533) 806
Translation diiference tn foreign currency statements
Net movement during the year recognised
tn other comprehensive income (1,360) {4) — —

Financial Statements (PRC)
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44 DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends of ordinary shares declared after the balance sheet date
Pursuant to a resolution passed at the Directors' meeting on 25 March 2011, a final dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of
RMB 0 13 per share totalling RMB 11,271 million was proposed for shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting

{b) Dividends of ordinary shares declared during the year
Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Assoctation and a resolution passed at the Director’s meeting on 20 August 2010, an intenm dividends 1n
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of RMB O OB per share (2009 RMB 0 07 per share) totatling RMB 6,936 million (2002 RMB 6,069
milhon) was declared

Pursuant to the shareholders” appraval at the Annuzal General Meeting on 18 May 2010, a final dividend of RMB 0 11 per share totalling RMB 9,537
million in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 was declared

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting on 22 May 2009, a final dividend of RMB 0 08 per share totalling RMB 7,803
rmillion 1n respact of the year ended 31 December 2008 was declared

43 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(2) Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

The Group The Gompany
2010 2009 2010 2009
I RMB millions RMB mulhions RMB millions AMB ™illions
Net profit 76,843 66,521 66,798 49,525
Add Impairment losses on assets 15,445 7.453 14,410 6,693
Depreciation of fixed assets 57,974 53,044 44,700 40109
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,279 1,002 905 676
Dry hole costs 4986 4,761 4,986 4,761
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets {253) (211) {289) {110)
! Fair value loss 179 365 222 281
Financial expenses 6,847 7,248 6,096 5,317
Investment income (5,671) (3,589) (23.073) (12,4586)
Increase in deferred tax assets (1,853) {206) (3,236) (1,357)
Increase in deferred tax habilhities 5,310 1,080 3407 62
Increase in inventories (15,828) (45,822) (14,840) ¢18,589)
g (increase)/decrease in operating recewvables {38,148) 7.353 (25,284) 9,246
& Increase in operating payables 64 152 67,010 51,383 33,944
2 Net cash flow from operating activities 171,262 166,009 126,185 118,102
£
§ {b) Net change in cash and cash equivalents
(%]
s The Group The Campany
H 2010 2009 2010 2009
c RMB millions RiMB milhicns RMB millions RMB ~illions
Cash balance af the end of the year 130 140 110 111
Less Cash balance at the beginning of tha year 140 161 111 141
Add Cash equivalents at the end of the year 16,878 8,642 11 771 4,589
Less_Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year B 642 6,879 4,589 2,086
Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 8,226 1,742 7,181 2,473

(c) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents held by the Group and the Company is as follows

Cash at bank and on hand

The Group
2010

RMB millions

2009
RMB mulhions

Tre Company

2010
RME millions

2009
RME millions

= Cash on hand 130 140 110 111
— Demand deposits 16,878 8,642 11,771 4 589
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,008 8,782 11,881 4,700
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46 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Related parties having the ability to exercise control over the Group

The name of the company China Petrochemical Corporation

Organisation code 10169286 X

Registered address No 22, Chaoyangmen North Street, Chaoyang District, Beipng

Principal activities Exploration, preduction, storage and transportation (including pipeline transportation), sales and

utihsation of crude o1l and natural gas, refining, wholesale and retail of gasoline kerosene and
diesel, production, sales, storage and transportation of petrochemicat and other chemica! products,
mdustrial investment and investment management, exploration, construction, instalfation and
maintenance of petroleum and petrochemical constructions and equipments, manufacturing
electnical equipment, research, development, application and consufting services of information
technology and alternative energy products, import & export of goods and technology

Relationshup with the Group Ultimate holding company
Types of legal entity State owned

Authorised representative Su Shulin

Regstered capital RMB 182,029 million

Sinapec Group Company 15 an enterprise controlled by the PRC government For the year ended 31 December 2010, Sinopec Group Company held
75 849, shares of the Company and there 15 no change on percentage shareholding during this reporting pertod

(b} Related parties not having the ability to exercise control over the Group
Related parties under cammon control of a parent company with the Company
Sinopec Finance Company Limited
Sinopec Shengl Petroleumn Admimistration Bureau
Sinopec Zhongyuan Petroleum Exploration Bureau
Sinopec Assets Management Corporation
Sinopec Engineering Incorporation
Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Limited
Sinopec Petroleum Stcrage and Reserve Limited
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Limited

Associates of the Group

Sinopec Rallway Oil Marketing Company Limited
China Aviation O1) Supply Company Limited

Sinopec Changrang Fuel Company Limited

BPZR {Ningbo) LPG Company Limited

China Shipping & Sinopec Supplters Company Limited

Jointly controlled entitres of the Group

Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Company Limited

BASF YPC Campany Limrted

Fupan Refinring and Petrochemical Company Limited
SINQPEC SABIC Tianjin Petrochemical Company Limited

Financlal Statements {(PRC)

{c) The principal related party transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiarles, assoclates and Jointly controlled entities, which
were carried out in the ordinary course of business, are as follows

Tha Group Tha Compary

2010 2009 2010 2008

RMB millions RMB millicns RMB millions EMB mullions

Sales of goods 1) 230,883 162,671 117,333 72,924
Purchases ) 109,195 64 548 68,719 44,665
Transportation and storage () 1,407 1,251 1,191 1,115
Exploration and development services (v} 33,301 31 343 32,062 29,936
Production related services ) 10,287 17,603 8,704 16,036
Ancillary and social services {v1) 3693 3,329 3,607 3,254
Operating iease charges {vi1) 7.450 4,866 7.134 4,703
Agency commissicn income (vin) 65 45 32 6
Interest received {1x} 93 38 139 20
Interest paid {x) 967 1,186 272 657
Net deposits placed with related parties (1x) 3,267 4,640 4,496 2,274
Net loans (repaid to)/obtamed from related parties () {1,254) (21,928) 4,608 (12,195)

The amounts set out in the table above in respect of the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 represent the relevant costs to the Group and
the Company and income from related parties as determined by the corresponding contracts with the related parties
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46 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{c) The principal related party transactions with Sinopec Group Campany and fellow suhsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, which
were carried out in the ordinary course of business, are as follows (Continued)
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no guarantees given to banks by the Group and the Company in respect of banking facilitres to Sinopec
Group Company and fellow subsidiaries Guarantees given to banks by the Group and the Company in respect of banking facifites to subsidiaries,
assaclates and jointly controlled entities are disclosed tn Note 50(b)

The directors of the Company are of the opimon that the above transactions with related partres were conducted in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms or in accordance with the agreements governing such transactions Thus apimion has been confirmed by independent
non executive directors

Notes
{1} Sales of goods represent the sale of crude o1l intermediate petrochermical products petroleum products and anallary matenals

{v) Purchases represent the purchase of matenal and utihty supplies directly related to the Group's operations such as the procurement ot raw and anciflary materials
and related serwices supply of water, electricity and gas

{n) Transportation and storage represent the cost for the use of railway road and marine transportation services, pipehines loading, unlaading and storage facilities

(iv) Exploration and development services comprise direct casts incurred in the exploration and development aof crude a1l such as geaphysical dnlling well testing and
wall maasurement services

] (v) Productian related services represent ancillary services rendersed n relabion tg the Group's operations such as equpment repair and general mamtenance, nsuranca

premium, technical research, communications, fire fighting secunty, product quality testing and analysis infarmation technology design and enginegring, construction
J which includes the construction of alfield ground facilities refineries and chermical plants manufacture of replacement parts and machinery installation project
l managerneant and ermvironmental protection

’ {w1) Ancillary and sacial services represent expencitures for soqial welfare and suppart services such as educational fagilities media communication services, sanitation,
accommadation, canteens, property maintenance and management services

{w)Operating lease charges represent the rental paid to Sinopec Group Company for operating leases i respect of land, buildings and equipment

(vunAgency commission incormne represents commussion earned for acting as an agent in respect of sales of products and purchase of matenals for certan entities
owned by Sinapec Group Company

(1x) Interest receved represents initerest receved from deposits ptaced with Sinopec Finance Company Limited and Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Limited,
finance companies contralled by Sinepec Group Company The zpplicable interest rate 1s determined In accordance with the prevaiing saving deposit rate The
balance of depasits at 31 Dacernber 2010 was RME 8 603 mulhion (2009 RMB 5 336 million)

(x) Interest paid represents interast charges on the loans and advances obtained from Sinepec Group Company 2nd Sinopec Finance Company Limited

(1) The Group ebtained or repaid loans from or to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries The calculates penadic balance of average loan for the year ended
31 Decermnber 2010 which s based on manthly average balances was RMB 54 116 millron (2009 RMEB 61 019 milhon)

In connection with the Rearganisation, the Company and Sinopec Group Company entered into a number of agreements under which 1) Sinopec
Group Company will provide goods and products and a range of ancillary, social and supporting services to the Group and 2) the Group will sell
certain geods to Sinopec Group Company These agreements impacted the operating results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
The terms of these agreements are summarised as follows

Financial Statements (PRC)

(a) The Company has entered into a non exclusive Agreement for Mutual Provision of Products and Ancillary Services {"Mutual Provision Agreement”)
with Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 in which Sinopec Group Company has agreed to prowide the Group with certain
anculary production services, construction services, information advisary services, supply services and other services and products While sach
of Sinopec Group Company and the Company 1s permitted to terminate the Mutual Prowision Agreement upon at least six months' notice,
Sinopec Group Company has agreed not to terminate the agreement if the Group is unable to obtain comparabie services from a third party The
pricing policy for these services and products provided by Sinopec Group Company to the Group is as follows

the government prescnbed price,

where there 1s no government-prescribed price, the government guidance price,

where there 1s neither a government prescribed price nor a government gutdance price, the market price, or

where none of the above 1s applicable, the price to be agreed between the parties, which shall be based on a reasonable cost incurred in
providing such services plus a profit margin not exceeding 6%

(b) The Company has entered into 2 non exclusive Agreement for Prowision of Cultural and Educational, Health Care and Community Services with
Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 1 which Stnopec Group Company has agreed to provide the Group with certain cultural,
educattonal, health care and community services on the same pricing terms and termimation conditions as agreed to n the above Mutual
Prowvision Agreement
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46 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) The principal related party transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidlaries, associates and Jointly controlled entities, which
were carried out in the ardinary course of business, are as foltows (Contrued)

(¢} The Company has entered :nto a number of lease agreements with Sinopec Group Company to lease certain land and buildings The Company
and Stnopec Group Company can renegotiate the rental amount every three years for land and the rental amount 1s appraximately RMB8 6,727
millkon (2009 RMB 4,225 mallion) per annum The Company and Sinopec Group Company can renegotiate the rental amount for bulddings every
year However such amount cannot exceed the market price as determined by an independent third party The Group has the option to terminate
these leases upon six months notice to Sinopec Group Company

{d) The Company has entered into agreements with Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 under which the Group has been
granted the nght to use certain trademarks, patents, technology and computer software developed by Sinopec Group Company

{e) The Company has entered into a service station franchise agreement with Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 under which
its service station and retail stores would exclusively sell the refined products supplied by the Group.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Directors’ meeting on 26 March 2010, the Group acquired 55% equity interests of SSI from SOOGL, a
subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company, and the shareholder’s loans of USD 292 miflion provided by SOOGL to SSI, at a total cash consideration of
USD 2,259 million (Note 1)

Pursuant {o the resolutions passed at the Directors” meeting held on 27 March 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of Sinopec
Qingdae Petrochernical Company Limited and certain storage and distribution operations from Sinopec Group Company for total cash consideration ;
of RMB 771 mtllion (Note 1), and certain assets of the exploration and production and refining segments from Sinopec Group Company for total o
cash consideration of RMB 1,068 million |

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Directors’ meeting held on 21 August 2009 the Group acquired certain operating assets related to the
others business segment from a subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company for tota! consideration of RMB 3,946 mullion

{d) Balances with Sinopec Group Company and tellow subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
The balances with the Group's related parties at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are as follows

—_— A e i

|
The ultimate holding company Otrer related compenies t
2010 2009 2010 2000
RMB millions RMB mutlions RMB millions RMB milionsg |
Cash and cash equivalents _ —_ 8,603 5,336 !
Accounts recelvable — 1 10,734 1,031
Prepayments and other receivables — 27 3,390 783
Accounts payable e - 12,304 3,813 E
Advances from customers —_— —_ 1,064 955 =
Other payables 29 5 8,216 11,019 H
Short term loans —_— —_ 17,918 13,313 E
Long term loans (including current portion) (Note) —_ —_ 38,501 44,360 §
Note The Sinepec Group Company had lent an interest free loan far 20 years smounted to RMB 35 561 million to the Group through Sinopec Finance Company Limited §
which was included in the lang term loans 2
o

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2010, and as at and for the year ended 31 December 2009, no individualty significant impairment losses
{or bad and doubtiul debts were recorded (n respect of amounts due tram Stnopec Group Company and fellow subsicdianies, associates and jointly
contrelied entities

{€) Key management personnel emoluments
Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responsibility for planneng, directing 2and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, in¢luding directars and supervisors of the Group The key management personnel compensations are as follows

2010 2009

RMB thousands AMB thowsands

Short term employee benefits 8,692 7.664
Retirement scheme contributions 3138 287
9,010 7,951
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47 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s financial conditton and results of operations are sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the financial statements The Group bases the assumpttons and estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that it beleves
to be reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from other sources On an on going
basis management evaluates its estimates Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts, circurnstances and conditions change

The selection of critical accounting policies the judgements and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of
reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the financial statements The principal
accounting policies are set forth «n Note 3 The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most significant jJudgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements

(a) Oil and gas praperties and reserves
The accounting for the explaration and production segment’s o1l and gas activities 15 subject to accounting rules that are unique to the oil and gas
industry There are two methods to account for oIl and gas business actiities, the successful efforts method and the full cost method The Group
has elected to use the successful efferts method The successful efforts method reflects the volatiity that 1s inherent in exploring for mineral
resources in that costs of unsuccessful exploratory efforts are charged to expense as they are incurred Thaese costs primanly include dry hole
costs, seismic costs and other exploratory costs Under the full cost method. these costs are capitalised and written off or depreciated over time

Engineering estimates of the Group's o1l and gas reserves are inherently imprecise and represent only appraxmate amounts because of the

subjective judgerments nvalved in developing such information There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that have to be
| met bafore estimated oil and gas reserves can be designated as “proved” Proved and proved developed reserves estimates are updated at least
annually and take into account recent production and technical information about each field 1n addition, as prices and cost levels change from year
to year, the estimate of proved and proved developed reserves also changes This change 1s considered a change In estimate for accounting
purposes and 15 reflected on a prospective basis in related depreciation rates

Future dismantiement costs for oIl and gas properties are estimated with reference to engineering estimates after taking into consideration the
anticipated method of dismantlement required 1n accordance with industry practices in the similar geographic area, including estimation of
economic hfe of ol and gas properties technology and price level The present values of these estimated future dismantierment costs are capitalised
as ol and gas properties with equivalent amounts recognised as prowsions for dismantlement costs

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates, these estimates are used In determining depreciation expense, impairment
| expense and future dismantlement ¢costs Depreciation rates are determined based on estimated praved developed reserve quantities (the dencminator)
| and capitatised costs of producing properties (the numerator) Producing properties’ capitalised costs are amortised based on the unit of production
method

(b) Impairment for assets

It circumstances indicate that the net book value of a long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with “ASBE 8 — Impairment of Assets™ The carrying amounts of long lived assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying amounts These assets are tested for inpairment
whenever svents or changes in circumstances indicate that their recarded carrying amounts may not be recoverable When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount 1s reduced to recoverable amount For goodwill, the recoverable amount 15 estimated annually The recoverable
amount s the greater ot the net selling price and the value in use It 1s difficult to precisely estimate selling price because quoted market prices for
the Group’s assets or cash generating units are not readily available In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset or
the cash generating unit are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to level of sale volumae, selling price
and amount of operating costs The Group uses all readily available information 1n determining an amount that 15 a reasonable approximation of
recovarable amount, Including estirnates based on reaseonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sale volume, selling price and
amount of aperating costs

Frnancial Statements (PRC)

{c) Depreciation
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value Management reviews the astimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amoun? of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period The useful lives are based on the Group s historical experience with sumilar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes The deprectation expense for future pertods 1s adjusted (f there are signiicant changes from previous estimates

(d) Allowances far doubtful accounts
Management estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts resutting from the mabulity of the Group's customers to make the required
payments Management bases the estimates on the ageing of the accounts receivable balance, customer credit worthiness, and historical write off
experience |f the financial condition af the customers were to deteriorate actual wnite ofis would be higher than estimated

{e) Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
If the costs of inventories fall below thair net reahsable values, an allowance for dimunution in value of \nventaries 1s recogrused Net reahisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale Management bases the estimates on all available information, including the current market prices of the fimshed goods and raw
matenals, and historical operating costs If the actual selling prices were to be lower or the costs of completion were to be higher than estimated,
the actual allowance for dirminution in value of inventones could be higher than estimated
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48 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Company s principal subsidianies are imited companies operating in the PRC and have been consohidated into the Group s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2010 The fcllowing Iist contains only the particutars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets and
habilities of the Group

Percaniage of

Actual equity Imtgrest / hinonty

Registered investiment at votirg right intarests at

capnial/paid-up 31 Dacember helz by 31 Decernpar

Mame of e~tarorise Prncizal activines cap iat 2010 tre Group 2010

RMB milliens RMB m Il ons oL 2MB milhans

(a) Subsidiaries acquired through group restructuring

China Petrochemical International Trading of petrochemical 1,400 1,788 100 00 -
Company Limited products and equipments

Sinopec Sales Company Limited Marketing and distribution of 1 700 1,700 100 00 -_
refined petroleum products

Stnopec Yangz) Petrochemacal Manufactuning of intermediate 16,337 13,207 100 00 —
Company Limited petrochemical products and
petroleum products

Fujtan Petrochemical Manutacturing of plastics, 4,769 2,269 5000 2513
Company Limited {1} intermaed ate petrochemical

petroleun products

Sinope¢ Shangha Petrochemucal Manufacturing of synthetic 7 200 7,250 55 56 8,220
Company bimited fibres, resin and plastics,
intermediate petrochemical
products and
petroleum products

products and | l
{

Sincpec Kantons Holdings Limited Trading of crude oil and HKD 104 HKD 243 72 34 1080
petroleurmn products .
Sinopec Yizheng Chemacal Fibre Praduction and sale of 4,000 3,509 42 00 4821 I
Company Limited (i) polyester chips and polyester fibres !
China International United Petroleum Trading of crude oil and 3,040 4,585 100 00 —_ !
and Chemical Company Limited petrochemical products
Sinopec (Hong Kong) Limited Trading of crude o1l and HKD 5,477 5,370 100 00 —_ "
petrochemical products &
{b) Subsidiaries established by the Group L
Sinope¢ Shell {hangsu) Petroleurmn Marketing and distribution 830 498 &0 00 460 ‘%
Marketing Company Lumited of refined petraleumn praducts E
BP Sinopec (Zhejiang) Petroleum Marketing and distribution 800 480 60 00 374 ;E
Company Limnted ot refined petroleum products =
Sinopec Qingdao Retining and Manufacturing of intermedrate 5,000 4,250 85 00 642 e
Chemtcal Company Limited petrochemical products and E
petroleum products
Sinopec Senmer (Fupan) Marketing and distribution 1,840 1,012 55 00 1,382
Petroleum Limited of refined petroleum products
Sinopec International Petroleum Investment in exploration, 8,000 8,000 100 00 —_
Exploration and Production Limited praduction and sales of
petroleum and natural gas
Sinopeac Fuel Oil Sales Marketing and distribution 2200 2,568 100 00 -
Company Limited (1) of refined petroleumn products
{c) Subsidiaries acquired threugh business combination under common contral
Sinopec Zhongyuan Petrochemical Manufacturing of 2,400 2,244 8351 63
Company Limited petrochemical products
Sinopec Hainan Refining and Chemical  Manufacturing of intermediate 3,986 2,990 7500 988
Cormpany Lirmited petrochemical products and
petroleurn products
Sinopec Qingdao Petrochernical Manufacturing of intermediate 1,595 3,940 100 Q0 —
Company Limited petrachemical products and

petroleumn products

Except for Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited and Sinopec (Hong Kong) Limited, which are incorporated in Bermuda and Hong Kong, respectively, al)
of the above principal subsidiaries are incorporated in the PRC

Nates

{1) The Company consohdated the financial statements of the entity because the Company controlled the board of this entsity and had the power to gavern its financial and
operating policres

{1) The Company consolidated the financial statements of the newly established Sinopec Fuel Ol Sales Company Limited since 2010
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49 COMMITMENTS

Financial Statemunis {PRC)

Operating tease commitments

The Group and the Company lease land and buildings, service stations and other equipment through non cancellable operating leases These operating
leases do not contain provisions for contingent lease rentals None of the rental agreements contain escalation provisions that may require higher
future rental payments

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, tha future mimimum lease payments of the Group and the Company under operating leases are as follows

Tre Group The Company

2010 2008 2010 2009

RMB millions RME mulhons RMB millions RMB rlhons

Within one year 10,555 6,088 10083 5,988
Between one and two years 9,877 5905 9641 5861
Between two and three years 9,721 5834 9,459 5.803
Between three and four years 9,634 5.722 9,390 5,604
Batween four and five years 9,522 5 604 g9 297 5,577
After five years 224 292 145 338 218 335 145116
Total 273,601 174,491 266,205 174,039

Capital commitments
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the capital commitments are as follows

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2008
RMB millions REIB mullions RMB millions RMB milliong
Authorised and contracted for 138,980 124,403 125,387 119,145
Authorised but not contracted for 37,450 62,144 35534 50 539
Total 176,430 186,547 160,901 169,684

Thesa capital commitments relate to o1l and gas exploration and development, refining and petrochemica! production capacity expansion projects and
the construction of service stations and o1l depots

Exploration and production licenses

Exploration hicenses for exploration actvities are registered with the Minustry of Land and Resources The maximum term of the Group’s exploration
ficenses I1s 7 years, and may be renewed twice within 30 days prior to expiration of the onginal terim with each renewal betng for a two year term The
Group 15 obligated to make progressive annual muamum exploration investrment relating to the exploration blocks in respect of which the license (s
1ssued The Ministry of Land and Resources also 1ssues production licenses to the Group on the basis of the reserve reports approved by relevant
authorities The maxtmum term of a full production hicense 1s 30 years unless a special dispensation 1s given by the State Council The maximum term
of the production hicenses issued to the Group 1s 80 years as a special dispensation was given to the Group by the State Council The Group's
praduction license s renewabte upon application by the Group 30 days prior to expiration

The Group 15 required to make payments of explorabion hicense fees and produection right usage fees to the Ministry of Land and Resources annually
which are expensed as incurred Payments incurred were approximately RMB 450 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009 RMB 395
millicn)

Estimated future annual payments are as follows

Tra Group The Company

2010 2008 2010 2009

RMB millions BMB mulhizng RMB millions RMB ritlions

Within one year 119 136 118 136
Between ane and two years 181 118 181 118
Between two and three years 22 21 22 21
Between three and four years 23 20 23 20
Between four and five years 23 20 23 20
After five years 645 689 645 689
Total 1,013 1,004 1013 1,004

The implementation of commitments in previous year and the Group’s commutments did not have matenal discrepancy
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50 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) The Company has been advised by its PRC lawyers that except for habilities constituting or ansing out of or relating to the business assumed by the
Compeany in the Reorganisation, no other habilities were assumed by the Company, and the Company 15 not jointly and severally hable for other
debts and obligations tncurred by Sinopee Group Company prior to the Reorgantsation

{b) At 31 December 2010 and 2009, guarantees gwven by the Group and the Company to banks i respect of banking facilities granted to the parties
below are as follows

Tre Group Tra Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milligns RMB millions RMB mllians
Jaintly controlled entities 7.548 14,815 4,894 9,543
Associates 152 181 43 61
Total 7,700 14,996 4,937 9,604

At 31 December 2010, the Company and a subsidiary have guaranteed to a jointly controlled entity in relation to the bank loans drawn down by the
jointly controlled entity The guarantees mature on 31 December 2015

The Group monitors the conditions that are subject to the guarantees to identify whether (1t 1s probable that a loss has occurred, and recogmises any
such losses under guarantees when those losses are estimable At 31 December 2010 and 2009, it 1s not probable that the Group will be required
{o make payments under the guarantees Thus no habihty has been accrued for a loss related to the Group's obligation under these guarantee
arrangement L

Environmental contingencies . !
Under existing legislation, management believes that there are no probable habihities that will have a matenial adverse effect on the financial position ;
or operating results of the Group The PRC government, however, has moved, and may mave further towards more rigorous enforcement of apphcable |
laws, and towards the adoption ol more stringent environmental standards Environmental habilities are subject to considerable uncertainties which
affect the Group's 2bility to estimate the ultimate cost of remechatian efforts These uncerfainties include 1) the exact nature and extent of the
contamination at various sites incleding, but not mited to refineries, oil fields, service stations, terminais and land development areas, whather F
operating, closed or sold, 1) the extent of required cleanup efforts, 1) varying costs of alternative remediation strategres, v) changes in enviranmental
rernediation requirernents, and v) the identification of new remediation sites The amount of such future cost 1s indeterminable dus to such iactors as ‘
the unknown magnitude of possible contarmination and the unknown timing and extent of the corrective actions that may be required Accordingly, the !
outcome of environmental habilities under proposed or future environmental legisiation cannot reasonably be estimated at present, and could be i
material The Group paid normal routine pollutant discharge fees of approximately RMB 3,880 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009 '
RMB 3,196 muilion)

Legal contingencies

The Group 1s a defendant 1n certain lawsuits as well as the named party in other proceedings ansing in the ordinary course of business While the
outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or other proceedings cannot be determined at present management believes that any resultmg ltabilities will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results of the Group

51 SEGMENT REPORTING

Financial Statements (PRC)

Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group's operating segments The format 15 based on the Group's management and internal
reporting structure In view of the fact that the Company and i1ts subsidiaries operate mainly in the PRC no geographical segment infarmation 1s
presented

In a manner consistent with the way in which information 1s reported internally to the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has identified the following five reportable segments No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments

(1) Exploration and production - which explores and develops ol fields, produces crude ol and natural gas and sells such products to the refiming
segment of the Group and external customers

{n) Retiming - which processes and purifies crude oil, which 1s sourced from the exploration and production segment of the Group and external
supphers, and manufactures and sells petroleum products to the chemucals and marketing and distribution segments of the Group and external
custorners

(tn)Marketing and distribution ~ which owns and operates oil depots and service stations in the PRC, and distributes and sells refined petroleum
products (mainly gasoline and diesel) in the PRC through wholesale and retail safes networks

() Chernicals — which manufactures and sells pestrochermical products, derwvative petrochemical products and other chemical products to exiernal
customers

(v) Others - which largely comprise the trading activities of the import and export compantes of the Group and research and development undertaken
by other subsidiartes
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51 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

The segments were deterrmined primarily because the Group manages its exploration and production, refining, marketing and distribution, chemicals,
and others bustnesses separately The reportable segments are each managed separately because they manufacture and/or distnibute distinct products
with different production processes and due to their distinct operating and gress margn charactenstics

The Group's chief operating decision maker evaluates the performance and allocates resources to its operating segments on an operating income
basis, without considering the effects of finance costs or investment income The accounting policies af the Group's segments are the same as those
described in the principal accounting policies (Note 3) Corporate administrative costs and assets are not allocated to the operating segments, instead
operating segments are billed for direct corporate services Inter segment transfer pricing is based on cost plus an appropriate margin as specified by
the Group's policy

Assets and habilihes dedicated to a particular segment’s operations are included in that segment's total assets and liab:hties Segment assets include
ali tangible and intangible assets, except for cash at bank and on hand, long term equity investments, deferred tax assets and cther non current assets
Segment habilities exclude short term loans short term debentures payable, long-term loans, debentures payable, deferred tax habilities and other
non current habilities

Reportable information on the Group’s operating segments 1s as follows

2010 2009

RMB millions ~illhgns

Income from principal operations
Explaration and production

External sales 35.024 19342
Inter segment sales 133,691 97 981
i e e e e e e e e e e e e 168715 117,323
Refining
External sales 159,858 95,782
inter segment sales B05.704 603,870
- . = o U, e e 565,562 699,662
Marketing and distribution
External sales 1 032900 778,417
Inter segment sales 3,258 2,372
e T imseass 780789
Chemicals _
External sales 285 536 192,735
5 Inter segment sales 35 581 21,125
g o et e e e e e e .. . 322097 213,860
s Others
g External sales 363,380 229,629
£ Inter segment sales 432,415 291,386
@ e T Tonyes 521025
g Elmination of inter segment sales o ] . o _ (1,410,649) (1.016,744)
g Income from principal operations e e e 1876758 1,315,915
Income from other operations
Exploration and production 18,430 17,485
Refining 6,015 3,909
Marketing and distribution 4,540 2,302
Chemicals 6,445 4,597
Others 394 844
Income from other operations . i . R oL . 3424 _29,137
Consolidated operating income 1,913,182 1,345,052
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51 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

2010 2009
RMEB millions RMB millions

Operating profit/{loss)

By segment
Exploration and production 46,725 24,143
Refining 14,873 27,477
Marketing and distribution 30,622 30,280
Chermicals 14,763 13,288
Others {2,821) {2,323)
Elimtnation of inter segment profit {1,455) {2 603)
Total segment operating profit o o . R . _ 102,707 90,262
Investment income
Exploration and production 179 135
Refining 567 470
Marketing and distribution 1,054 908
Chemicals 3.234 1,395
Others 637 681
Total segment investment income L TR . 7 S .-
Finencial expenses__ _ _  _ o s, oAy (T 248y TTE
Loss from changes (n fair value N L . . 279y . (369) | R
Operating profit 101,352 86,238 | ‘
Add Non operating income 2,108 1,275 !
Less Non operating expenses 1,282 1,401 I ‘
Profit before taxation 102,178 86,112 |
Assets ‘
Segment assats '
Exploration and production 298,710 277,255 !
Refinting 229,266 210502 T
Marketing and distribution 188,588 152 815 F
Chemicals 126,099 127.078 '
Others 60,695 60,263 [
Total segment assets 903,358 827,913
Cash at bank and ¢n hand 18,140 10018 -
Long term equity investrnents 45,037 33 503 H]
Deferred tax assets 15578 13,683 £
Other unallocated assets 3.276 1,779 z
Total assets 985,389 BB6,896 E
Liabihities 5
Segment liabilities =
Exploration and production 58,364 51,731 g
Refining 49,713 53,567 s
Marketing and distribution 75,200 49,578
Chamicals 33,579 25,034
Others 75,635 55,908
Total segment habiities 292,491 235,818
Short term foans 29 298 34,900
Short term debentures payable 1,000 31,000
Non current habihttes due within one year 5,530 9,316
Long term lpans 58 895 58,962
Debentures payable 115180 93,763
Deferred tax habilities 15,017 9,707
Other non ¢urrent abilitigs 2,415 2,192
Other unallocated liabifities 12.881 4,690
Total liabilities 532,707 480,348
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51 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one year

2010 2009
RMB miillions RMB millions
Capital expenditure for the year
Exploration and production 52 680 54,272
Refining 20,015 15,468
Marketing and distribution 26,168 16,283
Chemicals 12,894 25,207
Others 1894 1,505
113,651 112,735
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the year
Exptoration and production 31,515 28,177
Retining 11,371 10 330
Marketing and distribution 5,439 5,999
Chemicals 8,848 8,584
Others 1,030 936
59,253 54,046
Impairment losses on long-lived assets for the year
Exploration and production 3,250 1,595
Refining 4,902 396
: Marketing and distributian 1183 1,479
i Chemicals 5121 3807
i QOthers 21 a
! 14,477 7,285
|

52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

i Overview

Financial assets of the Group include cash at bank, equity investments, accounts recewvable, bills receivable, prepayments, financial assets held for
\ trading, derivative financial instruments and other recevables Financial liabilities of the Group include short term and long term loans, accounts
payable, bills payable, advances from customers, debentures payable, derivative financia! instruments and other payables

The Group has exposure to the fallowing risks from its use of financial instruments
e credit nsk,

o liquidity nisk,

e market risk, and

& equity price nsk

Flnancial Statements {PRC)

The Board of Directors has averall responsibility for the estabhshment, oversight of the Group’s nisk management framework, and developing and
monitoring the Group’s risk management policies

The Group's risk management policies are established to 1dentify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk imits and controls,
and to moritor risks and adherence to lirmits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulariy to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's activities The Group, through its traiming and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control enviranment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations Internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Group's audit commities

Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Group's deposits placed with financial inshtutions and recewvables from customers To hmit exposure to credit risk relating
to deposits, the Group primarily places cash deposits only with large financial institution in the PRC with acceptable credit ratings The majonty of the
Group's accounts recewvable relates to sales of petroleurn and chemecal products to related parties and third parties operating 1n the petroleum and
chemical industries The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of 1ts customers' financial condition and generally does not require collateral on
accounts recewvable The Group maintains an impairment loss for doubtful accounts and actual losses have been withun management’s expectations
No single customer accounted for greater than 10% of total accounts recevable

The carrying amounts of cash at bank, time deposits with financial institutions, trade accounts and bills receivables, denvative financial instruments
and other recewvables, represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets
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52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nsk 1s the risk that the Group encounters short fall of capital when meeting 1ts abligation of financial habihties The Group's approach to
managing liguidity 15 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient hquidity to meet 1ts habihities when due, under both normal and
stressed capital conditions, without mcurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation The Group prepares monthly cash flow
budget to ensure that they will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligation as they fall due The Group arranges and negotiates
financing with financial institutions and mantams a certain level of standby credit facibities to reduce the hquidity risk

At 31 December 2010, the Group has standby credit facilities with several PRC financial institutions which provide the Group to borrow up to RMB
167,500 million {2009 RMB 159,500 milhon) on an unsecured basis, at a weighted average interest rate of 2 61% (2009 3 33%) At 31 December
2010, the Group’s outstanding borrowtngs under these facilities were RMB 6,622 million (2009 RMB 9,361 million) and were inciuded sn short term
bank loans

The following table sets out the remaintng contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's and the Company’s financtal habihties, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on prevailing
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earhiest date the Group and the Company would be required to repay

The Group
2010
Tatal More than More than
contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted year or less than less than Maore than
amount cash flow on demand 2 ycars 5 years 5 years
RMB millions RMB millions RMB milliens  RMB siillions RMB miilions RMEB milliens
Short term loans 29,298 29,617 29,617 — — —
Nan current liabilities due within one year 5,530 5,641 5,641 — — — i
Short term debentures payable 1.000 1,016 1,016 — — - !
Long term loans 58,895 61,908 1,133 5,685 18,341 36,749 !
Debentures payable 115,180 133,512 3,222 41,244 60,435 28,611 :
Bills payable 3,818 3,818 3,818 — — —
Accounts payable 132,528 132,528 132,528 — — — ' i
Other payables and employee benefits payable 65,390 65,390 65,380 — — -_— ! ’
Total 411,639 433,430 242,365 46,929 78,776 65,360 k
2008 5
Total More than Mare than &
contractual within 2 I year but 2 years but -
Carryng  undiscounted yaar or less than l&sg than More than E
amount cash flow an demand 2 years 3 years 5 years E
RMB mullons  RMB ~ilhions  RME mulhzns  RMB milhons  RMB mulhons RMS mulbizng E
Short term loans 34,900 35,412 35,412 —_ — — =
Naon current liabilities due within one year 9,316 9,650 9650 _ - - g
Short term debentures payable 31,000 31,454 31,454 —_ —_ —_ £
Long term loans 58,862 61,454 866 11,785 11,936 36,867
Debentures payable 93,763 113,426 2,445 2,445 89 446 19 050
Bills payable 23,111 23,114 23114 — — —
Accounts pavable 96,762 96,762 96,762 — — —
Other payables and employee benefits payable 57,304 57.304 57,304 — _— —_—
Total 405,118 428,576 257,007 14,230 101,382 55,957

133

GHINA FETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPORATION  Annual Meport 2010




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)

Liquidity risk (Continuved)

The Company
2010

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions
Short term loans 7,229 7292 7,292 — —_ —_
Non eurrent liabihities due wathin one year 4,109 4 210 4.210 - — -
Long term loans 58,377 61,358 1,117 5,640 17,888 36,703
Debentures payable 115,180 133,512 3,222 41 244 60,435 28 611
Bills payable 2,670 2,670 2,670 —_ — —
Accounts payable 87,244 87,244 87,244 — — —
Other pavables and employee benefits payable 83,923 83,923 £3,923 —_ — -
Total 358,732 380,209 189,678 46,884 78,333 65,314

4 More than Mare than
! contraciual Witiin 1 1 year but 2 years but
| und:scounted year or less tran lass than Mora than
\ amount cash floa an dema-d 2 years 3 years 5 years
: RNMB mill ors RMB mithons  PMB milhons  RMB millions  RMB mullions  RMB ~illions
i [ Shaort term loans 5,728 5,865 5,865 — — —_
| Non current llabilities due within one year 4,865 5,072 5,072 — — o
! } Short term debentures payable 30,000 30 451 30,451 —~ — —
I ! Long term loans 51,549 53,725 695 4,624 11,620 36,786
| Debentures payable 93,763 113,426 2,445 2,445 89,446 19,080
Bills payable 14,084 14 087 14,087 — — —
Accounts payable 63,067 $3.067 63,067 — — —
Other payables and employee benefits payable 81,603 81,603 81,603 — —_ —
Total 344,659 367,296 203,285 7,069 101,066 55,876
Markat risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates The objective of market nisk management 1s to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimising the return an risk

(a) Currency risk
Currency risk artses on financial instruments that are denorminated 1n a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured The
Group's currency rnisk exposure primarily relates to short term and long term debts and loans from Singpec Group Company and fellow subsidiares
denominated in US Dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, and the Group enters into foreign exchange contracts to manage currency risk
exposure,

Financlal Statements {(PRC)

Ingluded in dervative financial nstruments short term and long term loans of the Group are the following ameunts denorminated in a currency
other than the funchional currency of the entity to which they relate

Tre Group Tre Company
2010 2009 2010 2005

millions null org millions nulbons

Gross exposure arising from loans and borrowings

US Dallars usD 501 USD 1,341 UsD 48 UsSD &0
Japanese Yen JPY 18,313 JPY 22,500 JPY 18,313 JPY 22,500
Hong Kong Dollars HKD 12,114 HKD 11,779 HKD 12,114 HKD 11,779

A5 percent strengthening of Renminbi against the following currencies at 31 December 2010 and 2009 would have increased net profit for the year
and retained profits of the Group by the amounts shown below This analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applhed to the foreign currency balances to which the Group has significant exposurs as
stated above, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, rematn constant The analysis i1s performed on the same basis for 2009
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52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group
2010 2005
RMB millions RMB mullians
Us Dellars 124 343
Japanese Yen 56 62
Hong Kong Dollars 400 388

Other than the amounts as disclosed above, the amounts of other financial assets and habilities of the Group are substantially denominated in the
functianal currency of respective entity of the Group

(b) Interest rate risk
The Group's Interest rate risk exposure arises pnmarily from its short term and long term loans Loans carrying interest at vaniable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nisk and fair value interest rate risk respectively The interest rates and terms of repayment
of short term and long term loans of the Group are disclosed in Note 19 and Note 27, respectively

At 31 December 2010 1t 1s estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basrs points in vanable interest rates, with all other vanables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group's net profit for the year and retained profits by approximately RMB 259 erullion {for the year ended 31
December 2003 RMB 266 mtllion) This sensitivity analysis has been determined assunung that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and the change was apphed to the Group's loans outstanding at that date with exposure to cash flow interest rate nisk The
analysis 1s performed an the same basis for 2009

{c) Commodity price risk

The Group engages in o/l anc gas operations and is exposed to commodity price risk related to price volatility of crude o1l and refined petrofeum
products The fluctuations in prices of crude oil and refined petroleum products could have significant impact on the Group The Group uses
derivative financial instruments ncluding commodity futures and swaps, to manage a portion of such nisk At 31 December 2010, the Group had
certain commodity contracts of crude oil and refined oil products designated as qualfied cash flow hedges, effective fair value hedge and economic
hedges At 31 December 2010, the net fair valua of such derivative hedging financial instruments 1s derivative financial assets of RMB 148 million
(2009 RMB 142 million) recogmsed in other receivables and derivative financial habilities of RMB 907 milhion (2009 RMB 319 million) recognised
n other payables At 31 December 2010 and 2008, the Company does not have any such derivative financial mnstruments

At 31 December 2010, it 15 estimated that a general increase/decrease of USD 10 per barrel in crude ol and refined petroleurn products, with all
other vanabies held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits by approximatetly RMB 229 mutlion
{2009 decrease/increase RMB 215 million), and decrease/increase the Group’s capital reserve by approximately RMB 1,066 million (2009
increase/decrease RMB 1,991 milbion) This sensitivity analysis has been determined assurning that the change in prices had occurred at the
balance sheet date and the change was applied to the Group's derivative financial instrurments at that date with exposure to commodity price risk
The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2009

(d) Equity price nsk
The Group 15 exposed to equity price risk arising from changes n the Company’s own share price to the extent that the Company's own equity
instruments underlie the fair values of denivatives of the Group At 31 December 2010, the Group 15 exposed to this nisk through the derwative
embedded in the Convertible Bonds issued by the Company as disclosed in Note 28

At 31 December 2010, it 1s estimated that an increase of 2095 in the Company's own share price would decrease the Group's profit for the year and
retained profits by approximately RMB 218 milhon {2009 RMB 306 millicn) white a decrease of 209 in the Company's own share price would
increase the Group's profit for the year and retained profits by approximately RMB 108 mullion (2009 RMB 156 mullion) The sensitivity analysis
has been determined assumng that the changes in the Company's own share price had occurred at the balance sheet date and that all other
variables remain constant
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NOTES TO THE FINANCJAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values

{1) Financial instruments carried at falr value
The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy With the fair value of each financial instrument categonsed in its entirely based on the lowest level of input that 1s
significant to that fair value measurement The levels are defined as follows

+  Level 1 (highest level) fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical inancial instruments

o Level 2 far values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data

« Level 3 (lowest level) fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input 1s not based on observable market data

2010
The Group The Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
millions millions millians millions millions millions millions millions
Assots
‘ Financial assets held far trading 700 1,750 — 2,450 — — — —
Avzilable for sale financial assets
- Listed 52 — —_ 52 18 — - 18
Derivative financial instruments
‘ — Derivative financial assats 113 223 — 336 — 1 —_ 1
865 1,973 —_ 2,838 18 1 —_ 19
| Liabilities
. Darwvative financial mstruments
- Derivative components of
the Convertible Bonds — 340 — 340 T 340 — 340
— Other derivative financial liabihties 164 1,299 — 1,463 — 259 — 259
164 1,639 — 1,803 — 599 —_ 599
- 2009
&
nf" The Groun The Company
t Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Tgtal Level ¢ Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ RMB EMB EMB SMB =6 RKB V= RMIG
s milhars mltions mill-ons mll oms m l os milhions mullians rmull-ons
2 Assets
K Available for sale financial assets
2 —Listed 3] — - 61 25 = - 25
- Unhsted — 1,400 — 1,400 -_ -_ -_ _
Derwative financial instruments
— Dervative financial assets 17 307 - 324 - 3 - 3
78 1,707 - 1,785 25 3 — 28
Liabilities
Derwvative financial instruments
- Derivative companents of
the Convertible Bonds — 218 — 218 — 218 — 218
= Other derivative financial habihities 4 754 — 758 — 171 — 171
4 972 — 576 — 389 — 389

During the year thera were no transfers between instruments «n Level 1 and Level 2
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52 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values (Continued)

(ii) Fair values of financial Instruments carried at ather than fair value
The tair values of the Group's financral instruments (other than long term debts and secunity investments) approximate their carrying amounts due
to the shart term maturity of these instruments The fair values of long term debts are estimated by discounting future cash flows using current
market interest rates offered {0 the Group for debt with substantially the sarme characteristics and maturities ranging 3 87% to 6 14% (2009
4 18% to 5 94%,) The following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of the Group's long term debts other than loans frem Smopec
Group Company and fellow subsidianies at 31 December 2010 and 2009

2010 2008

RMEB millions RMB millions

Carrying amount 141,004 115,138
Fair value 139,99% 114,471

The Group has not developed an internal valuation model necessary to make the estimate of the fair value of loans from Sinopec Group Company
and fellow subsidiartes as it 1s not considered practicable to estimate their fairr value because the cost of obtaimng discount and borrowing rates for
comparable borrowings would be excessive based on the Reorganisation of the Group, its existing capital structure and the terms of the borrowings

At 31 December 2010, the fair value of the Group's available for sale financial assets quoted at market price 15s RMB 52 milhon Other unquoted
equity investments are individually and in the aggregate not matenal to the Group’s financial position or results of operations There are no listed
market prices for such interests in the PRC and, accordingly, a reasonable estimate of fair value could not be made without incurring excessive
costs The Group intends to hold these unquoted equity investments for long term purpose

Except for the above itemns, the financial assets and habihties of the Group are carned at amounts not materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009

53 EXTRAORDINARY GAIN AND LOSS

Pursuant to “Questions and answers in the prepayment of informatian disclosures of cornpanigs 1ssuing public shares, No 1 — Extraordinary gain and
loss™ (2008), the extraordinary gains and losses of the Group are as tollows

2010 2008
RMB millions RMB milhong
Extraordinary (gatn)/loss for the year
Gain on disposal of non current assets (253) (211)
Denations 177 174
Gain on holding and disposal of various investments (71) 322y
Net profit of subsidiaries generated from a businass combination involving entities
under common control before acguisition date (3.043) (2,583)
Other non operating mcome and expenses, net {734) 180
(3,924) {2,752)
Tax effect 220 42
Total (3,704) {2,710)
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company (2,368) (1,419)
Minarity interests (1 336) {1,291)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

54 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(1) Basic earning per share
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by the net profit attnibutable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of
outstanding ordinary shares of the Company

2010 2008
Net profit attributable of equity shareholders of the Company (RMB miljions) 70,713 62,677
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company {milions) 86,702 86,702
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0 B16 0723

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares 15 as follows

2010 2009
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company {(millions) 86,702 86,702

(11) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share i1s calculated by the net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of the Company (diluted)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (diluted) (RMB millions) 70,934 63,083
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares of the Company (diluted) (millions) 87,790 87,790
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/shara) 0 808 0,718

The calcutation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted} 15 as follows

2010 2009
The weighted average number of the ordinary shares issued at 31 December (millions) 86,702 B6,702
Etfect of the Convertible Bonds (mullians) 1,088 1,088
Weighted average number of the ordinary shares 1ssued at 31 Decemnber (diluted) (millions) 87,790 87,790

The calculation of diluted earmings per share for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2009 excludes tha effect of the Warrants (Note 28(v)), since it did
not have any diluted effect

55 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

In March 2011, the Company 1ssued convertible bonds due 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of RMB 23 billion in the PRC (the "2011
Convertible Bonds™ The 2011 Convertible Bonds are 1ssued at par value of RMB 100 with an initial exarcise price of RMB 9 73 per share. The interest
rate of the 2011 Convertible Bonds per annum payable annually 1s 0 5% for the first year, 0 7% for the second year, 1 09, for the third year, 1 3% for
the fourth year, 1 8% for the Hifth year and 2 09, for the sixth year
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REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL AUDITOR

e

To the Shareholders of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
(Established tn The People's Rapubhic of China with himited hability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Petroleumn & Chemical Corporation (“the Company™) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group™) set out on pages 140 to 194, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2010, the consohidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows far the year then ended and a summary of sigmificant accounting policies and other explanatory mformation

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Internattonal
Financial Reporting Standards 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Hong Keng Compamies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud
orerrar

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur respansibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit This report 1s made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing 1ssued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidatad
financial statements are free from matertal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtatn audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the conselidated financial statements The
procedures selected depend an the auditor’s judgement, tncluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contrel relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinign on the efiectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also ncludes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained (s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

QPINION

In aur opinion, the consohdated financial statements give a true and tair iew of the state of affairs of the Campany and of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and
of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2011
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(B) FINANCJAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“iFRS™)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2010
{Amounts in millions. except per share data)

2010 200¢

RMB FME

Turnover and other operating revenues

Turnover 3 1,876,758 1,315,915
Other operating revenues 4 36,424 29,137
A . . L o e 1913,182 1,345,052
Operating exp
Purchased crude o1l _products and operating supplias and expenses {1,482,484) {980,564)
Selling, general and adrmimistrative expenses 5 (51,048) (40,539)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation (59 223) (54,016)
Expioration expenses, including dry holes {10,955) (10 545)
Personnel expenses 6 (33,672) (28 895)
Taxes other than income tax 7 {157,189) {132,884)
Other operating expenses net 8 (13 607) (6,910)
Total aperating expenses .. .. ... _ @pgos1rgy __ (1,254,353)
Operating profit j . j o j . j ] o 105,004 j 90,699
Finance costs
Interest expense 9 (7,972) {7,609)
Interest income 660 277
Unrealised loss on embedded dervative component of the Convertible Bonds 29(¢) {127) (218)
. Foreign currency exchange losses {609) (345)
| Foreign currency exchange gamns 1,074 429
: Net ﬂnancc_g_usts . o o . . o B (§_.974) o g_7.4§6)
i Investment mcome L. L. A . U, L. 273 374
Share of profits lass losses from associates andJo:ntTy congro[leg entities N o 5,390 L ?,997
Profit hefore taxation 103,693 86,604
Tax expense 10 (25,689) (19 598)
Profit for the year 78,004 67,005
' Attributable to
( Equity shareholders of the Cormpany 71,800 63,147
) Non controlling interests 6,204 3,858
! Profit for tha year 78,004 67,005
Earnings per share 16
Basic 0828 0728
Diluted 0 820 0724

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements Details of dwvidends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attnibutable
to the profit for the year are set out 1in Note 14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2010
{Amounts in miilions)

2008
RME
Profit for the year B A _ 78,004 67,005
Other comprehensive imncome for the year (after tax and reclassification adjustments) 15
Cash flow hedges (221) 54
Available for sale securities 9 (175)
Share of other comprehensive iIncome of asscciates (533) 806
Foreign currency translation differences (1 360) (4)
Total other comprehensive income o . i . i . . (2123) - 681
Total comprehensive income for the year 75,881 67,686
Attributable to
Equity sharehalders of the Company 69,793 63,867
Mon controlling interests 6,088 3,818
Total comprehensive income for the year 75,881 57,686

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2010
(Amounts in miltions)

Non-current assets

2010
RMB

2009
PMB

Property, plant and equipment, net 17 540,700 484,815
Construction in progress 18 89,599 120,375
Goodwill 19 8,207 14,072
Interest in associates 21 22,815 18,162
Interest in jointly controlled entities 22 20,199 13,928
Investmernits 23 2,075 2,174
Deferred tax assets 28 15,516 13,975
Lease prepayments 19,464 16 238
Long term prepayments and other assets 24 16,350 13045
Total non-current assets i} A .. 734925 696,784
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,008 8,782
Time deposits with financial mnstitutions 1,132 1,236
Trade accounts recewable, net 25 43,093 26,592
Bills receivable 25 15,950 2,110
Inventories 26 156,546 141,727
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 27 26,500 21,032
Total current assets . i ... . . 260229 201,479
Current liabilities
Short term debts 29 17,015 59,350
Loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes 29 18,809 15 866
Trade accounts payable 30 132,528 96,762
Bulls payable 30 3.818 23,111
Accrued expenses and other payables 31 153,478 117,788
Income tax payable 10,754 3,034
Total current liabilities L. A . A W ... . 336408 315,921
Net current liabilities o o _ L A1y (114,443
Total assets less current Liabilities . | _ .. 658748 582,342
Non-current liabilities
Long term debts 29 136,465 110,918
Loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 29 37,610 41 807
Deferred tax liabilities 28 15,017 5,707
Provisions 32 15,573 11,860
Other ltabihities 3,715 3,234
Total non-current Iiabi!_nt_ies__ L . L o N N ?Q8.339_ N 177,526
450,368 404,816
Equity
Share capital 33 86,702 86,702
Reserves 332,345 292,238
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 419,047 378,940
Non-controlling interests 31,321 25,876
Total equity 450,368 404,816
Approved and authorised for 1ssue by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
S Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua
Chairman Vice Chairman, President Chief Financial Officer

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2010
{Amaunts in millions)

Non-current assets

2010
RMB

Property, plant and equipment net 17 436,870 380,979
Construction in progress 18 76,830 112,217
Investments wn subsidiaries 20 Bl 6B6 67,574
Interest in assocrates 21 12,160 9,076
Interest in jointly cantrolled entities 22 9,330 6,011
Investments 23 895 769
Deferred tax assets 28 11789 8815
Lease prepayments 12,412 9,570
Long term prepayments and other assets 24 13 304 11 333
Total non-current assets o ) ) . o . 655,276 . 606,344
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11881 4,700
Tune deposits with financral institutions 1 24
Trade accounts receivable nat 25 16,660 10,990
Bills recevable 25 11,093 123
Inventories 26 103,170 88,993
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 27 44,205 33,235
Total current assets } ) o A . 187,010 138,065 ,
Current liabilities I
Short term debts 29 6,359 39,755 ! I
Loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianies 29 4,979 838 i
Trade accounts payable 30 B7 244 63,067 l
Bills payable 30 2,670 14,084 !
Accrued expenses and other payables 31 158,501 134,526 |
Income tax payable 7,620 1,953 i {
Total current habilities o . i ) L. . 2@7.7?3 254,223 . {I
Net current liabilities j . o .. (BO763) (116,158) | |
Total assets less current liabilities . B } 574,513 490,186 ' 1
Non-current liabllities i
Long term debts 29 136,090 108,312
Loans fram Sinopec Group Cormpany and fellow subsidraries 29 37,467 37,000
Deferred tax habilities 28 7,951 4,544
Provisions 32 14 452 10,883
Other liabulities 1,909 1,625
Total non-current liabilities e e ] . 97879 162,364
376,634 327,822
Equity
Share capital 33 86,702 86,702
Reserves 34 289,932 241,120
Total eguity 376,634 327,822
Approved and autharised for 1ssue by the board of directors on 25 March 2011
Su Shulin Wang Tianpu Wang Xinhua
Chairman Vice Chairman, President Chuef Financial Ofhecer

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES N EQUITY

for the year ended 31 Becembher 2010
(Amaounts in millions)

Total equ ty
aurtuteble

A3y

i
Share a surplus
reger

'3 =8

Balance at 1 January 2009, as previously reported 86,702 (16,293) 18,072 43.078 47,000 (6) 149,336  327.889 20,653 348542
Adjustment for the Acquisition of $81 (Note 1) — — — — — 1,894 — 1,864 1552 1448
Balance at 1 Janvary 2009, as adjusted __ 88702 (16,293) 18,072 _ 43078 47,000 1888 149,336 329,763 22,205 351988
Profitfor theyear T e T T e T 0T . T, 83187 83147 3858 67005
Other comprehensive incoma
Cash flow hedges - — - - - 54 - 54 - 54
Available for sale secunties - — — - — (138) — (138) {37) {175)
Share of other comprehansive income of assaciates = — — — — 806 — 806 — 806
Foreign currency translaticn differences — — — — — (2) — {2 (2) {4}
Total other comprehensive income - . - = - == 720 L. _“220 o (392 msag
Total comprehensive income for the year - — — — —_ _700 63,147 63867 3819 67,686
Transactions with gwners, recorded directly in equity
Contnbutions by and distributions to owners
| Final didend for 2008 (Note 14} — — - - - - (7.803) (1.803) - (7.803)
' Interim doidend for 2009 (Note 14) -— — —_ —_ —_ — {6 069) (6 069) — (6 069)
| Appropriation (Note {2) and (b)) — —_ —_ 4,953 20,000 - (24,933) — - -
Transfar from retainad earmings to other reserves — — — — - 1 387 {1,387) — — -
} Transfer from other reserves to capital reserve - (1,551} — — — 15851 — — — —
| Consideration for the Acquisition of
! ] the Acquired Group (Ncte 1) - — — — — (771) — (771) — (7))
! ! Distribetion to Swinapec Group Company - (49) — — — — — {49} — (49)
| Distnibutians by subsidiaries ta non controlling
i interasts net of contribubions - - = — o - (144) {144)

\ Total contributions by and distnbubions to owners  ~ — {1,600) - 4953 20000 2167 (4_(2.?_1 2)_ {14 692)" . (44 (4 835)
Changas in ownership interests in subsidiazies that
do not result in a loss of control
Acquisttions of non controlling interests of

_subsidianes . R L) L= =™ Lo sy @y @y
Total transactions with owners - {1,618) - 4,953 20,000 2,167 (40,212)  (14,710) (148) ({14 858)
R-eallsa'ugn 3f_defe—rred tax on lease p;epay:n-;nts - ...: ..."—.. ..-.':.. _-: . n : :- - . - : ._..._. (8.:)........—.:- . 8__ T__ _—.: - __— — __— - :—__
Balance at 31 Dacember 2005 86,702 {17,911) 18,072 48,031 £7,000 4,767 172,279 378,940 25876 404,816
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conTINUEB)

for Lhe year ended 31 December 2010
(Amounts in millions)

Total equity
atribirtable
Dis- 16 &quily

Statutory  cretionary sharsholders Nan.
Share Capital share surplus surplus Qther Retained of the cantrolling Total
capital reservé  premium reserye resarve reserves earnings  Company inlerests equity
RMB BB RMA RME RMB RMB RMB RMB RNEB AMB

Balance at 1 January 2010 _ _ Bg 02 (17911} 18072 43,031 67,000 172279 378940 25876 404,816
Pratit for the year N L. - - - - . - .. - 71,800 71800 _ 6204 78004
Other comprehensive income
Cash flow hedges — — - — — {221) - {221) — (221)
Available for sale securities - - - - — (3 - {9) - ()
Share of other comprehensive incoms of assacrates - - —_ — — {533) - {533) — (533)
Foreign currency translation differences —_ - —_ - — {1,244) - (1,244) (116} (1,360)
Total other comprehensive income . . -— - L= - -— 2007y = - (2,007) (116} (2,123)
Total comprehenswe income for the year T 1 71,800 65,793 6088 7588l
Transachions with owners recorded directly in equity”
Contributions by and distnbutiens to owners
Warrants exercised (Note 33) —_ —_ 2 —_ —_ — — 2 —_ 2
Expiry of warrants {Note 29 (d}} — {6,879) 6879 — — — — — — —
Final dedend for 2009 (Note 14} - - — - — - (9,537) (9,537} — {9.537) [
tnterim dividend for 2010 (Note 14) - - - — —_ - {6,936)  (6936) - {6,936) j o
Appropristion {Note (4) ang (b)) - — - 6,680 20,000 - (26,680) - - -
Transfer from retained sarnings to ather raserve — — — — — 1,672 {1,672) - — —_ j
Transfer from other reservas to capital resarve - {8,310} - — — 8,310 — —_ - — }
Cansideration for the Acquisition of SSI {Note 1) = - - — — (13,177) - (13,177) — (13177)
Distribution to Sinopec Group Campany — (29) — — — - - {29) — {29) : |
Distributions by substdiaries ta nen controlling ‘
Interasts net of contributians — — — - — —_ — _ (643) (643) N
Total contrutions by and distributions toowners — — " (15218) 688l 6880 20000 (319%) (4 825) (9877)  (643)  (0320)
Changes in ownership interasts in subsidiaries that T
dp not resuit «n a loss of control £
Acquisitions of nan contrelling interests of { '
_Subsignies - () - - = = = ) I )]
Total transactions with owners . - (15227) 6881 6680 20000 (3195) (44,825) (29,686) {643)  {30,329)
Realisation of deterred tax on lease prepayments _ . - .- = - o= g . _ 8 L - . -
Others (Note(f)) L = - = - = l35 (1,325 = = =
Batance at 31 December 2010 86,702 (33,138) 24,553 54,711 87,000 882 197,937 419,047 31,321 450,368
Notes

{2) According to the Company®s Articles of Association the Company 13 reguired to transfer 10% of its net profit in accordance with the PRC accounting policies adopted by the
Group to statutory surplus reserve In the event that the reserve balance reaches 50, of the registered capital no transier 1s needed The transier ta this reserve must be
made bafare distribution of a dividend to shareholders Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good previous years' losses If any and may be converted into share
capatal by the issus of new shares ta shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them provided
that the balance after such 1ssue 18 not less than 25% of the registered capital

During the year ended 31 December 2010 the Company transferred RMB & 680 mulkign (2009 RMB 4 853 mullien) being 10%, of the current year s net profit determuned
in accardance with the PRC accounting policies complying with “Interpretation ot Accounting Standards for Business Entarprises ("ASBE™)" to this reserve

(b

=4

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the directars authorised the transfer of RMB 20,000 million (2009 RME 20 000 million}, subjact to the sharehsiders' approval at the
Annual General Meeting to the discretionary surplus reserve Tha usage of the discretionary surplus raserve 1s sirrular 1o that of statutory surplus reserve.

{c) Accorging to the Company's Articles of Association the amount of retained earnings avalable for distrsbution to equity sharehaolders of the Company (s the lower of the
amount determined 0 accordance with the accounting pahicies complying with ASBE and the ameunt determined in accordance with the accounting palicres complying with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS®) At 31 December 2010 the amount of retained earmings available for distnibution was RMB 112,921 million (2009
RMB 81,772 mulkon), being the amaount determined in accordence with the accounting pohcies complying wath [FRS Final dividend for the year ended 3] December 2010

of RMB 11,271 rmiliion {2009 RMB 9 537 mulhan) proposed after the halance sheet date has not been recogmsed as a hability at the balance sheet date

—

(d) The capital reserve represents (i) the difference between the total amount of the par value of shares issued and the amount of the net assets transierred from Sincpec Group
Company in connection with the Rearganisation () the difterence between the considerations paid over the amount of the net assets of entities and related operations
acquired from Sinopec Group Company ang non controliing interests

(e} The application of the share premium account s governed by Sections 168 and 163 of the PRC Company Law

(f} During the year ended 31 Decernber 2010 the Group transferred RMB1 325 mullion (2009 RMB nul) from retained earnings to other reserves being the net balance of the
reserve for the safety production fund determined according to relevant PRC regulations

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2010
{Amounts in milliens)

2010
RMB

Net cash generated from operating activities . . (@) ) 170,333 165,513
Inveshing activities
Capital expenditure {106,371) (107.487)
Exploratery wells expendifure (7.392) (8,708)
Purchase of investments, investments in associates
and investments in jointly controlled entities {11,310) (3,240)
Proceeds from disposal of investments and investments in associates 1,687 504
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 16,126 504
Purchase of time deposits with financtal institutions (3,522) (2,.304)
Proceeds from matunty of time deposits with financial institutions 3626 1.820
tnterest receved 660 277
Investrment and drvidend income received 1,335 1,133
Payments for dervative financial instruments (5.273) (3,197)
Proceeds from dervative financial instruments 4,646 3,253
Net cash used in investing activities A o (105,788) (117,355)
Financing activities
Proceeds of 1ssuance of corporate bonds 21,000 61,000
Proceeds of 1ssuance of shareholders 2 -
Proceeds from bank and other loans 663,491 781,212
Repayments of corporate bonds {31,000} {15,000)
Repayments of bank and other loans (672,804) (850,683)
Distributions by substdiaries ta non controliing interests (1,051) {858)
Contributions (o subsidiaries fram non-controlling interests 408 714
Acquisitions of non controlling interests of subsidaries —_ (213)
Dmvidend paid {16,391) {13.559)
Interest paid (6739) {7.762)
Distributions to Sinepec Group Company {13,210y {1,262)
Net cash used in flnancing activitles e . e . (56,284) = (46411
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B,251 1,747
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 8,782 7,040
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes {25) {5)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 17.008 8,782

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2010
(Amounts in millions)

{a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated from operating activities

2010 2009
RMB RME

Operating activities

Profit before taxation 103 693 86,604
Adjustments for
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 59,223 54 016
Dry hole costs 4,986 4,761
Share of profits lass losses from associates and jointly controlled entities (5,390) (2,997)
investment income (273) (374)
Interest income {660) (277
Interest expense 7.972 7.609
Unrealised gain on foreign currency exchange rate
changes and derwvatve financial instruments {438) (81)
Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment, net {253) (211)
Impairment losses on long lived assats 14,477 7,285
Unreahsed loss on embedded derwvative component of the Convertible Bonds 127 218
183,464 156,553
Increase in trade accounts recewvable {16 500) (13.487)
(Increase)/decrease n bills receivable (13,840) 1,568 _
Increase in inventories {14,815) {45,606)
{Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets {7.062) 13,989
Increase in lease prepayments {3.226) (5,073) !
Decrease in lang term prepayments and other assets 2,831 4,378
Increase in trade sccounts payable 35,765 40,943 }
(Decrease)/increase in hills payable (19,293) 4,353 ‘
Increase in accrued expenses and other payables 37,318 13,417 l
{Decrease)/increase tn other habiities (147) 503 : i
184,491 171,558 ‘ ‘
Income tax paid (14,158) (6,045)
Net cash generated from aperating activities 170,333 165,513 !

The notes on pages 148 to 194 form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, ORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Principal activities

China Petroleum & Chemical Corparation (the “Company”) 15 an energy and chermical company that through its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”™), engages in ol and gas and chemical operations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") O:l and gas operations
consist of exploring for, developing and producing crude 01l and natural gas, transporting crude ol and natural gas by ptpelines, refining crude o4 into
fimshed petroleum products and marketing crude oil, natural gas and refined petroleum products Chemucal operations include the manutacture and
marketing of a wide range of chemcals for industnal uses

Organisation

The Company was established in the PRC on 25 February 2000 as a joint stock hrmited company as part of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation™) of
China Petrochemical Corporation {“Sinepec Group Company™), the ultimate holding company of the Group and a mimistry level enterprise under the
direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC Prior to the incorporation of the Company, the o1l and gas and chemical eperations of the Group
were carried on by oIl administration bureaux, petrochemical and refining production enterprises and sales and marketing companies of Sinopec
Group Company

As part ot the Reorganisation, certain of Sinopec Group Company’s core o1l and gas and chemical operations and businasses together with the related
assets and liabilities were transferred to the Company On 25 February 2000 in consideration for Sinopec Group Company transferring such oil and gas
and chemical operations and businesses and the related assets and habilities to the Company, the Company 1ssued 68 8 billion domestic state owned
ordinary shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each to Sinopec Group Company The shares issued to Sinopec Group Company on 25 February 2000
represented the entire registered and 1ssued share capital of the Company at that date The oil and gas and chemical operations and businesses
transferred to the Company related to (1) the exploration, development and preduction of crude oil and natural gas, {u) the retining, transportation,
storage and marketing of crude ol and petroleum products, and () the production and sale of chemicals

Basls of preparation

‘ Pursuant to the resolution passed at the Directors’ meeting on 27 March 2009, the Group acguired the entire equity interests of Sinopec Qingdao
| Petrachemical Company Limited and certain storage and distributian operatians {collectively the "Acquired Group”) frem Sinopec Group Company for
! total cash considerations of RMB 771 million (hereinafter referred to as the “Acquisition of the Acquired Group”™)

|

Pursuant to the resclution passed at the Directors’ meeting on 26 March 2010, the Group acquired 55% equity interests of Sonangol Sinopec
International Lirmited (“SSI7) frem Sinopec Oversaas 01l & Gas Limited (“SOOGL™), a subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company, and the sharehalder's
loans of USD 292 mulhon provided by SOOGL to SSI, at a total cash consideration of USD 2 259 mitlion (hereinafter referred to as the "Acquisition of
SS1M)

As the Group, the Acquired Group and SSI are under the common control of Sinopec Group Company, the Acquisition of the Acquired Group and the
Acquisitron of $S) have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financral statements as combination of entities under common control in a
manner similar to a pooling of interests Accordingly, the assets and hiabilities of the Acquired Group and SS1 have been accounted for at historical cost
and the consohdated financial statements of the Company prior to these acquisitions have been restated to include the results of operation and the
assets and lizabihtes of the Acquired Group and SSI on a combeined basis The differences between the total considerations paid over the amounts of
the net assets of the Acquired Group and S5 were RMB 1,551 million and RMB 8,310 million, respectively, which were accounted for as equity
transactions

The financial condition and the results of operation as at and for the year ended 31 December 2009 previously reported by the Group have been
restated to include the results of operations and the assets and habilities of SSI on a combined basis as set cut below

e Group.
as previously “hea Groun.

reported 551 Elrrminaticn
RMB RiviB RMB =5
milliors milliors mtllions mllons

Results of operation for the year ended 31 December 2009

QOperating revenue 1 345,052 10,973 (10,873) 1,345,052

Profit attnibutable to the equity shareholders of the Company 61,760 1,387 — 63,147

Basic earnings per share (RMB) 0712 — — 0728

Diluted earnings per share (RMB} 0708 — — 0724
} Fnancial condition as at 31 December 2009

Current assets 201 280 1,186 {987) 201,479
| Total assets 877,842 21,408 {387) B98,263
| Current lrabilities 313.419 3.489 {887) 315921
| Total Liakihties 478,989 15,445 {887) 493,447
: Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 375,661 3.279 — 378,940

* S50 s0ld its crude ol to the Group The transactions between the Group and the S51 have been eliminated on combmation Al other significant balances and transactans
between the Group and S51 have been ebnunated on combination

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(*IASB") IFRS includes International Accounting Standards (“IAS") and related interpretations These financial statements also cornply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the apphcable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are
set out in Note 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, ORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
The IASB has 1ssued certain new and revised [FRS that are first eflective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company There have
been no significant changes to the accounting policy apphed m these financial statements for the years presented as a result of these developments

The Group has not adopted any new standard or interpretation that s not yet effectiva for the current accounting period (Note 42)

In prior years, investment and dividend income recerved, and interest received and paid were classified as operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash fiows Since 2010, mvestment and dividend income and interest received are classified as investing actvities and interest paid are
classihied as financing activities, in the consolidated statement of cash flows The change s to align the presentation with the Group's financial
statements prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting policies complying with ASBE This change has baen applied retraspectively

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurement of available for sale secuntias (Note
2(k)), securities held for trading (Note 2(k)), dervative financial instruments (Note 2(1) and {m)) and derivative component of the convertible bonds
(Note 2(g)) to their fair values

The preparation of the financi2l statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of pahctes and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dsclosure of contingent assets and ltabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are befieved to be reasonable under the ewrcumstances, the results of which ferm the basis of making the
judgements about the carrying values of assets and habtlities that are not readily apparent fromm other sources Actual results could differ from those 3
estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmised in the period in which
the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that periad, or in the period of the rewision and future periods 1f the revision atfects both current and
future periods

Key assumptions and estimation made by management in the apphcation of IFRS that have significant effact on the financial statements and the major
sources of estimation uncertainty are disclosed In Note 41

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(2) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries, and interest in assoctates and jointly controfled entities

(1) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidharies are those entities contralled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financal
and operating poltcies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included In the consolidated financial statements from the date that control effectively commences
until the date that cantrof effectively ceases

Non controlling interests at the balance sheet date, being the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that are
not awned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly thraugh subsidiaries, are presented in the consohidated balance sheet and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company Non controlling
interests in the resuits of the Group are presented on the face of the consohdated income statement and the consolhdated statement of
comprehensive incorne as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive iIncome for the year between non controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company

In the Company's balance sheet, investments in subsidiarias are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2(n))

The particulars of the Group's principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39

(ii) Associates and jointly controlled entities
An associate 13 an entity, not being a subsidiary 1n which the Group or the Company exercises significant influence over its management
Significant influence 1s the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not contral or joint control
over those policies

A jointly controlled entity 1s an entity which operates under a contractual arrangement between the Group or the Campany and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company and one or more of the other parties share jont contro! over the
econarnic activity of the entity

Investments in assocrates and pointly controlled entities are accounted for in the consclidated financial statements using the equity method
from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases Under the
equity method, the investment 15 initially recorded at cost 2and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (Note 2¢|) and {n))

The Group's share of the post acquisition, post tax results of the investees and any imparrment losses for the year are recogmsed in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group s share of the post acquisition post tax items of the investees' other comprehensive income
15 recogrised in the consolidated statement of caomprehensive income

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates and jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2(n))

149

CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPORATION  Annval Aepart 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

{us) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Inter company balances and transactions and any unrealised gains anising from inter company transactions are ehrminated on consohdation
Unrealised gains ansing from transactions with associates and |ointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the entity Unrealised losses are elimmated 1n the sarme way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment

(b) Translation of foreign currencies
The presentation currency of the Group 15 Renminbi Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Renminb) at the apphcable
rates of exchange gquoted by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC™) prevailing on the transaction dates Foretgn currency monetary assets and
Iiabilities are translated into Renminb: at the PBOC's rates at the balance sheet date

Exchange differences, other than those capitahsed as construction 1n progress, are recognised as income or expense in the “finance costs” section
of the consolidated income statameant

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renmuinbi at the applicable rates quoted by the PBOC prevailing on the transaction dates
Balance sheet items, including goodwill ansing on consolidation of foreign operations are transiated into Renmintn at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the balance sheet date The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity in the
other reserves

On disposal of a foreign eperation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation s reglassified from equity
to the consolidated income statement when the profit or loss on disposal 1s recognised

{c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents consist of time deposits with financial institutions with an imtial term of less than three months when purchased Cash equivalents
are stated at cost, which approximates fair value

(d) Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade, bills and other recevables are inihally recognised at fair vatue and thereafter stated at amortised cost less imparrment losses for bad and
, doubtful debts {Note 2(n)) Trade, bills and other receivables are derecogrised if the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from these
financial assats expire or if the Group transfers these financial assets to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and
rewards of the assets

(e) Inventories
Inventories, other than spare parts and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes the cost of purchase
computed using the weighted average method and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods, direct labour and an appropniate proportion
of production overheads Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
campletion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Spare parts and consumables are stated at cost less any provision for obsolescence

(f) Property, plant and equipment
An itern of property plant and equipment s recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2(n)) The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price, any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition and location for its intended use The
Group recognises in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an itern when that cost 1s
incurred, it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the itern ¢an be measured
reliably All other expenditure is recognised as an expense tn the consolidated income statement in the year in which 1t is incurred

Gains or losses ansing from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment other than oil and gas properties, are
determined as the difference between the net disposal preceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised as income or expense in
the consolidated income statement on the date of retirement or disposal

Depreciation 1s provided to write off the cost amount of items of property, plant and equipment, other than oil and gas properties, over its
estimated useful life on a straight line basts, after talung into account its estimated residual value, as follows

Buildings 15 to 45 years
Plant, machinery equipment, and others 4 to 18 years
Oil depots storage tanks and service stations Bio 25 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the ttem 1s allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part 15 depreciated separately Both the usefu! Irfe of an asset and its residuat value, 1t any, sre reassessed annually
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{g) Oil and gas properties

The Group uses the successful efforts method of accounting for its ol and gas preducing activities Under this method, costs of development wells,
the related support equipment and proved mineral interests in properties are capitalised The cost of exploratory wells s mitially capitalised as
canstruction in progress pending determination of whether the well has tound proved reserves The impairment of exploratory well costs occurs
upon the determmation that the well has not found proved reserves Exploratory wells that find o1l and gas reserves in any area requiring major
capital expenditure are expensed unless the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify its completion as a producing well if the
required capital expenditure 1s made, and drilling of the additional exploratory wells 1s under way or firmly planned for the near future However, in
the absance of a determination of the discovery of proved reserves, exploratory well costs are not carrted as an 2sset for more than one year
following completion of drilling If after one year has passed, a determination of the discovery of proved reserves cannot be made, the exploratory
well costs are impaired and charged to expense All other exploraticn costs, including geological and geaphysical costs, other dry hole costs and
annual lease rentals, are expensed as incurred Capitalised costs relating to proved properties are amortised at the field level on a unit of production
method The amortisation rates are determined based on oil and gas reserves estimated to be recoverable from existing facilities over the shorter
of the economitc lives of crude o1l and natural gas reservoirs and the terms of the relevant production licenses

Gains and losses on the disposal of proved oil and gas properttes are not recognised unless the dispesal encompasses an entire property The
proceeds on such disposals are credited to the carrying amounts of oil and gas properties

Management estimates future dismantlement costs for o1l and gas properties with reference to engineering estimates after taking mto consideration
the anticipated methad of dismantiement required 1n accordance with the iIndustry practices These estimated futura dismantlement costs are
discounted at a credit adjusted risk free rate and are capitalised as ol and gas properties, which are subsequently amortisad as part of the costs
of the o1l and gas properties

{h) Lease prepayments

M

a

—

Lease prepayments represent land use rights patd to the refevant government authorities Land use rights are carried at cost less the accumulated
amount charged to expense and impairment losses {Note 2(n)) The cost of lease prepayments are charged to expense on a straight line basis over
the respective penods of the nghts

Construction In progress

Construction in progress represents buldings, ol and gas properties, various plant and equipment under construction and pending installation
and s stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2(n)) Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest charges, and foreign
exchange differences on related borrowed funds to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest charges, during the periods of
construction

Construction In progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment when the asset 15 substantially ready for its intended use

Mo depreciation 1s provided in respect of construction in progress

Goodwill
Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiarias, associates or jointly controlied entities Goodwill represents the ditference
between the cost of acquisibon and the fair vatue of the net identifiable assets acquired

Prior to 1 January 2008, the acquisition of the non controlling interests of a consohdated subsidiary was accounted for using the acquisition
method whereby the difference between the cost of acquisition and the fair value of the net identifrable assets acguired (on a proportionate share)
was recogrised as goodwill From 1 January 2008, any difference between the amount by which the non controlling interest 1s adjusted (such as
through an acquisition of the non controlling interests) and the cash or other considerations pawd s recogrused in equity

Goodwll is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses Goodwill arising on a business combination 1s allocated to cash generating units, or
groups of cash generating units, that 15 expected to benehit the synergies of the combination and 1s tested annually for impairment (Note 2{n)) In
respect of associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill 15 included n the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate or jointly controlled entity and the investment as a whole 1s tested for impairment whenever there 1s objective evidence of impairment
(Note 2(n})

(k) Investments

m

investments in available for sale securities are carried at far value with any change in fair value recognised in other ¢comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity 1n other reserves When these investments are derecognised or impaired, the curmulative gain or loss Is reclassified
from equity to the consofidated income statement Investments in equity securities, other than investments 1n associates and jontly controlted
entities, that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less impairment losses {(Note 2(n))

Investrnents in securities held for trading are classified as current assets Any attributable transaction costs are recogrised in the consalidated
income statement as incurred At each balance sheet date, the fair value 1s remeasured with any resultant gain or loss being recogrused in the
consolidated income statement

Derwative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recogmised initially at fair value At each balance sheet date the fair value 1s remeasured The gain or loss on re
measurement to fair value is recogmised immediately in the consolidated income statement, except where the denvatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or the hedge of the net investment in a foreign aperation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature
of the item being hedged (Note 2(m))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)Hedging

0]

)

()

152

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument 15 designated as a hedge of the variability In cash flows of 2 recogrised asset or liability or a highly
probable farecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of 2 committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses on re
measurement of the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised in other camprehensive income and accurmnulated separately in
equity in other reserves The ineffective portion of any gan or loss 1s recognised iImmed ately in the consolidated income statemnent

It a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognitron of a non hnancial asset or non financial hability the associated gain
or loss ts reclassified fram equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the nan financial asset or habihity

1 a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the recogrition of a financial asset or a financial hability, the associated gam or loss
1s reclassified from equity to the consolidated income statement in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects the consolidated income staternent (such as when interest income or expense is recognisad)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss 1s reclassified from equity to
the conschdated income statement :n the same penad or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the consolidated income
statement

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge refationship but the hedged
forecast transaction 1s still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in eguity until the transact:on occurs and it 1s
recogmsed in accordance with the abave policy If the hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or
loss 1s reclassified from equity to the consohdated income statement immediately

(i) Hedge of net investments in foreign operations

The portran of the gain or loss on re measurement ta fair value of an mstrument used to hadge a net investment in a foreign operation that 15
determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately i equity in the exchange reserve
until the dispasal of the foreign operation, at which time the cumnulative gain or loss 15 reclassified from equity to the consohdated ingome
statement The ineffective partian s recognised tmmedsately 1n the consolidated income staternent

(n) Impairment of assets

Trade accounts receivable, other recevables and investment in equity securities that do not have an quoted market price in an active market are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 15 objective evidence of impairment If any such endence exists, an impairment
loss 15 determined and recogrised

The impairment loss s measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting 1s material, and 1s recognised as an expense in the
consohdated income statement [mpairment losses for trade and other recevables are reversed through the income staternent if in a subsequent
period the amount of the impairment losses decreases Impairment losses for aquity securities carried &t cost are not reversed

For investments in associates and Jaintly controlled entities accounted under the equity method (Note 2(a)(u)), the impairment loss 1s measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment as a whole with its carrying amount in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Nate 2(n){n) The impairment loss s reversed if there has baen a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with the accounting policy set out 1in Note 2(n)(1)

Impairment of other long lived assets 1s accounted as follows

The carrying amounts of other long lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, construction in progress, lease prepayments, investments
in associates and jointly controlled entities and other assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indicators that the assets may
be impaired These assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that thewr recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable When such a dechine has accurred, the carrying amount 1s reduced ta the recoverable amount For goodwill, the
recoverable amount 1 estimated at each balance sheet date

The recoverable amount 1s the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use In determining the value in use expected future
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely iIndependent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (1 e a cash
generating unit)

The amount of the reduction 1s recogmised as an expense in the consohdated incame statement Impatrment losses recognised in respect of
cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any gocdwill allocated to the cash generating unit and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
indvidual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, If determnabte

Management assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s any indication that an impairment loss recognised for a long lived asset,
except in the case of goodwill, in priar years may no langer exist An impairment loss 1s reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
eshimates used to determne the recoverable amount A subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset when the circumstances
and events that led to the write down or write off cease to exist, 1s recognised as an income The reversal 1s reduced by the amount that would
have been recognised as depreciation had the write down or write off not occurred An impairment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

tor the year ended 21 December 2010

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Trade, bills and other payables
Trade, bills 2nd other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost

(p) Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest bearing borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs Subsequent to imtial recognition interest
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cast and redemption value being recognised in the consolidatad
income statement over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method

(q) Convertible bonds

(1) Convertible bonds that contain an equity component
Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the halder, where the number of shares that would be 1ssued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that would be received at that time de not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instrurnents that contain both a lability compeonent and an eguity component

At initial recognition, the lrability component of the convertible bonds 1s measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar fizbwities that do not have a conversron
option Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the hability component ts recognised as the equity component Transactron
costs that relate to the issuance of the convertible bonds are allocated to the hability and equity components in propartion to the allacation of
proceeds

The habihity component 1$ subsequently carried at amortised cost The interest expense on the Liability compenent 1s calculated using the
effective interast method The equity component I1s recogrised in the capital reserve until the bond 1s converted or redeemed

If the bond Is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of conversion, I8
transferred to share capital and share premium as consideratton for the shares issued If the bond 15 redeemed, the capital reserve is transferrad
to retained earnings

{11) Other convertible bonds
Convertible bands issued with a cash settlement option and other embedded derivative features are accounted for as compound financial
instruments that contain a liability component and a derivative component

At imitial recogrition, the derivative component of the convertible bonds 1s measured at fair value Any excess of proceeds over the amount
imhally recogrised as the derivative component 1$ recognised as the hability component Transaction casts that relate to the 1ssuance of the
convertible bonds are allacated to the liability and derivative components in proportion to the allocation of procseds The portion of the
transaction costs relating to the hability compaonent 15 recognised imtially as part of the habihty The portion relating to the derivative component
1s recognised immediately as an expense in the consolidated income statement

The derwative component 15 subsequently remeasured at each balance sheet date and any gans or losses ansing from change in the fair value
are recognised in the consohdated income statement The llability component is subsequently carried at amortisad cost until extinguished on
conversion or redemption The interest expense recognised n the consolidated income statement on the liabihity component 1s calculated using
the effective interest method Both the hability and the related denvative components are presented together for financiat statements reporting
purposes

If the convertible bonds are converted, the carrying amounts of the derwvative and Liability components are transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares 1ssued If the convertible bonds are redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the
carrying amounts of both components s recognised in the consolidated income statement

{r) Provisions and contingent ltabahity
A provision 1s recogrased for hability of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, 1t is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a rehable estimate can be made

When it 1s not probable that an outflow of econonuc benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation s disclosed
as a contingent hatiiity uniess the probabiity of outflow of economic benefits 1s remote Possible obhigations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or mere future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the prebability of
outflow of economic benefits 1s remote

Provisions for future dismantlement costs are imhially recognised based on the present value of the future costs expected to be incurred in raspect
of the Group's expected dismantlernent and abandonment costs at the end of related oil and gas exploration and development activities Any
subsequent change in the present value of the estimated costs othar than the change due to passage of time which s regarded as interest cost, 1s
refiected as an adjustment to the provision and o1l and gas properties

A provision for onerous contracts 1s recognised when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract The pravision 1s measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

{s) Revenue recognition
Revenues assoctated with the sale of crude oil, natural gas, petroleurn and chemical products and ancillary materials are recorded when the
customer accepts the goads and the stgnificant risks and rewards of cwnership and title have been transferred to the buyer Revenue from the
rendering of services Is recognised in the consolidated income statement upon performance of the services No revenue 1s recognised If there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, the possible return of goods, or when the amount of revenue and the costs
mcurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction cannot be measured rehably

interest income 15 recognised on a time apportioned basis that takes into account the effective yield on the asset

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation far expenses or losses already incurred with no future retated costs 15 recogmsed as
income n the period in which it becomes recewable

{t) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed In the consclidated income statement in the period in which they are incurred, except to the axtent that they are
capitalised as being attributable to the construction of an asset which necessarily takes a period of time to get ready for its intended use

(u) Repairs and maintenance expenditure
Repairs and maintenance expenditure 1s expensed as incurred

(v) Environmental expenditures
Environmental expenditures that relate to current ongoing operations or to conditions caused by past aperations are expensed as incurred

Liabilities related to future remediation costs are recorded when environmental assessments and/or cleanups are probable and the costs can be
reasonably estimated As facts concerning environmental contingencies become known to the Group, the Group reassesses 1ts posihon both with
respect to accrued hiabihities and other potential exposures

: {w)Research and development expense
i Research and development expenditures are expensed in the period tn which they are incurred Research and development expense amounted to
| RMB 4,835 rmithion for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009 RMB 3,816 mitlion)

(x) Operating leases
Operating lease payments are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over the pertod of the respective leases

{y) Employee benefits
The contributions payable under the Group’s retirement plans are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement as incurred and
according to the contnbution determined by the plans Further information 1s set out in Note 37

Termunation benefits, such as employee reduction expenses, are recogmised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commuts itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal! plan which 15 without realistic
possibility of withdrawal

(z) Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax Current tax 1s calculated on taxable iIncome by applying the applicable tax rates Deferred tax 1s
provided using the balance sheat liability method on all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financiat
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the assets can be utilised Deferred tax 1s calculated on the basis of the enacted tax rates or substantially enacted tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the asset 1s realised or the hability 15 settied The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates 1s charged
or credited to the consolidated income statement, except for the effect of a change n tax rats on the carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
hatahities which were previously ¢harged or credited to other comprehensive income or directly in equity

The tax value of losses expected to be available for utilisation against future taxable income 1s set off against the deferred tax habihty within the
same legal tax umit and junsdiction to the extent appropriate, and 1s not availlable for set off against the taxable profit of another legal tax umit The
carrying amount of a deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and i1s reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised

{22) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a hability in the period in which they are declared

{bb)Segment reporting
Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are \dentified from the financial infarmation
provided regularly {o the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of the
Group's vanous hines of business

3 TURNOVER

Turnover represents revenue from the sales of crude oil, natural gas, petroleum and chemical products, net of vatue added tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNTINUED)

far the year ended 31 December 2010

4 OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

The Group

2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milhons
Sale of materials. service and others 36,032 28,749
Rental income 392 388
36,424 29137
5 SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The following itemns are included in selling general and adrministrative expenses
The Graup
2010 2009
RMB millions RMB mullions
Operating {ease charges 10,452 7,564
Auditors' remuneration _audit services 82 84
Impairment losses
- trade accounts receivable 48 70
- other raceivables 308 222
6 PERSONNEL EXPENSES - ”,-]
A

The Group
2010

2009

RMB millions RMB illians

Salaries, wages and other benafits 28,825 24,248
Contributions to retirement schemes (Note 37) 4,847 4,647
33,672 28,895

7 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX

The Group ‘
2010 2009
RMB ~illiong

1wal

RMB millions

Consumptton tax (1) 117,928 110,206
Speciat o1l income levy (1) 19,760 7.145
City construction tax (ur) 11,277 9,212
Education surcharge 6,339 5,043
Resources tax 1318 857
Business tax 567 421

157,189 132 884

Note

{1} The consumphion tax rates on gasoline diesel naphtha solvent ol lubncant ol tuel ol and jet fuel o1l are RMB 1 383 O per tonne RMBE 940 8 per tonne RMB 1 385 0

per tonne RMB 1 282 O per tonine RMB 1 126 O per tonne, RMB B12 O per tonne and RMB 596 B per tonne respectively

{n) Special ol income levy 15 leved on o)l explaration and praduction entities based on the progressive rates ranging frorm 209, to 40, on the partion of the monthly

waighted average sales price of the crude ail produced in the PRG exceeding USD 40 per barre!

{m) City construction tax 15 levied on an entity based on its total armount of value added tax, consumphon tax and business tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

8 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES, NET

The Group

2010 2009

RMB millions EYVEm.llions

Fines, penalties and compensations 69 159

Donations 177 174
Gain on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment, net {253) (211)

Impairment losses on long lived assets (1) 14 477 7,285
Net realised and unrealised losses/(gains) an derwative financial instruments not gqualfied as hedging 55 (82)

Ineffective portion of change in fair value of cash flow hedges (18) 16
Others (902) (431)

13,607 6,910

Note

(1) Tha primary tactor resulting in the exploration and production (*"E&P™) segment impa:rment losses of RMB 3 250 millien (2009 RMB 1,535 million) for the year ended
31 December 2010 that comprised of wmpairment losses of RMB 1 889 mullign (2009 RMB 1 535 mitlion) of property plant and equipment (Note 17) and RMB 1 361
reudlion (2009 RMB mil} of goodwill n respect of Dynarmic (Note 19}, was unsuccessiul development drilling and high operating and development costs for certein small
ol Lields The carrying values of these E&P properties end associated goodwill were written down to respective recoverable amounts which were geterrmined basad on the
present valuas of tha expected future cash flows of tha assets using a pre tax discount rate 15 6% (2009 13 5%) The ol and gas pricing was a factor used in the
deterrmunation of the present values of the expected future cash flows of the assets and had an impact on the recogrmition of the asset and goodwill impairment

Impairment losses racogrised for the chermicals segment were RMB 5,121 million (2009 RMB 3,807 mullion) for the year ended 31 December 2010 that compnsed of
impairment losses of RMB 2 953 rullion (2009 RMB 3 728 million) of property plast and equipment (Note 17) RMB 2 168 million {2009 mil) of gocdwill pnmarﬁy n
‘ respact of Sinopec Qilu (Note 19) and RMB ril {2009 RMB 79 rullion) of other long term assets Impairment losses recogrused for the rehining segment were RMB

4,902 muelhon (2009 RMB 396 mullion) for the year ended 31 December 2010 that comprised of imparrment losses of RMB 1,649 millien (2009 RMB 377 million) of
i property, plant and equipment, RMB 2 737 milhon (2009 nil) of goodwill primarily in respect of Sinopec Yangz: {Note 19) and RMB 516 malhon (2009 RMB 19 rmilhan)
| of construction In progress These impairment losses relate to certain refining and chermicals production facilities that are held for use The carrying values of thess
| facihties and associated goodwill were written down to their recoverable amounts that were pnmanly deterrmined based on the asset held for use model using the presant
value of estrmated future cash flows of the production facilities ussng the pre tax discount rates ranging from 15 29 to 15 9% (2009 11 2% to 12 1%) The primary
factar resulting in the impairment losses on property plant and egquipment of the refining 2nd chemicals segments was due to higher aperating and production costs
caused by the increase in the prices of raw materials that are not expected to be covered through an increase in selling price

Impairment lasses recogrised on long hived assets of the marketing and distnibution segment were RMB 1,183 rmullion (2009 RMB 1 479 million) for the year ended 31
December 2010 that comprised of impairment losses of RMB 1 055 million (2009 RMB 1,425 muthan) and RMB 128 mullion {2009 RMB 54 millien) on property plant
and equipment and construction m progress The impairment losses primanly related to certam service stations and certam construction in progress that wers closed
or abandoned during the year In measuring the amounts of impairment cherges the carrying amounts of these assets were compared to the present value of the
expected tuture cash flows of the assets, as well as information about sales and purchases of sirmilar properties in the same geographic area

9 INTEREST EXPENSE

The Group

2010 2009

RMB millions RMEB millions

Interest expense incurred 8 664 9 783
Less Interest expense capitalised* {1,266) {2,621)

7,398 7,162

Accretion expenses {Note 32} 574 447

Interest expense 7,972 7,609
* Interest rates per annum at which borrewing costs were capitalised for construction in progress 2 0% to 6.59; 30% 10689
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

tor the year ended 31 December 2010

10 TAX EXPENSE

Tax expense in the consolidated incaome statement represents

(1) The provision far PRC current income tax s based on a statutory incomne tax rate of 259, of the assessable income of the Group as determined in accordance with the
relevant incoma tax rules and regulations of the PRC except for cartain entit:as of the Group in the PRC that are taxed at preferential rates of 15% or 229 and the
{foreign aperation in the Republic of Angola (“Angola™) that s taxed at 50% of the assessable ncome as deterrmined in accordance with the relevant ncome tax rules and
regulations of Angola

The Group
2010 2008
RMB millions RME rillions
Current tax
- Provision for the year 22,177 19,229
- Qver provision (n prior years (299) (512)
Deferred taxation {Note 28) 3,811 882
25,689 19,599
Reconciliation between actual income tax expense and the expected income tax at applicable statutory tax rates 15 as follows
Tha Group
2010 2009
RMB millions RMB ~illions

Profit before taxation 103,693 86,604
Expected PRC income tax expense at a statutory tax rate of 25% 25,923 21,651
Tax effect of preferential tax rate (1) {1 525) (1.621)
Effect of income taxes from foreign operations in excess of taxes at the PRC statutory tax rate (1) 2.639 2,006 ! i
Tax effect of non deductible expenses 2,361 326 ]
Tex effect of non taxable income {:.839) {1,686) |
Tax effect of utihsation of previously unrecognised tax losses (1.663) (683)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 92 118 |
Qver provision In prior years (299) {512)
Actual sncome tax expense 25,689 19,599 H

|
Note !

|

|

|

|

|

e ittt
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

11 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERYISORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directars' and supervisars’ emolurments are as follows

Directors’

supervisors’ fee
RMB 000

Salares,
allowances ard
benefits 1m » nd

RME 000

D scrationary
banuses
RMB 000

Retrement
schame
coninbutiong
RYB'000

2010
Total
RiMB 000

Directors
Su Shubn - — — - —
Wang Tianpu — 337 602 28 967
Zhang Jianhua — 337 602 28 967
Wang Zhigang — 337 602 28 967
Dai Houllang — 337 602 28 967
Car Xiyou —_ 337 502 28 967
Zhang Yaocang — — — — —
Cao Yacfeng — — — — —
L1 Chunguang — — - — -
Ltu Yun — — — — —
Independent non-executive directors
Lis Zhongh (resigned on 28 Apr 2010) 100 — — —_ 100
Ye Qing (resigned on 28 Apr 2010) 100 —_ - - 100
L: Deshut 240 —_ —_ —_ 240
Xie Zhongyu 240 — — — 240
Chen Xiaoin 240 — — — 240
Ma Weihua (appointed on 19 May 2010) 140 — — — 140
\ Wu Xiaogen (appointed on 13 May 2010) 140 — — — 140
Supervisors
Wang Zuoran — — — — —
\ Geng Limin — — — — -
Zou Huiping — 202 241 29 472
Su Wensheng (resigned on 28 Apr 2010) — 61 52 g 122
Yu Renming {appotnted on 16 Dec 2010) —_ 16 13 3 32
Cui Guoq! (appointed on 28 Apr 2010) —_ 152 212 19 383
Chang Zhenyong (appomnted on 28 Apr 2010) —_ 134 245 18 398
Liu Xiachong (resigned on 28 Apr 2010) — 61 52 9 122
Zhou Shiltang —_ 202 226 29 457
Chen Mingzheng — 18] 241 58 480
Jiang Zhenying (appointed on 16 Dec 2010) e 14 12 3 29
Independent supervisors
Zhang Youcar 240 — — — 240
L1 Yonggu 240 — — — 240
Total 1,680 2,708 4,304 318 9,010
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for the year ended 31 Degember 2010

11 DIRECTORS' AND SUPERVISORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as follows (Continued)

Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances and Discretionary scheme 2009
suparvisors’ fee benafits 1= x nd bonuses connbubions Total
RiMB 000 RMB Q00 RVB'00C R1B000
Directors
Su Shulin — — — — —
Zhou Yuan (resigned on 22 May 2009) - - — — —
Wang Tanpuy — 320 380 26 726
Zhang Jianhua e 307 338 26 721
Wang Zhigang — 307 388 26 721
Dal Houliang — 307 388 26 721
Cai Xiyou {appointed on 22 May 2009) — 307 388 26 721
Zhang Yaccang (appointed on 22 May 2009) —_ — — — —
Cao Yaofeng (appointed on 22 May 2009) — —_ - — e
L1 Chunguang (appomnted on 22 May 2009) —_ —_ —_ -— -
Liu Yun {appointed on 22 May 2009) - - - - —
Yac Zhongmin (resigned on 22 May 2009) 12 — — — 12
Fan Yifet (rasigned on 22 May 2009} 12 — — — 12 TR “z*
Independent non-executive directors Free
Liu Zhongh 240 — — — 240 *
Ye Qing (appointed on 22 May 2009) 140 — — — 140 '
L1 Deshu 240 — — — 240
Xie Zhongyu (appointed on 22 May 2009) 140 - — — 140
Chen Xiaojin (appointed on 22 May 2009) 140 —_ - —_ 140
Shi Wanpeng (resigned on 22 May 2009) 100 — — _— 100
Supervisors
Wang Zuoran — — — -— — i
Geng Limin — - —_ —_ — |
Zou Huiping — 194 227 26 447 I
Su Wensheng —_ 181 243 26 450 !
Kang Xianzhang — - _— —_ _
Zhang Jitian (resigned on 22 May 2009) o 74 212 — 286
Cut Guoq) (resigned on 22 May 2009) — 80 227 10 317
Ly Zhonghua (resigned on 22 May 2009) — 74 227 9 310
L Xiaohong (apponted on 22 May 2009) — 110 192 16 318
Zhou Shiliang (appointed on 22 May 2009) —_ 114 192 16 322
Chen Mingzheng (appointed on 22 May 2009) - 102 231 54 387
Independent suparvisors
Zhang Youca: 240 — — — 240
L1 Yonggu 240 — — —_ 240
Total 1,504 2477 3,683 287 7,951

12 SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, ali the five highest paid individuals are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 11
13 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consohdated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a profit of RMB 45 892 million (2003 RMB 37,022 million) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

14 DIVIDENDS

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year represent

2010 2009

RMB millions RMB ~ilhons

Dividends declared and paid during the year of RMB 0 08 per share (2009 RMB 0 07 per sharea) 6,936 6,069
Divdends declared after the balance sheet date of RMB 0 13 per share (2009 RMB O 11 per share) 11 271 9537
18.207 15,606

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association and a resolution passed at the Directors’ meating on 20 August 2010, the directors declared an
interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010 of RMB 0 08 (2009 RMB 0 07) per share totalling RMB 6,936 million (2009 RMB 6,069
rulhon) and the dividends were paid on 30 September 2010

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the director s meeting on 25 March 2011, a final dwvidend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 of RMB
0 13 (2009 RMB O 11) per share totalling RMB 11,271 rmullion (2009 RMB 9,537 mullion) was proposed for shareholders approval at the Annual
General Meeting Final dividend of RMB 11,271 mullion (2009 RMB 9,537 miliion) proposed after the balance sheet date has not been recognised as
a habihty at the batance sheet date

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attnibutable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year represent

2014 2009
| RMB millions RMB ~illions
! Final dividends s respect of the previous financial year, approved and patd dunng the year
; of RMB 0 11 per share (2009 RMB 0 09 per share) 9,537 7,803

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting on 18 May 2010, a final dwidend of RMB O 11 per share totalling RMB 9,537
million 11 respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 was declared and paid on 30 June 2010

Pursuant to the shareholders' approval at the Annual General Meating on 22 May 2009 a final dividend of RMB O 09 per share totalling RMB 7,803
million 1n respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 was declared and paid on 30 June 2009

15 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income

2010 2009

Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax Barore-taw  Tax(expense)/ Met-oi-tas

amount benefit amount armount benefif amount

RMB millions RMB millions RMB millians P12 ilhgns RMB mullions RrBrruli ong

Cash flow hedges (263) 42 (221) 635 {11 54
Available for sale securities {9) — () (227 52 {175)

Share of other comprehensive

ncome of associates (533) — (533) 806 —_ 8086
Foreign currency translation differences {1,360} — (1,360) (4) —_ (4)
Other comprehensive income {2,165) 42 (2,123) 640 41 681

(b) Reclassification adjustments relating to components of other comprehensive income

2010 2009

RMB millions RVE m:llions
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments recognised during the year (682) (2 058)
Amounts transterred to imtial carrying armount of hedged items 53 257
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transierred to the cost of inventones for the year 366 1,866
Nat deferred tax benafit /(expense) recognised in other comprehensive income 42 1)
Net movement during the year recogmsed in other comprehensive income {221) 54
Availabie for sale secunties
Changes in fair value recognised during the year {6) {1}
Gatn on disposal transferred to the conschdated income statement [&))] {226)
Net deferred tax benefit recognised in other comprehensive income — 52
Net movement during the year recognised in other comprehensive income {9) {(175)
Share of other comprehensive iIncome of assoclates
Net movement during the year recognised in other comprehensive income (533) 806
Foreign currency translation differences
Net movement during the year recognised in other comprehensive Income {1,360) (4)
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16 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 1s based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Comparny of RMB 71,800 mullion (2009 RMB 63,147 million) and the weighted average number of shares of 86,702,513,472 (2009 86 702,439,000) during the

year

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 15 based on the profit attributable to erdinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB 72,021 milign (2009 RMB 63,523 mithion) and the weighted average number of the shares of 87,789 874,067 (2009
87,78%,799,595) calculated as follows

(1) Proht attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company (diluted)

2010 2009
RMB millions RMEB =~ullions
Profit attnibutable to ordinary equity sharehalders of the Company 71,800 63,147
After tax effect of interest expense (net of exchange gain) of the Convertible Bonds 126 212
After tax effect of unrealised loss on embedded derwative component of the Convertible Bonds 95 164
Profit attributable to ordinary eguity shareholders of the Company (diluted) 72,021 63,523
(i)) Weighted average number of shares (diluted)
2010 2009 I
Number of “wumber &f .
shares shares
Etfect of conversion of tha Convertible Bonds 1 087,360,595 1 087,360 595
Woeighted average number of shares (diluted) at 31 Decermnber 87,789,874 067  87,789,799.595

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2009 excludes the effect of the Warrants (Note 29(d)), since it did
not have any dilutive effect

|
|
Waighted average number of shares at 31 December 86,702,513,472  86,702,43%,000
|
i
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group - by segment

Exploraticn tMarka: ng Corparate
and and and
production Reiining distrisution Chermicals athers Total
BRMB milligns RMB millions  RMB nulhons  RVE mullions RMB rmulligns RMB m i ans
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2009 363,535 179,551 107,657 189,478 8.741 848.962
Additions 2,143 178 693 754 20 3,788
Transferred from construction in progress 653,587 18 291 9 690 15,146 1,170 107,884
Acquisitions (1) 60 999 — — 1,722 2,781
Reclassification — 6.008 214 (6,089) (133) —
Exchange adjustment (24) — {13) — (4) (41)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets —_ — {650) — (16) (666)
Disposals (606) (1.812) (1,511) (4,333) (192) (8,454)
Balance at 31 December 2009 428,695 203,215 116,080 194,956 11,308 954,254
Balance at 1 January 2010 428,695 203.215 116 080 194,956 11,308 954,254
Additions 4,021 123 1100 88 255 5.587
Transferred from construction in progress 67,922 11,922 12 370 22 964 2,872 118,050
Reclassification 343 144 271 (169) {589) —
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity - _ — {290) — (290)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets —_ (39) (451) — {146} {636)
| Exchange adjustment {809) — {103) — (4} {316)
| Disposals {370) {2,980) (2,144) (2.603) {141) {8 238)
; Balance st 31 December 2010 499,802 212,385 127,123 214,946 13,555 1,067,811
! Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2009 177,059 84.976 28 B1S 122 403 3,068 416321
Depreciation charge for the year 28 075 10,212 5,578 8,313 866 53,044
Acquisitians (n) — 591 — — 159 750
Impairment losses for the year (Nate 8 (1)) 1 595 377 1,425 3,728 2 7,133
Reclassification —_ (44) 91 2 (49) P
Exchange adjustment (6) — (3) — {2) {11)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets - - {80) —_ — (80)
Written back on disposals {590) (1,693) (1,346) (3,906) {183) (7,718)
Balance at 31 December 2009 206,133 94,419 34,480 130,540 3,867 469,439
Balance at 1 January 2010 206,133 94,419 34,480 130 540 3,867 469,439
Depreciation charge for the year 31,393 11,227 5,946 8,483 925 57,974
Impairment losses for the year {(Note 8 (1)) 1889 1 649 1,055 2,953 21 7,567
Reclassification 12 (3) 25 (145) 111 —_
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets — (3) (68) el (12) )
Exchange adjustment {218) — (41) — {1) {260)
Written back on disposals {(177) {2,778) (1,953) (2,499 (119} {7,526)
Balance at 31 December 2010 239,032 104 511 39,444 139,332 4,792 527,111
Nat book value
Balance at I January 2009 186.476 94 575 78,842 67,075 5 673 432 641
Balance at 31 December 2009 222 562 108,796 81,600 64,416 7,441 484,815
Balance at 31 December 2010 260,770 107,874 87.679 75,614 8,763 540,700
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Company - by segment

Exploration NMarketing Corporate
and and and
preduction Rehining cistribution Chem.cals athars Total
RMB milhons  RMB millions  RMB rmulliors  RMB milhons  RMB milhons  RMB milbons
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2009 311,041 143,865 84,423 115,869 6,727 661,925
Addtions 2,014 105 573 78 2 2,772
Transferred trom construction in progress 58,100 14,776 6,917 11,322 1,147 92,262
Transferred from subsidiaries — — —— 3,540 —_ 3,540
Transferred to subsidiaries — (235) {B45) (107} — (1,187)
Acquisittons (1) 60 999 — — 1,722 2,781
Reclassification — 5,828 — {5,828} — —
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets -— — {619) — — (619)
Disposals (606) {1,738) (1,425) {3,601) {1486) (7,516)
Balance at 31 December 2009 370.609 163,600 89,024 121,273 9,452 753,958
Balance at 1 January 2010 370,609 163,600 89,024 121,273 9,452 753958 -
Additions 3,908 96 184 21 59 4.268 FI
Transferred from construction in progress 62,683 10,280 8,291 20,934 2,716 104,904 T
Transferred from subsidianes — 112 21 247 - 380 by
Transferred to subsidiaries et {15) {654) (6) (67) (742}
Reclassification 343 142 279 {178) (586) —
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity — — — (290) - {290)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets — (39) (432) — (48) {519
Disposals (369) (2,869) {1,899) (2,055) {105) (7,297 ;
Balance at 31 December 2010 437,174 171,307 94 814 139,946 11,421 854,662 ‘
Accumulated depreciation s }
Balance at 1 January 2009 155,389 74,959 25,409 71,9386 2,260 330,013 P
Depreciation charge for the year 22,053 7,610 4,271 5,462 713 40,109
Transterred from subsidiaries — - — 2,770 —_ 2,770
Transferred to subsidiaries —am (115) (85) (70) — (270)
Acquisitions {11) — 591 e — 159 750
Impairment losses for the year 1,595 288 1,205 3.491 8 6,587
Reclassification —_ 8 —_ (8) — —_—
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets — — (78) —_ —_ {78)
Written back on disposals (590) {1.621) (1.298) (3,249) {144) (6,902)
Balance at 31 Decernber 2009 178,447 81,720 29,424 80,392 2,996 372979
Balance at 1 January 2010 178,447 81,720 29,424 80 392 2,996 372,879
Depreciation charge for the year 25,165 8,580 4,360 5,810 785 44 700
Transferred from subsidiaries —_ 2 1 131 — 134
Transferred to subsidiaries e — (214) — (25) (239)
Impairment losses for the year 1,866 1,638 946 2,484 21 6,945
Reclassification 12 (16) 41 {186) 149 —
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets —_ {3) {68) —_ — {71)
Written back on disposals (176) (2,672) (1,752) {1,954) {102) (6 656)
Balance at 31 December 2010 205,304 9,249 32,738 86,677 3824 417,792
Net book value
Balance at 1 January 2008 155,652 £8 906 59,014 43873 4,467 331912
Balance at 31 December 2009 192162 81,880 59,600 40,881 6,456 380979
Balance at 31 December 2010 231870 82 058 62,076 53,269 7,597 436,870
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group - by asset class

Cil cepots Plant,
storage t&n-s macrinery,
Oil ard gas and service equipment
Buildings properties stations and others Total
RMB milligns RiMB mullions RMB rulhions RMB mullors RMB mill ars
Cost
Balance at 1 tanuary 2009 52 561 317 307 116,766 362,328 848,962
Additions 372 2,022 413 981 3,788
Transterred from construction in progress 6,847 41,213 23,840 35,984 107,884
Acquisitions (n} 1,912 — 342 527 2,781
Reclassificatron {63) — (2,505) 2,568 —
Exchange adjustment {17} (24) — — (41)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets {81) —_ {585) — (666)
Disposals {389) - (1,565) (6.500) (8 454)
Balance at 31 December 2009 61,142 360,518 136,706 395,588 954,254
Balance at 1 January 2010 61 142 360,518 136,706 395,888 954,254
Additions 259 3421 1,023 884 5 587
Transferred from construction in progress 5,150 58 465 17,889 36,546 118,050
Reclassification 996 5 325 {1,326) —_
Contributed to a jointly controlled entity {280) — — - (290)
l Reclassification to lease prepayments
| and other assats {204) — (389) (43) (636)
! Exchange adjustment {33) {809) {22) {52) (916)
Disposals (767) — {1.675) (5 796} (8 238)
! Balance at 31 December 2010 66,253 421,600 153,857 426,101 1,067,811
‘ ! Accumulated depreciation
| Balance at 1 January 2009 27,507 147,320 28,880 212,614 416,321
. Depreciation charge for the year 2,309 25,930 5,936 18,869 53,044
Acguisibians () 213 —_ 292 245 750
Impairment tosses for the year 579 1,653 1,076 3,925 7.133
Reclassification (63) — {505) 568 —
Exchange adjustment (5) (&) _ — {11)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (8) b {72) — (80)
Written back on dispesals {340) — (1,401} (5.877) (7,718)
Balance at 31 December 2009 30,192 174,797 34,206 230,244 469,439
Batance at 1 tanuary 2010 30,192 174,797 34,206 230,244 469,439
Depreciation charge for the year 2,442 28,196 6 857 20,479 57.974
Impairment losses for the year 660 1,789 1,070 4,048 7.567
Reclassitication 263 [5) (14) (240) e
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets —_ —_ (77) (6) (83)
Exchange adjustment (14) (218) (8) {20) {260)
Written back on dispoasals (49%) — {1,533 {5,494) {7,526)
Balance at 31 December 2010 33,044 204,555 40,501 249,011 527,111
Net bock value
Balance at I January 2009 25,054 169,987 87,886 148,714 432,641
Balance at 31 December 2009 30,950 185,721 102,500 165,644 484,815
Balance at 31 December 2010 33,209 217,045 113,356 177,090 540,700
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Company - by asset class

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Ol depots, Plant
storage tanks machinery
Cil and gas and sernice cqu pant
Build ngs praperties stahons and others Total
RMB rmullions RMEBE mithons RMB mithons RMB muillhions RMB mull ons
Cost
Balance at 1 lanuary 2009 35,949 270,651 95,484 259,841 661,925
Additions 141 1,897 389 345 2,772
Transferred from construction in progress 5,598 36,081 22,864 27,719 92,262
Transferred from subsidiaries 351 — — 3,189 3,540
Transterred to subsidianes (67) — (S07) {213) (1,187)
Acguisitions {11} 1,912 — 342 527 2,781
Reclassification (134) — (1,850) 1,984 —
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (82} — (537) — (619)
Disposals (336) — (1.507) {5.673) (7,516)
Balarice at 31 December 2009 43,332 308,629 114,278 287,719 753,958
Balance at 1 January 2010 43 332 308,629 114,278 287,719 753,958
Additions 45 3,310 537 376 4,268
Transferred from construction in progress 4,450 53,423 14,423 32,608 104,904
Transferred from subsidiaries 157 —_ 172 51 380
Transferred to subsidiaries (175) — (485) (72) (742)
Reclassification 689 5 403 (1,097) —
Contributed to a jaintly controlled enlity (290) — — — {290)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (107) — (370) (42) (519)
Disposals (696) — (1.541) {5 060) (7.297)
Balance at 31 December 2010 47,405 365,367 127,407 314,483 854,662
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2009 16,898 127,336 26,163 159,616 330,013
Depreciation charge for the yaar 1,644 20,051 4,732 13,682 40,108
Transferred from subsidiaries 249 —_— —_ 2,521 2,770
Transferred to subsidiaries (26) —_ (187) {57) (270}
Acquisitions (n) 213 —_ 292 245 750
Impairment losses for the ysar 484 1,553 1,028 3,522 6,587
Reclassification 40 — {325) 288 —
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets {11) — {67) — {78}
Written back on disposals {303) — {1,366) (5 233) (6 902)
Balance at 31 December 2009 19,188 148,940 30,270 174,581 372,979
Balance at 1 January 2010 19,188 148,940 30,270 174,581 372,979
Depreciation charge for the year 1,807 22,117 5,444 15,332 44,700
Transferred from subsidianies 31 — 84 19 134
Transferred to subsidiaries (106) — (115) {17) {239)
Impairment losses for the year 634 1,789 957 3,565 6,945
Raclassification 271 (9) 33 {295} —
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assels — — (66) {5) [
Written back on disposals (436) —_ {1,453) {4,767) {6,656)
Balance at 31 December 2010 21,389 172,837 35,153 188,413 417,792
Net book value
Balance at 1 January 2009 19,051 143,315 69 321 100 225 331,912
Balance at 31 December 2009 24,144 159,689 84,008 113,138 380,979
Balance at 31 December 2010 26,016 192,530 92,254 126,070 436,870

Notes

(1) The additions to the explaration and production segment and ol and gas properties of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 Decernber 2010 included RMB
3389 millien (2009 2,013 rullon) and RMB 3,278 million (2009 RMB 1 897 mullion) of the estimated dismantlement costs for site restoration (Note 32)

(1) Dunng the year ended 31 Decemnber 2009 the Group acquired certain property, plant and equipment from Sinapec Group Campany (Note 36)
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18 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The Group
Explaration Marrating Corporate
and and and
praduction Refining distncuaon Chermicals othears Total
RMB muhons RMB milhons  RMB rmillions PV'EB mulliens  =2MB milhons  RMB mtlons
Baltance at 1 January 2009 56,542 18,091 14,302 29,765 3,766 122 466
Additions 58,882 14,600 15 547 25,083 1,379 115,491
Dry hole costs wnitten off (4,761) — — — — {4,761)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment {63,587) (18.291) {9 690) (15,146) (1,170) (107,884)
Raclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (190} (744) (2,773) (1,113) (44) (4,864)
Impairment losses for the year (Note 8 (1)) — (19 (54) —_ —_ {(73)
Balance at 31 December 2009 46,886 13,637 17,332 38,589 3,931 120,375
Balance at 1 January 2010 46,886 13,637 17,332 38,589 39831 120,375
Additions 56,924 19,746 25,017 13,183 1,620 116,490
Transferred to a jointly controlled entity — —_ — (17,459) — (17.459)
Reclagsification — — 219 (219) — -
Dry hole costs written off {4,986) — — —_ — (4,986)
Transferred to property plant and equipment {67,922} (11,922 (12,3700 (22,964) (28721 {118,050}
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (528) (270) (2,758) {2,145} (426) (6,127)
Imparment losses for the year (Note 8 (1)) — {(516) {128) — — (644)
Balance at 31 December 2010 30,374 20,675 27,312 8.985 2,253 89,599

As at 31 December 2010, the amount of capitalised cost of exploratory wells included in the Group's construction tn progress related to the exploration
and production segment was RMB 10,652 rmillion (2009 RMB 8,823 million) The geological and geophysical costs paid during the year ended 31
December 2010 were AMB 6,433 million (2009 RMB 5,437 midlion)

The Company
Exploraticn Market.ng Carporate
and and a~d
production Refiming distribution Chermicals others Toial
RME rmullions  RMEB nulions BMB mulions BMB mullions  RME millions  RMB s [l ans
Balance at 1 January 2009 55,878 16,107 10,859 26,620 3 746 113,210
Additions 53,003 11 283 12,029 21,949 1,365 99,629
Dry hole costs wrnitten off (4,761) — — —_— — (4,761)
Transferred to property, plant and equpment {58,100) (14,776) {6,917) (11,322) (1,147) (92 262)
Transferred from a subsidiary —_ —_ —-— 580 — 580
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (188) (260) (2,505) {1,117 {40) (4,110)
Impairment losses for the year — {19) (50) — — (69)
Balance at 31 December 2009 45,832 12,335 13,416 36,710 3,924 112,217
Balance at 1 January 2010 45,832 12,335 13,416 36,710 3,924 112,217
Additions 51,746 17,725 16 281 10,606 1,414 97,772
Transterred to a jointly controlled entity —_ — —_ {17,459 —_ {17.459)
Raclassification — — 219 (219) —_ —
Dry hole costs written ofl {4,986) — —_ —_ —_ {4,986)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment (62,683) (10,280) (8.291) (20,934) (2716) {104,904)
Reclassification to lease prepayments
and other assets (509) {201) (2,008) (2,143) (426) {5 285)
Impairment losses for the year — (516) (9) — — {525)
Balance at 31 December 2010 29,400 19,063 19,610 6,561 2,196 76,830
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19 GOODWILL
“he Group
2010 2009

RMB millions BME8 mullions
Cost
Balance at 1 January 15 463 15 628
Additions 441 241
Disposals (9) (406)
Exchange adjustment (31} —_
Balarnice at 31 December 15,864 15.463
Accumulated impairment losses
Balance at 1 January (1,391) (1,391
Impaiwrment losses for the yvear (6,266) —_
Balance at 31 December (7,657) {1,391)
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 8,207 14,072

Impalrment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill 15 allocated to the following Group's cash generating units

2010 2003 e

RMB millions RMB rrulhions o

Sinopec Beining Yanshan Branch (“Sinopec Yanshan™) 1,157 1,157 1
Sincpec Zhenhat Refining and Chemical Branch {“Sinopec Zhenhai™) 3,952 3,952
Haong Kong service stations 895 926
Swnopec Qilu Branch (“Sinopec Qtiu™) —_ 2,159
Sinopec Yangz) Petrochemical Company Limited (*Sinopec Yangzi™) — 2,737
Sinopec Shengl Ol Field Dynamic Company Limited (*Dynarmic”) — 1,361
Multiple units without individual significant goodwill 2,203 1,780
8,207 14,072

Goodwill represents the excess of the cast of purchase aver the fair value of the underlying assets and hatuhities The recoverable amounts of the above [

]

cash generating units are determined based on value 1n use calculations The caleulations for Sinopec¢ Yanshan, Sinopec Zhenhai, Hong Kong service
stations, Sinopec Qilu and Sinopec Yangzi use cash flow projections based on financral budgets approved by management covering a one year period
and forecast on market supply and demand for the second to the fifth year based on market research performed by an external research institution
Cash flows beyond the five year period are maintained constant The calculation for Dynamic use cash flow projection based on reserve estimation
performed by an external reserve valuer and management expectation on crude oil price The pre tax discount rates range from 15 2% to 16 8% (2009
11 2% to 13 65)

Key assumptions used for the vatue in use calculations for these entities are tha gross margin and sales volume. Management determined the budgeted
gross margin based on the gross margin achieved in the peniod immediately before the budget period and management’s expectation on the future
trend of the prices of crude oil and petrochemical products. The sales volume was based on the production capacity and/or the sales volume in the
period immediately before the budget period, and the forecast on market supply and demand based an market research performed by an external
research wnstitution

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts of the cash generating urits Sinope¢ Quu Sinopec Yangzi and Dynamic, were
determined to be higher than its recoverable amounts The reduction in recoverable amounts of Sinopec Qilu and Sinopee Yangz) was primarily due to
the drop 1n future cash flow projections as a result of intense market competition caused by an increase in future supply of relevant petrochemical
products in the international market The reduction in recoverable amount of Dynamic was a result of unsuccessful devetopment driling in this cash
generating unit The total impairment losses recognised on the goodwill of Sinopec Qilu, Sinopec Yangz and Dynarruc were RMB 6,257 mullion for the
year ended 31 December 2010 Management believes any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions an which the recovarable amounts of
Sinopec Yanshan, Sinopec Zhenhai and Hong Kong service stations are based would not cause carrying amounts of thesa cash generating umts to
exceed their recoverable amounts
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20 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
10
RMB millions

Investments in subsidiaries, at cost

81,686 67,574

Details of the Company’s pringipal subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 are set aut 1n Note 39

21 INTEREST {N ASSOCIATES

The Group
2010
RMEB millions

2008
RWB millions

RMB millions iB mill.ors

Investments in asscciates at cost -_ _

12,160 9,076

Share of net assets 22,815 18,162

22,815 18,162

12,160 9,076

The Group's and the Company’s investments in associates are with companies primanly engaged in the il and gas, petrochermical, and marketing and
distribution operations in the PRC These investrments are individually and in aggregate not material to the Group’s and the Company s financial
condition or results of operations for all penods presented The principal investments in associates all of which are incorporated in the PRC, are as

fallows

Parceniaga

253

Sruliluce

Name gt cimiany

Progizal aztv tes

Sinopec Finance Company Limited Incorporated Registered capital — Prowision of non banking financial services
RMB 8,000.000,000
China Aviation Oil Supply Company Limited Incerporated Registered capital - 2900 Marketing and distribution of
RMB 3,800,000,000 retinad petroleum products
1 Zhonghan Synergetic Energy Incorporated Registered capital 3875 - Manufacturing of coal-chernical products
' Company Limited RMB 3,678,400,000
Shanghai Chermical Industry Park Incorparated Registered capital - 382 Planning, development and operation of the
Dewvelopment Company Limited RMB 2,372,433,000 Chemucal Industry Park in Shanghal,
the PRC
Shanghai Petroleum Campany Limited Incarparated Registared capital 3000 — Exploration and production of erude ol
RMB 900,000,000 and natural gas
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22 INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Investments in jointly controlled entities, at cost

The Group
2010 2005 2010
RMB nalligns RMB millions

— — 9.330

RMB miillions

The Company

2009
RMB millions

6,011

Share of net assets

20,199 13,928 —

20.199 13,928 9.330

65,011

The Group's and the Company's principal interests in jointly controlled entities are primarily engaged in the refining and chemical operatiens in the
PRC as follows

NamE Lt olImpany

Shanghai Secco Petrochemical Incorparated

Registered capital

Manutacturing and distnibutton of

Company Limited USD 901,440,964 petrochamical products
BASF YPC Company Limited Incorporated Registered capital 3000 1000 Manutacturing and aistnbution af
RMB 13,633 770 000 petrachemical products
Fupan Refining and Petrachemical Incorporated Registered capital - 50 00 Manufacturing and distribution of
Company Limited RMB 12,806 000,000 petrochemical products
Sinopec SABIC Tianpin Incorporated Registered capital 5000 _— Manufactunng and distrnbution of

Petrachermical Campany limited

RMB 6,120 000 000

petrochemical products

The Group's effactive interest share of the jointly cantrolled entities’ results of operation, financial condition and cash flows are as follows

2010 2009

RMB millions B mulltansg
Resuits of operation
Operating revenue 61,523 25,141
Expenses (58,344 {23,901)
Net profit 3,179 1,240
Financial condition
Current assets 15,677 9,857
Non current assets 39,274 32,353
Current habilities (11,239) (9,038)
Non current iabilities (23,513) (19,244)
Net assets 20,159 13,928
Cash flows
Net cash generated from operating actmvities 5,800 345
Net cash used in investing activities (10,505) (3,905)
Net cash generated from financing activibies 6.430 3911
Net increase tn cash and cash equivalents 1,725 351

23 INVESTMENTS

Available for sale financial assets

The Group
2010 2009 2010
RMB ~illhians RMB millions

RMB millions

Tha Company

2009
RMEB rmullions

— Equity securities, listed and at quoted market price 52 61 18 25

~ invastment 1n other available for sale security — 700 — —
Investments in equity securities unlisted and at cost 2,207 1,610 1,011 891
2,259 2,371 1,029 918
Less Impairment losses for mvestments (184) (197) {134) (147)
2,075 2,174 895 769

Unhisted nvestments represent the Group's and the Company's interests in PRC privately owned enterprises which are mainly engaged in non ol and

gas activities and operations

The impairment losses relating to investrnents for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to RMB 11 million (2009 RMB 5 million)
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24 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Long term prepayments and other assets primarily represent prepaid rental expenses over one year, computer software, catalysts and operating rights
of service stations.

25 TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2069
RMB millions RA'B mullons RMB millions RME mill o-s
Amounts due from third parties 33,681 27,481 2.293 2 326
Amounts due from subsidiaries — — 9 930 9,509
Amounts due from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiarnies 1,848 697 1 180 494
Amounts due from asscciates and jointly controlted entities 8,886 33% 4,344 187
44,415 28,513 17,747 12,516

Less Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (1,322 (1,921) {1,087) (1,526)
Trade accounts receivable, nat 43,093 26,592 16,660 10,990
Bills recewvable 15,950 2,110 11,093 123
59,043 28,702 27,753 11,113

The ageing analysis of trade accounts and bills recervables (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtiul debts) 15 as follows

ot

The Group The Campany
2010 2009 2010 2C09
RMB milligns RWIB milhons RMB millions RMB mull 0~s
Within one year 58 937 28,525 27,713 10,946
Between one and two years 36 154 15 150
Between two and three years 11 11 17 8
Qver three years ] 12 8 9
59,043 28,702 27,753 11,113

| Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are analysed as follows

| The Group The Cormpany
2010 2009 2010 2209
AMEB millions RYB millions RMB millions RMB null ors
Balance at 1 January 1,921 2,406 1,526 1,983
Impairment losses recognised for the year 48 70 42 65
Reversal of impairment lossas (130) {245) 118) (226)
Written off (517} {310) {363) (296)
Balance at 31 December 1,322 1,921 1,087 1,526

Sales are generally on a cash term Credit 1s generally only available for major customers with well established trading records Amounts due from
Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes are repayable under the same terms

Trade accounts and bills recewables (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts) primarnily represent receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired These recevables relate to a wide range of custamers for whom there 1s no recent history of default

26 INVENTORIES

The Gro.p The Zompany

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB millions RV'E mulhions RMB millions RMB mill o5

Crude o1l and other raw materials 84,428 87,587 56,858 54,326
Work in progress 13,089 11,609 9,393 8,182
Finished goods 55 945 39,737 34,705 24,782
Spare parts and consumables 4,175 3,832 2,908 2,285
157,637 142,765 103,865 89,575
Less Allowance for diminution in value of inventorias {1.091) {1.038) (695) (582)
156,546 141,727 103,170 88,993

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement amounted to RMB 1,542 923 nullion for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009 RMRB 1,033,313 million), which includes the write down of inventones of RMB 1,087 mullion (2009 RMB 401 million) that
primanly related to the refirung and chemicals segments, and the reversal of wnite down of inventories made in prior years of RMB 1,034 mullion
{2009 RMB 8,552 million), that mainly was due to the sales of Inventories The write down of inventories and the reversal of write down of wventories
were recorded in purchased crude oil, products and operating supphes and expenses in the consolidated income statement
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27 PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2008

RMB millions RMB malliong RMB millians RMB mullions

Advances to third parties 937 1,214 695 1167

Amounts due from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 3930 787 686 672

Amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities 2,460 23 2,438 6

Amounts due from subsidiaries —— — 26,210 18,449

Other receivables 858 1181 72 125

Loans and receivables 5,185 3,205 30,101 20,419

Purchase deposits and other assets 4,469 2,320 2559 645
Prepayrments in connection with construction work and

equipment purchases 988 1906 786 1,082

Prepaid value added tax and customs duty 13,072 12,577 10,758 11,086

Financial assets held for trading 2,450 - —_ —_

Available for sale financral assets — 700 — —

Derwvative financial instruments  hedging 148 142 — —

Derwvative finaneial instruments non hedging 188 182 1 3

26,500 21,032 44,205 33,235

28 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are attnbutable to the items detailed in the table below

The Group
Assels Liatilibres Nel balance
2010 2308 2010 2009 2010 2009
| RMB miflions RMB ~thons RMB millions  PMB millians  RMB millions RMB millicns !
Current !
Receivables and inventories 3,507 3,207 — — 3 507 3,207 1
Accruals 1,688 815 = — 1,588 815 '
| Cash flow hedges 31 7 — {18) 31 (1) |
| Nan current
\ Property, plant and egquipment 7,961 5601 {794) {1,178) 7,167 4423
‘ Accelerated depreciation - — (14,142 (8,410) {14,142) {8,410y
\ Tax value of losses carried forward 2,116 3,954 — — 2,116 1,954
Lease prepayments 284 292 — — 284 292
Embedded derivative component
! of the Convertible Bonds — — (64) (96) (64) (96)
i Others 29 99 (a7 (5) 12 94
‘ Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 15,516 13,975 {15,017) (9,707) 499 4,268
j The Company
EY Y Liabiliies Net calance
! 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008
RMB millions RMEB ~rhons RMB millions RMB milions RMB millions RMB mullians
Current
Recevables and inventonies 3084 2,928 —_ —_— 3,084 2,928
Accruals 1,617 811 — —_ 1,617 811
! MNan current
! Property, plant and equipment 6,852 4,803 {35) (429) 6,817 4,374
Accelerated depreciation —_ —_ (7,836) (4,015) (7.,836) (4015)
Lease prepayments 213 219 — — 213 219
Embedded derivative companent
of the Convertible Bonds — — (64) (96) (64) {96)
‘ Others 23 54 (16) {4) 7 50
‘ Deferred tax assets/(Irabilities) 11,789 8,815 (7,951) (4,544) 3,838 4,271
As at 31 December 2010, certain subsidianies of the Company did not recognise the tax value of lass carried forward of RMB 4,215 million (2009
RMB 5,555 million), of which RMB 369 muilion (2009 RMB 472 mullion) was incurred for the year ended 31 December 2010, because 1t was not
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised The tax value of these losses carried forward of RMB 64 mullion, RMB 461 rmullion, RMB 2,933

\ million, RMB 388 million and RMB 369 mullion wil! expire in 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively

‘ Periodically, management performed assessment on the probabihty that taxable profit will be availlable over the period which the deferred tax assets
| can be realised or utibsed In assessing the probability, both positive and negative evidence was considered, including whether it 1s probable that the
\ operations will have future taxable profits over the penods which the deferred tax assets are deductible or utilised and whether the tax losses result
‘ from wdentifiable causes which are unlikely to recur
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28 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows

The Group
Balance Recognised in Recogrised in Balance
at 1 consolidatad other at 31
Jan Lary ncome comprehens ye December
2009 statement mcome Acnuisition 2009
RME mullions RMB millisns RAIB rmullipns RME mull ans RMEB mutl o-s
Current
Recevables and inventories 4,434 {1.227) — — 3,207
Accruals 261 554 — — B15
Cash flow hedges — — (1) — (11)
Non current
Property, plant and equipment 2.605 1,844 —_ (26) 4,423
Accelerated depreciation (7,116) (1,294) —_ — (8,410)
Tax value of losses carried forward 4,796 (842) — — 3,954
Lease prepayments 300 (8) — — 292
Available for sale securities (52) — 52 — —
Embedded derivatve component
of the Convertible Bonds {151) 55 — — (96)
Others 56 36 —_ 2 94
Net deferred tax assets 5,133 (882) 41 (24) 4,268

Racognmised in Recogn sad in Balance
consolidaied ot~er at 31
January 1mcome comprehensive December
2010 siaiemen] ncome 2010
RMB mullions RMB mullions RMB mull 05 RMB millions
Current
Recewvables and inventories 3,207 300 -— 3,507
Accruals 815 773 — 1,588
Cash flow hedges (11) — 42 31
Non current
Property, plant and equipment 4,423 2,744 —_ 7,167
Acceleratad depreciation (8 410) (5 732) —_ {14,142}
Tax value of fosses carried forward 3954 (1 838) — 2,116
Lease prepayments 292 8) — 284
Embedded dernvative component of the Conwvertible Bonds {96) 32 — (64)
Others 94 (B2) — 12
Net deferred tax assets 4,268 (3,811) 42 499
The Company
Rezogn sed Balange at
at 1 January Ininzgme 31 Decamber
2006 statema-t Acquisitior 2506
”MB millions RAB mulhons RiiB mill ors RMB millo-s
Current
Receivables and inventories 3,810 (882) — 2,928
Accruals 252 559 —_ 811
Non current
Property, plant and equipment 2,619 1,781 {26) 4,374
Accelerated depreciation (3,799) {216) — (4,015)
Lease prepayments 224 (5) — 219
Embedded derwative component of the Corvertible Bonds (151) 55 o (96)
Others 50 (2) 2 50
Met deferred tax assels 3,005 1,290 (24) 4,271
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2B DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Contrnued)

29

Batance Recognised in Balance at
at 1 January income 31 December
2010 statement 2010
EME millions FMB millions RMB millions
Current

Recewvables and inventories 2,928 156 3,084
Accruals 811 806 1,617

Non current
Property, plant and equipment 4,374 2 443 6,817
Accelerated depreciation (4,015) (3,821 {7,836)
Lease prepayments 219 (6) 213
Embedded derivative component of the Convertible Bonds (96) 32 {64)
Others 50 (43) 7
Net deferred tax assets 4,271 {433) 3,838

SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBTS AND LOANS FROM SINOPEC GROUP COMPANY AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

Short term debts represent

Third parties’ debts

The Group

2010

RMB millions

2008
RMB = ilhans

The Company

2010
RMB millions

2009
EMB millions

Short term bank loans o 3 11,380 21,587 _ 2400 5050

Current portion of long term bank loans 4,554 6,686 3.952 4,102

Current portion of long term other loans 85 77 7 3

. . 4,639 §,763 3,959 _ 4705

Corparate bands (Note (a))_ L 1,000 31,000 .. _—_ . 30000
j i . 17,019 _ 59,350 6,359 39,755 _

Loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries

Short term loans 17,918 13,313 4,829 678

Current portion of long term loans 891 2,553 150 160
oL o L _ 18,809 15,866 4979 838 _

35,828 75216 11,338 40,593

The Group's and the Company's weighted average nterest rate on short term {oans were 2 7% (2009 2 5%) and 4 8% (2009 4 69%) at 31 December

2010, respectively

L.ong term debts comprise

Third parties’ debts

Interest rate and final maiusity

The Group

2010

RMB millions

2009
RMB ~ultons

The Company

2010
RMB millions

2009
BMEB mullions

Long-term bank loans

Renminbi dengminated

Interest rates ranging from interest
free to 5 649, per annum

at 31 December 2010 wath
matunties through 2025

23,161

18,869

22,886

17,064

Japanese Yen denominated

Interest rates ranging from
2 6% to 2 94% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with
maturities through 2024

1,488

1,660

1,488

1660

US Dollar denorminated

Interest rates ranging from interest
free to 7 8% per annum

at 31 December 2010 with
maturities through 2031

a72

3,171

301

390

Euro denominated

Fixed interest rate at 6 56% per
annum at 31 December 2010 with
maturity in 2011

27

116

27

116

25,648

23,816

24,702 _

~ 19,230
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29 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBTS AND LOANS FROM SINOPEC GROUP COMPANY AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Long-term other loans

and final maturiiy

Interest ra

The Group

2010

RMB millions

2008
RMB mullions

RMB millions

The Company
2010 2009

RMEB mill ors

Renminbi denominated

Interest rates ranging from interest
free to 4 329, at 31 December 2010

with maturities through 2013 250 73 151 5
US Dollar denominated Interest rates ranging from interest
free to 4 89% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with
maturities through 2015 26 29 16 19
N . ) A » 276 102 167 . 24
Corporate bonds
Renminbi denominated Fixed interest rate at 4 61% per
annum at 31 December 2010 with
maturity in February 2014 (Note (b)) 3,500 3,500 3,500 3 500
Fixed interest rate at 4 209% per
annum at 31 December 2010 with
maturity in May 2017 {Note {b}) 5,000 5,000 5,000 5000
Fixed nterest rate at 5 40% per
annum at 31 December 2010 with .
rmaturity in November 2012 (Naote (b)) 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500
Fixed interest rate at 5 68% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with maturity ‘
in November 2017 (Note (b)) 11,500 11,500 11,500 11,500
Fixed interest rate at 2 25% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with maturity
in March 2012 (Note (b)) 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Fixed interest rate at 2 489, per annum
at 31 December 2010 with maturity
in June 2012 {(Note (b)) 20 000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Fixed interest rate at 3 75% per
annum at 31 December 2010 with
maturity in May 2015 (Note (b)) 11,000 — 11 009 —
Fixed interest rate at 4 059, per
annum at 31 Decerber 2010 with
matunty in May 2020 (Note (b)) 9,000 — 5,000 —
A ) 78,500 58,500 78,500 58,500
Convertible bonds
Haong Kong Dollar Zero coupon convertible bonds with
denorminated matunty in April 2014 (Note {c)} 10,667 10,371 10,667 10,371
Renminb) denominated Bonds with Warrants with fixed interest
rate at 0 8% per annum and maturity
in February 2014 (Note (d)} 26,013 24,892 26,013 24,892
o o R o o o e . _. ... 36680 35263 = 36680 . 35,263
Total third parties’ long-term debts 141,104 117,681 140,049 113,017
Lags Current partion (4,639) (6,763) {3,959) {4 708)
. o 136,465 110,918 . 136,090 108,312
Long-term loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries
Renminbi denorminated Interest rates ranging from
interest free to 6 54% per annum
at 31 December 2010 with
matunties through 2020 37 760 37,330 37,617 37,160
US Doltar denominated Fixed interest rates at 0 929 per
annum at 31 December 2010
with maturity in 2011 741 7,030 — —
Less Current portion (891) {2,553) {150} (160}
" o . B e _ 37,610 _ . . 41,807 = 37467 . 37,000
174,075 152,725 173,557 145,312

Short term and long term debts and feans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianies, other than Convertible Bonds (Nate (¢)), are primarily
unsecured and carried at amortised cost
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29 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBTS AND LOANS FROM SINOPEC GROUP COMPANY AND FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (Continved)
Notes

(a) A subsidiary of the Company 1ssued 330 day corparate bonds of face value RMB 1 billion to corporate investors in the PRC debenture market on 3 April 2009 at par value
of RMB3 100 The effective yield of the 330 day corporate bonds 1s 2 059, per annum The subsidiary redeemed the corperate bonds in March 2010

The Company 1ssued ane year corporate bands of face value RMB 15 billion ta carparate investors in the PRC cebanture market on 16 July 2009 at par value of RMB 100
The effective yield of the one year corporate bands i1s 1 88% per annum The Company redeemed the corporate bonds in July 2010

The Compary 1ssued ane year corporate bonds of face value RMB 15 billicn to corporate snvestors in the PRC debenture market on ! 2 November 2009 at par value of
RMB 100 The effective yietd of the one year carparate bands 1s 2 30% per annum The Company redesamed the corporate bonds in November 2010

A subsidiary of the Company 15sued one year corporate bonds of face value RMB 1 billion to corporate irvestars in the PRC debenture market on 22 June 2010 at par
value of RMB 100 The effective yield of the one year corporate bonds 18 3 27% per annum The corparate bonds will mature in June 2011

{b} These corporate bonds are guaranteed by Sinopec Group Company

{c} On 24 Apnl 2007, the Gompany 1ssuad zera coupon convertible bonds due 2014 with an aggregate principal amount of HK$11 7 tilhan (the “Corvertible Bonds™) The
hotders can convert the Gonvertible Bonds into shares of the Cornpany frorm 4 Juna 2007 onwards at & price of HK$10 76 per share, subject to adjustment for amongst
other thungs subdmision or consohidation of shares, bonus 1asues, nghts 1ssues capstal distribution change of contral and other events which have a dilutive effect an
the 1ssued share capitel of the Company (the “Conversion component™) Unless prewiously redeemed converted or purchased and cancelled, the Convertible Bonds will
be redeemad on the matunity date at 121 069% of the principal amount The Company has an early redemption aption at any time after 24 Apnl 2011 {subject to certan LT
criteria) (the “Early Redemption Optwon™) and a tash settlement option when the halders exercise their conversion nght (the *Cash Settlement Qption™) The holders also
have an early redemphion option to require the Company to redeerm all or some of the Convertible Bonds on 24 Apri 2011 at an early redemptien amount of 111 5444,
of the principal amount

Ag at 31 December 2010 the carrying amount of the hability component and the dernvative component representing the Conversion component, the Early Redemption ‘
Optian and the Cash Settlernent Option of the Convertible Bonds wera RMB 10 326 million (2009 RMB 10,153 mullion) and RMB 340 mullign (2008 RMB 218 myllign)
raspectively. No conversion of the Convertible Bands has occurred up to 31 December 2010

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the fatr value of the dervative componants of the Corvertible Bonds was calculated using the Black Scholes Model The following are b
the major inputs used in the Black Scholes Madal

2010 2005 -

-

3

Stock price of underlying shares HKD7 44 HKD 6 81 !
Conversion price HKD 10 76 HKD 10 76

Option adiusted spread 125 basis points 150 basis points

Average nsk free rate 146% 087%

Average expected life 1 8 years 2 8 years

Any change in the major inputs inta the Black Scholes Medel will result in changes tn the far value of the denvatwe component The change in the fair value of the
conversion aption from 31 Decernber 2009 to 31 December 2010 resultad 1n an unrealrsed loss of RMB 127 mullion (2009 RMB 218 million) which has been recorded
in the “finance casts” section of the consehidated income staternent for the year ended 31 December 2010

The imbial carrying ameunt of the Liabikty compeonent of the Convertible Sonds (s the residual amount which is after deducting the allocated 1ssuance cost of the
Convertible Bonds relating to the labihity component and the fair value of the dervative component as at 24 Apnl 2007 Interest expense 13 calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 4 19% to the adyusted hability companent Should the aloresaid derivative components nat baen separated out
and the entire Convertible Bonds been considered as the labiity component the effective interest rate would have been 3 039,

{d) On 26€ February 2008 the Company 1ssued bands with stock warrants due 2014 with an aggregats principal amount of RMB 30 bilhon in the PRC (the "Bonds with
Warrants™) The Bonds with Warrants which hear s fixad intarest rate of 0 8B0%, per annum payable annually were issued at par value of RMB 100 The Bonds with
Warrants sre guaranteed by Sinapec Group Company. Every ten Bonds with Warrants are entitled to warrants to subscnbs 50 5 A shares of the Company The warrants
were exartisable during the five trading days between 25 February and 3 March 2010

Dunng the year endad 31 December 2010, 188,292 units of warrants were exercised at an exercise price of RMB 19 15 per share and the remaining warrants were
expired

The initial recogrition ¢f the hability component of the Bond with Warrants 15 measured as the presant value of the future interest and principal payments discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of instial recognition to sirmitar liabilities that do not have & conversion eption (“market interest rate™ interest
expense s calculated using the effective interest method by applying the market interest rate of 5 40% to the liability component Upon the expiry of the warrants, the
amount sitially recognised as the egurty component in capital reserve of RMB 6 879 million was transferred to share prermium
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30 TRADE ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

“he Group The Company
2010 2008 2010 2208
RMB mitlions RVB milhons RMB millions RMB mill o5
Amounts due to third parties 120,224 92 949 37,998 32,887
Amounts duse to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 6,613 2,127 3,465 1,190
Amounts due to associates and jointly controlled entities 5,691 1,686 1,341 731
Amounts due to subsidiaries —_— —_ 44,440 28 259
132,528 96,762 87,244 63,067
Bills payable 3818 23111 2,670 14,084
Trade accounts and hills payahle measured at amortised cost 136,346 119,873 89,914 77,151

The maturities of trade accounts and bills payables are as follows

“he Gro.p The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions RV'B rmulhons RMB millions RME mull ons
Dug within 1 month or on demand 97,358 74,323 52,719 35,225
Due after 1 month but wittun & months 38,864 45,420 37.099 41,855
Dua after 6 months 124 130 96 71
135.346 119,873 89,914 717,151

31 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

| “ne Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
RMB millions RV'B millions RMB millions RMB milt ars
‘ Accrued expenditures 44,113 35,465 40,446 31,226
Advances from third parties 3,336 2.796 2,599 2,437
] Amounts due to Stnopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 9,309 11,979 8,635 9,666
Amounts due to subsidiaries — — 27,009 33,290
{ Others 7.169 6,308 4,975 4 813
. Financial habihties carried at amortised costs 63,927 56,546 83,664 81,432
' Taxes other than income tax 31,827 24,178 25,107 20,291
Receipts in advance 56,261 36,316 49,871 32,632
Derivatve financizl instruments  hedging 907 319 — -
Derivative financial instruments non hedging 556 439 259 171
153,478 117,798 158,901 134,526

32 PROVISIONS

Prowvisions primarily represent provision for future dismantlement costs of o1l and gas properties. The Group has committed to the PRC government to
estabhish certain standardised measures for the dismantlement of 1ts o1l and gas properties by making reference to the industry practices and s
thereafter constructively obligated to take dismantlement measures of 1ts ol and gas properties

Movement of provision of the Group and the Company's obligations for the dismantlement of its o1l and gas properties 1s as follow

“he Gro.p The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009

RMB miilions RY'B mulhions RMB millions RMB rmill oms

Balance at 1 January 11,789 9,547 10,882 8,794
Provision for the year 3,389 2,013 3,278 1,897
Accretion expenses 574 447 533 405
Utilhised {242) (218) {231) (214)
Balance at 31 December 15,510 11,789 14,462 10,882

33 SHARE CAPITAL

The Group and the Compary
2010 2009

RME RMMB
millions milligns

Registered, issued and fully paid

69,922 039,774 listed A shares (2009 69,921,951,000) of RMB 1 00 each 69,922 69,922
16 780 488 000 listed H shares (2009 16,780,488,000) of RMB 1 00 each 16,780 16,780
86,702 86,702

The Company was established on 25 February 2000 with a registered capital of 68 8 billion domestic state owned shares with a par value of RMB 1 Q0
each Such shares were 15sued to Sinopec Group Company tn consideration for the assets and liabilities of the Predecessor Operations transferred to
the Company (Note 1)
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33 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 25 July 2000 and approvals from relevant government authorities, the
Company 1s authorised to increase its share capital to a maximum of 88 3 bithon shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each and offer not more than
19 5 buthon shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each to irvestors outside the PRC. Sinopec Group Company 1s authorised to offer not more than 35
bithon shares of its shareholdings :n the Company to investors autside the PRC The shares sold by Sinopec Group Company to investors outside the
PRC would be converted into H shares

In October 2000, the Company 1ssued 15,102,439,000 H shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each, representing 12,521,864,000 H shares and
25,805,750 Amencan Depositary Shares ("ADSs”™, each representing 100 H shares) at prices of HK$ 1 59 per H share and US$ 20 645 per ADS,
respectively, by way of a global inibial public offering to Hong Kong and overseas investors As part of the global initial public offering 1,678,049,000
domestic state owned ordinary shares of RMB 1 00 each owned by Sinopec Group Company were converted into H shares and sold to Hong Kang and
overseas investors

In July 2001, the Company 1ssued 2 8 billlon domestic listed A shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each at RMB 4 22 by way of a public offering to
natural persons and mstitutional investors in the PRC

On 25 September 2006, the shareholders of listed A shares accepted the proposal offered by the shareholders of state owned A shares whereby the
shareholders of state owned A shares agreed to transfer 2 8 state awned A shares to shareholders of hsted A shares far every 10 listed A shares they
held, in exchange for the approval for the listing of all state owned A shares In October 2006, the 67,121,951,000 domestic state owned A shares
becames listed A shares

On 3 March 2010, the Company 1ssued 88,774 domestic listed A shares with a par value of RMB 1 00 each at RMB 19 15 as a result of exercise of
188,292 warrants entitled to the Bonds with Warrants (Note 29(d)) with a net proceeds of RMB 1,700,022

Capital management

Management optimises the structure of the Group's capital, which comprises of equity and loans In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure
of the Group, management may cause the Company to 1ssue new shares, adjust the capital expenditure plan, sell assets to reduce debt, or adjust the
proportion of short term and long term loans Management monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio, which 15 calculated by dividing long
term loans (excluding current portion), including long term debts and loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsicianies, by the total of
equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and long term loans (excluding current portion), and liability to asset ratio, which 1s calculated
by dividing total habilities by total assets Management's strategy 1s to make appropriate adjustments according to the Group's operating and investment
needs and the changes of market conditions, and to maintain the debt to equity ratio and the hability to asset ratio of the Group at a range considered
reasonable As at 31 December 2010, the debt to equity ratio and the liability to asset ratio of the Group were 29 3% (2009 28 B%) and 54 7% (2009
55 0% ), respectively

|
1
!
All A shares and H shares rank parn passu in all material aspects !
|
i
|

The schedule of the contractual maturities of loans and commitments are disclosed in Notes 29 and 35, respectively

There were no changes in the management’s approach to capital management of the Group during the year Neither the Company nor any of 1ts
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements
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34 RESERVES

The reconcihation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated reserves s set out 1n the consolidated
statement of change in equity Detalls of the change in the Company's individual component of reserves between the beginning and the end of the year
are as follows

Tre Company

2010 2009
RMB millions RMB rull ors
Capital reserve
Balance at 1 January 16,059 17,659
Expiry of warrants (Note 29(d)) (6.879) —
Transfer from other reserves to capital reserve _ (1.551)
Distribution to Sinopec Group Company (29) {49)
Balance at 31 December o . . _9,151 _ 16,059
Share premium
Balance at 1 January 18,072 18,072
Warrants exercised {Note 33} 2 -
Expiry of warrants (Note 29(d)) 6.879 -
Balance at 31 December S, e 24,953 __18,072
Statutory surplus reserve
Balance at 1 January 48,031 43,078
Appropniation 6 680 4,953
Balance at 31 December oo . . e 54,711 .. 48,031
Discretionary surplus reserve
‘ Balance at 1 January 67,000 47,000
! Appropriation 20,000 20,000
i Ba!_a__nce ai__a_:_l Decen_'_\ber ) L N . . R, . B_?.OQC_I . _GT.QQO
| Other reserves
| Balance at 1 January 186 168
Change in fair value of available for sale financial assets, net of detferred tax (9) 24
Realisation of deferred tax on lease prepayments (6) (6)
Transfer from other reserves to capital reserve — 1,551
Consideration paid gver the net assets of the Acquired Group — (1,551)
Others 1,025 —_
Balance at 31 December ~ . . L _1196 _ 186
Retained earnings
Balance at 1 January 91,772 82,147
Profit for the year 65,321 48,444
Final dividend for 2009 {Note 14) (9,537) (7,803)
Interim dividend for 2010 {Note 14) (6,936) {6,069)
Appropriation (26,680) {24,953)
Realisation of deferred tax on lease prepayments [ 6
Qthers (1,025} —
Balance at 31 December =~ _ e e e et 11227 91,772
289,932 241,120

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases land and buildings, service stations and other equipment through non cancellable operating leases Thase operating teases do not
cantain provisions for contingent lease rentals None of the rental agreements contain escalation provisions that may require higher future rental
payments.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the future mimimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows

The Gro.p The Company

2010 200¢ 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milhons RMB millians RMB mill ons

Within ane year 10,555 6,088 10,083 5,988
Between one and two years 9,877 5,905 9641 5861
Between iwo and three years 8,721 5,834 9,459 5,803
Between three and four years 9,634 5,722 9,390 5,694
Between four and {ive years 9,522 5,604 9,297 5,577
Thereafter 224 292 145,338 218,335 145,116

273,601 174 491 266,205 174,039
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Contrwed)

Capital commitments
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, capital cornmitments are as follows

The Group
2010

RMB millions

The Coinpasny
2006 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions

Authortsed and contracted for 138 980 124,403 125,367 119,145
Authonsed but not contracted for 37 450 62,144 35 534 50,539
176,430 186,547 160,901 169,684

These capital commutments relate to oil and gas exploration and development, refining and petrochemical production capacity expansion projects and
the construction of service stabons and ol depots.

Exploration and production licenses

Exploration hicenses for exploration activities are registerad with the Ministry of Land and Resources The maximum term of the Group's exploration
heenses 1s 7 years, and may be renewed twice within 30 days prior to expiration of the original term with each renewal being tor a two year term The
Group 1s obligated to make progressive annual minimum exploratian tnvestment refating to the exploration blocks i respect of which the license is
1ssued The Ministry ef Land and Resources also 1ssues production licenses to the Group on the basis of the reserve reports approved by relevant
authonties. The maximum term of a full production hcense s 30 years unless a spectal dispensation 1s given by the State Council Tha maximum term
of production licenses i1ssued to the Group 15 80 years as a special dispensation was given to the Group by the State Council The Group's production
hicense ts renewable upon application by the Group 30 days prior to expiration

The Group 1s required to make payments of exploration license fees and production right usage fees to the Ministry of Land and Resources annually
which are expensed as incurred Payments incurred were approximately RMB 450 mulhen for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009 RMB 395
mullion)

Estimated future annual payments are as follows

Tre Group and =g Company *
2010 2009 i
RME millions RMB rmulhons Exd
Within one year 118 136 g
Between one and two ysars 181 118 =
Between two and three years 22 21
Between three and four years 23 20
Between four and five years 23 20
Thereafter 645 689
1,013 1,004

Contingent liabilities
At 31 December 2010 and 2009, guarantees given to banks in respect of banking facthties granted to the parties below were as follows

The Group The Campany
2010 2009
RMB millions RMB millions
Jointly controlled entities 7,548 14,815 4,894 9,543
Associates 152 181 43 61
7,700 14,996 4,937 9,604

As at 31 December 2010, the Company and a subsidiary have guaranteed to a jontly controlled entity in relation to the bank loans drawn down by the
jointly controlled entity The guarantees will mature on 31 Daecember 2015

Management monitors the conditions that are subject to the guarantees to 1dentify whether it 1s probable that a loss has occurred, and recognise any
such losses under guarantees when those losses are estimable At 31 December 2010 and 2009, it 15 not probable that the Group will be required to
make payments under the guarantees Thus no hability has been accrued for the Group’s obligation under these guarantee arrangements

Environmental contingencies

Under existing legislation, management believes that there are no probable Liabilities that will have a matenial adverse eftect on the financial positien
or operating results of the Group. The PRC government, however, has maved, and may move further towards more rigorous anforcement of apphcable
taws, and towards the adoptton of more stningent environmental standards Environmental ltabilitres are subject to considerable uncertainties which
aftect management's ability to estimata the ultimate cost of remediation efforts These uncertainties include 1) the exact nature and extent of the
contamination at various sites including, but not limited to refineries, oil hields, service stations, terminals and land development areas, whether
operating, closed or seld, n) the extent of required cleanup efforts ) varying costs of alternative remediation strategies ) changes in environmental
remediation requirements, and v) the «dentification of new remediation sites The amount of such future cost s indeterminable due to such factors as
the unknown magnitude of possible contamination and the unknown timing and extent of the corrective actions that may be required Accordingly, the
outcome of environmental habilities under proposed or future environmental legislation cannot reasonably be estimated at present, 2nd could be
material The Group paid normal routine pollutant discharge fees of approximately RMB 3,880 mullion for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009
RMB 3,196 million)
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Legal contingencies

The Group 15 a defendant in cartain lawsuits as well as the named party n other proceedings ansing 1n the ordinary course of business Management
has assessed the hkehhood of an unfavourabte outcome of such contingencies, lawsuits or other proceedings and believes that any resulting hatalities
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position, operating results or cash flows of the Group.

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability directly or indirectty, to contral or jointty control the party or exercise
signihicant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control Related partias may be indmiduals (being members of key management personnel, sigrmficant shareholders and/or their close farmily members)
or other entities and include entities which are under the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those parties are indwiduals, and
post employment benefit ptans which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of 2ny entity that :s a related party of the Group

(a) Transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries, assoclates and jolntly controlled entities
The Group ts part of a larger group of companies under Sinopec Group Company, which 1s controlled by the PRC government, and has significant
transactions and relationships with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsicharies Because of these relationships, it 15 possibie that the terms
of these transactions are not the same as those that would result from transactions among wholly unrelated parties

The principal related party transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiartes, associates and jointly controlled entities, which were

carried out in the ordinary course of business, are as follows
Nowe 2010 2009
RMB millions RMB nult o-s
Safes of goods 1) 230,883 162,671
Purchases (1) 109,185 £4,548
Transportation and storage (ny 1,407 1,251
Exploration and development services (V) 33,301 31,343
Production related services (v} 10,287 17,603
| Anciliary and social services (1) 3,693 3,329
Operating lease charges {vn) 7 450 4,866
Agency commIission tncome {vin) 65 45
Interest received (1x) 93 38
Interest paid {x) 967 1,186
Net deposits placed with related parties {1x} 3,267 4,640
Net lcans repaid to related parties (x1) 1,254 21928

The amounts set out in the tabie above in respect of the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 represent the relevant costs to the Group and
incame from related parties as determined by the corresponding contracts with the related parties

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no guarantees given to banks by the Group in respect of banlking facihties to Smopec Group Company
and fellow subsicharies Guarantees given to banks by the Group 1n respect of banking facilities to associates and jointly controlled entities are
disclosed in Note 35

The directors of the Company are of the opimon that the above transactions with related parties were conducted in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms or 1n accordance with the agreements governing such transactions, and this has been confirmed by the independent
non executive directors.
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {Continued)

{8) Transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow suhsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities (Continued)
Naotes

(1) Sales of goods represent the sale of crude o1l intermediate petrocherucal products petroleum products and ancillary materials

(n) Purchases represent the purchase of matenals and utibty supplies directly related to the Group s operations such as the procurement of raw and ancillary matenals
and related services supply of water, electricity and gas

(i) Transportation and storage represent the cost for the use of railway road and marine transportation services, pipelines, loading unloading and starage facilibies

(1v} Exploration and development services comprise direct costs incurred in the exploration and development such 22 geophysicat drilling, well testing and well measurement
services

(v) Productien related services represent ancillary services rendered in relation to the Group s operations such as equipment repair and ganeral maintenance, insurance
premium, technical research communications, fire fighting, secunity, product quality testing and analysis information technology, design and engineering constnuction
of oilfield ground facilibies, refineres and chemical plants manufacture of replacement parts and machinery, installation project management and environmental
protection

(v1} Ancillary and sacial services represent expenditures for social welfare and support services such as educational faciities media communication services, samitatian,
accommadation canteens properily maintenance and management services

(vu)Operating lease charges represant the rental patd to Sincpec Group Company for operating leases in respect of land buildings and equipment

{vin) Agency comrmussion income represents commission earnad for asting as an agent i respect of sales of products and purchase ot matenals for certain entities
owned by Sincpec Group Company

(1x) Interest recerved represants intarest received from deposits placed with Stnopec Finance Company Limited and Sinopec Century Bright Capital Investment Lirmitad
finance compames controllad by Sinopec Group Company The applicable interest rate 15 daterrmuned in accordance with the prevailing saving deposit rate The
balance of deposits at 31 December 2010 was RMB 8 603 milhien (2009 RMB 5,336 million)

(x} Interest paid represents interest chargas on the |oans and advances obtained from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries

—_—————

(x1) The Group obtained or repaid lozns from or to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes

|
{
1
In connectrion with the Reorganisation, the Company and Sinopec Group Company entered into a number of agreements under which 1) Sinopec ‘
Group Company will provide goods and products and a range of ancillary, social and supporting services to the Group and 2) the Group will sell
certain goods to Singpec Group Company The terms of these agreements are summarised as follows

(a) The Company has entered into a non exclusive Agreement for Mutual Prowision of Products and Ancillary Services (“Mutual Provision Agreement”)
with Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 in which Sinopec Group Company has agreed to provide the Group with certain
ancillary production services, construction services, information advisory services, supply services and other services and products While each
of Sinopec Group Company and the Company 1s permitted to terminate the Mutual Pravision Agreement upon at least six months notice,
Sinopec Group Company has agreed not to termmnate the agreement if the Group 1s unable to obtamn comparable services from a third party The
pricing pelicy for these services and products provided by Sinopec Group Company to the Group is as follows

ethe government prescribed price,
ewhere there 1s no government prescribed price, the government-guidance price,
swhere there 15 neither a government prescrnibed price nor a government guidance price, the market price or

ewhere none of the above 1s applicable, the price to be agreed between the parties which shall be based on a reasonable cost incurred in
providing such services plus a profit margin not exceeding 6%

(2) The Company has entered into a non exclusive Agreement for Provision of Cultural and Educational, Health Care and Community Serwices with
Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 in which Sinopec Group Company has agreed to provide the Group with certain cultural
educational, health care and community services on the same pricing terms and termination conditions as described in the above Mutual
Provision Agreement

{c) The Company has entered into a senes of lease agreaments with Sinopec Group Company to lease certain land and buildings The Company and
Sinopec Group Company can renegotiate the rental amount every three years for land For the year ended 31 December 2010, the rental amount
1s approximately RMB 6,727 million per annum (2009 RMB 4 225 million) The Company and Sinopec Group Company can renegotiate the
rental amount for binldings every year However such amount cannot exceed the market price as determined by an independent third party The
Group has the option to terminate these leases upon six months notice to Sinopec Group Cornpany

(d) The Company has entered wto agreements with Sinopec Group Company etfective from 1 January 2000 under which the Group has been
granted the right to use certain trademarks, patents, technology and computer software developed by Sinopec Group Company
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2) Transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianies, associates and jointly ¢controlled entities (Continued)
{#)} The Company has entered into 2 service stations franchise agreement with Sinopec Group Company effective from 1 January 2000 under which
its service stations and retail stores would exclusively sell the refined products supplied by the Group

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Directors’ meeting on 26 March 2010, the Group acquired 55% equity interests of SS) from SOOGL, a
subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company, and the sharehoider's loans of USD 292 millions provided by SOOGL to 551, at 2 total cash consideration
of USD 2,259 million (Note 1)

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Directors’ meeting held on 27 March 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of Sinopec
Qingdao Petrochemucal Company Limited and certain storage and distrnibution operations from Sinopec Group Company for total cash considerations
of RMB 771 million (Note 1) In additien, the Group acquired certain operating assets related to the E&P and refining segments from Sinopec
Group Company, for total cash considerations of RMB 1,068 million

Pursuant to the resclutions passed at the Directors’ meeting held on 21 August 2009, the Group acquired certain operating assets related to the
corporate and others business segment from a subsidiary of Sinopec Group Company for total cash considerations of RMB 3,946 million

Amounts due from/to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries, associates and jointfy controlled entities included in the following accounts
captions are summarised as follows

2010 2009
RMB millions RMB mill ars
Trade accounts receivable 10,734 1032
Prepaid expenses and other current assats 3,390 810
Total amounts due from Sincpec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries,
| associates and [ointly controlled entities 14,124 1,842
| Trade accounts payable 12,304 3,813
! Accrued axpenses and other payables 9,309 11,979
} Short term loans and current portion of long term loans from
| Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 18,809 15,866
! Leng term loans excluding current portion from
Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 37,610 41,807
. Tota! amounts due to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries,
associates and joinily controlled entities 78,032 73,465

Amounts due from/to Stnopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries, associates and Jointly controlied entities other than short term loans and
long term loans, bear no interest are unsecured and are repayable th accordance with normal commercial terms The terms and conditions
associated with short term loans and long term loans payable to Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries are set out in Note 29

As at and for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, no indwiduatly sigmificant impairment [osses for bad and doubtful debts werse
recognised in respect of amounts due from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes, associates and jointly controlled entitres

(b) Key management personne! emoluments
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and contralling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly including directars and supervisors of the Group The key management personnel compensations are as follows

2010 2008

RMB 000 RIZ7Q00

Short term employee henefits 8,692 7.664
Retirement scheme contnbutions 318 287
9,010 7,951

Total emoluments are included in “personnel expenses” as disclosed 1n Note 6

(c) Contributions to defined contnibution retirement plans
The Group partictpates in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by municipal and provincial governmants for its staff The details
of the Group’s employee benefits plan are disclosed in Note 37 As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the accrual for the contribution to post
employment benefit plans was not matenal
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

{d) Transactions with other state-controlled entities in the PRC
The Group 15 a state controlled energy and chemical enterprise and operates in an econemic regime currently dominated by entities directly or
indirectly controlled by the PRC government through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organisations (collectively refarred
as “state controlled entities™)

Apart from transactions with Sinopec Group Company and fetlow subsidianes, the Group has transactions with other state controlled entities
include but not imited to the following

ssales and purchase of goods and anctllary materials,
erendering and receving services,

e lease of assets,

edepositing and borrewing money, and

suse of public utiities

These transactions are canducted tn the ordinary course of the Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other entities that are not
state controlled The Group has established procurement palicies, pricing strategy and approval processes for purchases and sales of products and
services which do nat consider or depend on whether the counterparties are state controlled entities or not

Having considered the transactions potentally affected by related party relationships, the Group’s pricing strategy, procurement policies and
approval pracesses, and the information that would be necessary for an understandmg of the potential eect of the related party relationship en
the financial statements, the directors are of the opinion that the following related party transactions raquire disclosure of numeric details -

{I) Transactions with other state-controlled energy and chemical companies
The Group's major domestic supphers of crude ol and refined petroleumn products are China Nattonal Petroleun Corporation and its subsidianes (“CNPC
Group™) and China National Offshore Chi Corporation and i1ts subsidiaries (“CNOOC Group”), which are state centrolled entities B

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of crude oIl purchased by the Group's refining segment from CNPC Group and
CNOOC Group and refined petroleum purchased by the Group's marketing and distnibution segment from CNPC Group was RMB 145,200 ,
milhion {2009 RMB 100,641 rmillion) | 4o

The aggregate amounts due from/to CNPC Group and CNOQC Group included in the following accounts captions are summarised as follows

2010 2009

RMB millions RMB millions

Trade accounts recevable 868 318
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 20 17
Total amounts due from CNPC Group and CNOOC Group 888 335
Trade accounts payable 3,797 3,628
Accrued expenses and other payables 290 351
Total amounts due to CNPC Group and CNOOC Group 4,087 3,989

{n) Transactions with state-controlled banks
The Group deposits its cash with several state controlied banks in the PRC. The Group also obtains short term and long term loans from these banks in
the ordinary course of business The interest rates of the bank deposits and loans are regulated by the PBOC The Group's interest ncome generated
from and interest expense incurred to these state controlled banks in the PRC is as follows

2010 2009
RMB millions RMEB millions
Interest income 153 238
Interest expense 2,736 2,830
The amounts of cash deposited at and loans from state controlled banks in the PRC included in the following accounts captions are summarnised
as follows
2010 2009
RMB millions RMB millions
Cash and cash equivalents 8,617 3046
Time deposits with financial institutions 509 1,235
Total deposits at state-controlled banks in the PRC 9,126 4,282
Short term loans and current portion of long term loans 12 546 23,081
Long term loans excluding current partian of tong term loans 21.094 16,983
Total loans from state-controlled banks in the PRC 33,640 40,064
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLAN

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC the Greup participates in vanous defined contnbution retirement pfans erganised by municipal and
provincial governments for its staff The Group 1s required to make contnibutions to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 18 0% to 23 0% of the
salanes, bonuses and certain allowances of its staff A member of the above plans 1s entitled to a pension equal to a fixed proportion of the salary
prevalling at hus or her retirement date The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with these plans
beyond the annual contributions described above The Group's contributians far the year ended 31 December 2010 were RMB 4,847 mithion (2009
RMB 4,647 milhon)

38 SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information 1s presented tn respect of the Group’s business segments The format is based on the Group's management and internal
reporting structure In view of the fact that the Company and i1ts subsidianies operate mainly in the PRC, no geographical segment information 1s
presented

In a manner consistent with the way in which information 15 reported internatly to the Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has identified the following five reportable segments No operating segments have been
aggregated to torm the following reportable segments

() Exploration and production, which explores and develops oil helds produces crude ol and natural gas and sells such products to the refining
segment of the Group and external customers

(1) Refining which processes and purifies crude oil, that is sourced from the exploration and praduction segment of the Group and external supphers,
and manufactures and selis petroleum products to the chemicals and marketing and distribution segments of the Group and external customers

(im)Marketing and distnibution, which owns and operates o1l depots and service stations in the PRC, and distributes and sells refined petroleum
products (mainly gasoline and diesel) in the PRC through wholasale and retail sales networks

(v)Chemicals, which manufactures and sells petrochemical products, derwative petrochemical products and other chemical products mainly to
external customers

(v) Corporate and others, which largely comprise the trading activities of the import and export companies of the Group and research and development
undertaken by other subsidiaries

The reportable segments are each managed separately because they manufacture and/or distribute d:stinct products with different production processes
and due to their disttnct operating and gross margin characteristics

Group’s chief operating decision maker evaluates the performance and allocates resources to its operating segrments on an operating income basis
without considering the etfects of finance costs or rwestment income Inter segment transfer pricing 1s based on cost plus an appropriate margin, as
specified by the Group's policy

Assets and habilities dedicated to a particular segment's aperations are included in that segment’s total assets and hatikties Segment assets include
all tangible and intang ble assats, except for cash and cash equivalents, time deposits with financial institutions, investments deferred tax assets and
other non current assets Segment hiabilities exclude short term and long term debts, loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsicharies
income tax payable deferred tax habilities and other non current habilities
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38 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Information on the Group’s reportable segments 1 as follows

2010 2009
RMB millions RMB milhans
Turnover
Exploration and production
External sales 35,024 19 342
Inter segment sales 133,691 97 981
e . 188,715 117,323
Refining
External sales 159,858 95,792
Inter segment sales 805,704 603,870
. e L A 965,562 _ 699,662
Marketing and distribution T
External sales 1,032,900 778,417
Inter segment sales 3.258 2,372
e e . . ___103158 _____ 780789
Chemicals
External sales 285,596 192,735
Inter segment sales 35 581 21125
_ I e } 323,177 _ 213,860
Corporate and others
Extarnal salas 363,380 229,629
Inter segment sales 432,415 291,396
L R ~ . . .. 795795 521,025
Elimnation of inter segment sales L . A N L B {1,410,649) _(1,016,744)
Turnover . ~ ) o 1,876,758 . 1,315,915
Other operating revernues C B o T
Exploration and production 18,430 17,485
Refining 65,015 3,808
Marketing and distribution 4,540 2,302
Chemicals 6,445 4,597
Corperate and others 954 844
Other operating revenues L e Lo . v .. 36424 29137
Turnover and other operating revenues 1,913,182 1,345,052
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38 SEGMENT REPORTING (Contrnued)

2010 2009

RMB millions RMB mill:ons
Result
Operating profit/{loss)
By segment
- Exploration and production 47,149 23,894
- Refining 15,855 27,508
— Marketing and distribution 30,760 30,300
- Chemicals 15,037 13,805
- Corporate and cthers (2 342) (2,205)
- Elmination (1 455) {2,603)
Total segment aperating profit = L o A o o 19_5.004 A _9(_),6_99
Share of profits less losses from associates and jointly controlled entities
- Exploratton and production 158 136
- Refining 557 478
- Marketing and distnbution B64 690
— Chemicals 3.211 1,084
- Corporate and others 600 609
Aggrogate share of profits less losses from associates and jointly controlled entities - 5,390 299
Investment income / (loss)
~ Exploration and producticn 2t 1)
- Refining 26 8)
- Marketing and distribution 169 47
& -Chemicals 20 311
-Corporate and others 37 Pl
1 Aggregate investment income o _ _ o a L L _ 3 ..
! Net finance costs B . i L L. L L (6974) _ (7466)
Profit before taxation 103,693 86,604
|
! 2010 2009
J RMB millions RMB mill ors
Assels
Seg t assets
— Exploration and production 305,413 283430
~ Refining 230,925 213,027
— Marketing and distribution 190,368 153,777
— Chemicals 125,586 128,322
- Corperate and others 60,897 60,433
Total segment assets 913,189 838,989
Interest in associates and jointly controlled antities 43,014 32,090
Investments 2,075 2,174
Delerred tax assets 15,516 13,975
Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with financtal institutions 18,140 10,018
Other unallocatad assets 3 220 1,017
Total assets 995,154 898,263
Liabilities
Segment liabilities
— Explaration and production 65 067 57,907
- Refining 51,554 56 277
— Marketing and distribution 76,981 50,540
— Chemicals 33 836 27074
- Corporate and others 75832 56,077
Total segment habilities 303,270 247,875
Short term debts 17,019 59,350
Income tax payable 10,754 3,034
Long term debts 136,465 110918
Loans from Singpec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries 56,419 57,673
Deterred tax habilities 15,017 9,707
Other unallocated habilities 5842 4,890
Total habilities 544 786 493 447
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38 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure 1s the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one year

2019 2009
RMB millions RMB rmillions
Capital expenditure
Exploration and production 52,680 54 272
Refining 20,015 15,468
Marketing and distnibution 26,168 16,283
Chermicals 12,894 25,207
Carporate and others 1 894 1,505
113,651 112,735
Depreciation, depletion and amartisation
Exploratian and production 31,515 28,177
Refining 11,351 10,330
Marketing and distribution 6,489 5,999
Chemicals 8 838 8,574
Corporate and others 1,030 936
59,223 54,016
Impairment losses on long-lived assets —
Exptoration and production 3,250 1,585 5 b
Refining 2,902 396 » R
Marketing and distribution 1,183 1,479 T
Chemicals 5,121 3 807 b
Corporate and cthers 21 8
14,477 7,285
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39 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2010 the following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets and habilities of the
Group

Particulars of
1ssued capital

Percentage

of aquity Principal actwvities

Name of company

{millions)

%

China Petrochemical International Company Limited RMB 1 400 100 00 Trading of petrochemical products and equipments
Sinopec Sales Company Limited RMB 1,700 100 00 Marketing and distribution of refined
petroleumn products
Sincpec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Limited RMB 15,337 100 00 Manufacturing of intermediate petrochermical
products and petroleumn products
Fujian Petrochemical Company Limited (Note) RMB 4,769 50 00 Manufacturing of plastics, intermediate
petrochemical products and petroleumn products
Sinapec Shanghar Petrochemical Company Limited RMB 7,200 55 56 Manufacturing of synthetic fibres, resin and
plastics, intermediate petrochemical
products and petroleum products
Sinapec Kantons Holdings Limited HKD 104 72 34 Trading of crude o1l and petroleurn products
Sinopec Yizheng Chemical Fibre Company Limited (Note) RMB 4,000 4200 Production and sale of polyester chips and
polyester fibres
Sinopec Zhongyuan Petrochemical Company Limited RMB 2,400 93 51 Manufacturing of petrochemical products
Sinopec Shell {(hrangsu) Petroleum Marketing RMB 830 60 00 Marketing and distribution of refined
Company Limited petroleum products
BF Sinopec (Zhejiang) Petrofeum Company Limited RMSB 80O 60 00 Marketing and distribution of refined
petroleum products
Sinopec Qingdao Refining and Chemical RMB 5,000 8500 Manufacturing of intermediate petrochemical
Company Limited products and petroleum products
China International United Petroleum and RMB 3,040 10000 Trading of crude oIl and petrochemical products
Chemical Company Limited
Sinopec Hainan Refining and RMB 3,986 75 00 Manufacturing of intermediate petrochemical
Chemical Company Limited products and petroleum products
Sinapec (Hong Kong) Limited HKD 5,477 100 00 Trading of crude o1l and patrochemical products
Sinopec Senmer (Fujian) Petroleum Limited RMB 1,840 55 00 Marketing and drstribution of refined
petroleum products
Sinopec Qingdao Petrochemical Company Limited RMB 1,595 100 00 Manufacturing of mtermediate petrochemical
products and petroleurn products
Sinopec International Petroleun Explaration RMB 8,000 10000 investment in exploration, production and sales
and Production Limited of petroleum and natural gas
Sinopec Fuel Oil Sales Company Limited RMB 2,200 100 00 Marketing and distribution of refined

petroleum products

Except for Stnopec Kantons Holdings Lirmited and Sinopec (Hong Kong) Limited, which are tncorporated in Bermuda and Hong Kong respectively, all of
the above principal subsidiaries are sncorporated in the PRC All of the above principal subsidiaries are hmited companies

Note The Gompany consolidated the financial statements of the entity because 1t controlled the board of this entity and had the power to govern its

financial and operating polictes
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Overview

Financiat assets of the Group include cash and cash equivalents, time deposits with financial institutions, investmants, trade accounts recewvable, bills
receivable, amounts due from Smnopec Group Company and fellow subsidianes, advances to third parties, amounts due from associates and leintly
controlled entities, derivative ftnancial instruments and other recewvables. Financial habihties of the Group include short term and long term debts
loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries trade accounts payable, bills payable, amounts due to Sinapec Group Company and fellow
subsidiaries, derivative financial instruments and advances from third parties

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
& credit risk

o ltiquidity risk,

& market nsk and

8 equity price rnisk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment, oversight of the Group's nsk management framework, and daveloping and
monitoring the Group's nsk management policies

The Group's nisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk hmits and eontrals, 1
and to monitor nsks and adherence to mits Risk rnanagement palicies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changas in market conditions and
the Group's activities The Group, through its training and management controls and proceduras, aims ta develop a disciphned and constructive control
emvironment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations Internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Group's audit committes.

3
e

-

e — e E

Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the nisk of financial loss to the Group 1f a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obiigations, and
anses principally from the Group's deposits placed with financial institutions and recervables from customers To hmit exposure to credit nisk relating
to depaos:ts, the Group primarily places cash deposits only with large financial institution 1n the PRC with acceptable credit ratings The majority of the
Group’s trade accounts recaivable relate to sales of petroleun and chemical products to related parties and third parties operating in the petroleum
and chermical industries Management performs ongoing credit evalvations of the Group's customers’ financial condition and generally does not
require collateral on trade accounts recewnable The Group matntains sn impairment loss for doubtful accounts and actual losses have been within
management’s expectations No single customer accounted for greater than 109 of total trade accounts recevable The details of the Group's credit
policy and quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group'’s exposure on credit risk for trade recervables are set out In Nota 25

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents time deposits with financial institutions, trade accounts and bills recevables, derivative financial
instruments and other receivables, represent the Group's maximum expaosure to credit risk in relation to financial assets

Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet 1ts financtal obiigations as they fall due The Group's approach in managing liquidity 1s
ta ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group's reputation Management prepares monthly cash flow budget te ensure that the
Group will always have sutficient hquidity to meet its financial obligation as they fall due. The Group arranges and negotiates financing with financial
Institutions and maintains a certain level of standby credit faciities to reduce the Group's hquidity risk

At 31 December 2010, the Group has standby credit facilities with several PRC financial institutions which prowde borrowings up to RMB 167,500
million (2009 RMB 159,500 million) on an unsecured basis, at a weighted average interest rate of 2 61% (2009 3 339%) per annurn At 31 December
2010, the Group's outstanding borrowings under these faciities were RMB 6,622 million (2009 RMB 9,361 million) and were ncluded in short term
debts
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
Liquidity rnisk (Continued)

The following table sets out the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if tlaating, based on prevailing rates current at the
balarce sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company would be required to repay

The Group
2010
Tolal More than 1
contractual Wilhin 1 year bul less Mare than 2

Carrying undiscounted year or on than 2 years hut fess Maore than
amount cash flow demand years than 5 years 5 years
RMB mitlions RMB millions RMB millions RMB miltions RMB millions RMB millions
Short term debts 17,018 17,202 17,202 —_ o —_
Long term debts 136.465 157,394 4,240 46,617 76,737 29,800

Loans from Sinapec Group Company
and fellow subsidiaries 56,419 57 098 19,187 312 2,039 35,560
Trade accounts payable 132 528 132 528 132,528 — — —
Bills payable 3,818 3,818 3,818 — — -_—
Accrued expenses and other payables 65,390 65 390 65,390 — — —
411,639 433430 242,365 46,929 78,776 65,360

2009
Totat More than 1
contractual Within 1 year but less More lhan 2

Carrying  undisczunted year or on than~ 2  yearsoul less Maore than
amazunt cash tlow damand yeurs than 5 years Syears
RMB millons RMB millions RMB millions RME millions RMB mitlhons RMB mullions

Short term debts 59,350 60,298 60,298
Long term dabts 110,918 132,588 3,131 9,118 99,942 20,397
Loans from Sinopec Group Company

and fellow subsidiaries 57,673 58 510 16,398 5,112 1,440 35 560
Trade accounts payable 96 762 96,762 96,762 - — —
Bills payable 23,111 23,114 23,114 — — —
Accrued expenses and other payables 57,304 57,304 57,304 —_ —_ a—

405,118 428,576 257,007 14,230 101,382 55,957

The Company

2010
Total More than 1
contractual Within 1  year but less More than 2

Carrying undiscounted year or on than 2 years but less Maore than
amount cash llow demand years than 5 years 5 years
RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMB millions RMRB millions

Short term debts 6,359 6,475 6,475 — -— -—

Long term debts 136,090 156,985 4,229 46,575 76,427 29,754
Loans from Sinopec Group Company

and fellow subsidiaries 42 446 42,912 5137 305 1,906 35,560

Trade accounts payable 87,244 87,244 87,244 —_ —_ —

Bills payabte 2.670 2,670 2670 — — —

Accrued expenses and other payables 83 923 83,823 83923 — —_ —

358,732 380,209 189,678 46,884 78,333 65,314

2009
Total Mare than 1
contractual Within 2 year but less More tran 2

Carrping undiscounted year ar on than2  yearsbhutless More than

armauni cash flow demand years Lhan 5 years 5 years

RMB il ons RMB millions RMB m lhans RMB mullionsg RMB millions RMB mullions

Short term debts 35,755 40,540 40,540 — — —

Long term debts 108 312 129 851 3,062 6,847 99,626 20,316
Loans from Sinopec Group Company

and fellow subsid:aries 37,838 38,148 926 222 1,440 35,560

Trade accounts payable 63,067 63,067 63,067 — — —

Bills payable 14,084 14,087 14,087 — —_ —

Accrued expenses and other payables 81,603 81 603 81,603 - — —_

344 659 367,296 203,285 7,069 101,066 55,876

Management believes that the Group's current cash on hand, expected cash flows from operations and available standby credit facilities from financial institutions
will be sufficient to meet the Group's working capital requirements and repay its shart term debts and obligations when they become due.
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continved)

Currency risk

Cumrency risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated 0 a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured The
Group's currency risk exposure primaruly relates to short term and long term debts and loans from Singpec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries denominated
in US Dollars, Japanese Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, The Group enters into foreign exchange contracts to manage its currency risk exposure.

Included 1n short term and long term debts and loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidianies of the Group and the Company are the
following amounts denorminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
millions rmillions millions mall ens
Gross exposure arising from loans and borrowings
US Dollars 11SD501 USD1,341 usDag USD60
Japanese Yen JPY18,313 JPY22,500 JPY18,313 JPY22 500
Hong Kong Dollars HKD12,114 HKD11,779 HKD12,114 HKD11,779

A 5 percent strengthening of Renmtnbi agamst the following currencies at 31 December would have increased profit for the year and retained earnings
of the Group by the amounts shown below This analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the foretgn currency balances to which the Group has significant exposure as stated above, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates remam constant The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2009

The Group
2010 2009
RMB millions RMB miflions
US Dollars 124 343
Japanese Yen 56 62
Hong Kong Dollars 400 389

Other than the amounts as disclosed above the amounts of other financial assets and liathities of the Group are substantially denominated in the
functional currency of respective entity within the Group

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk exposure arises pnimarnly from its short term and long term debts Debts bearing interest at vanable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively The interest rates of short term and long term debts,
and loans frem Sinopec Group Company and fellow subsidiaries of the Group are disclosed in Note 29

As at 31 December 20190, 1t 1s ashimated that a genaral increase/decrease of 100 basis points tn vaniable interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s profit for the year and retained earmings by approximately RMB 259 milhon (2009 RMB 266 mllion)
This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and the change was
applted to the Group's debts outstanding at that date with exposure to cash flow interest rate risk The analysis 18 performad on the samea basis for
2008

Commeodity price risk

The Group engages in ol and gas operations and 1s exposed ta commadity price rnisk related to price volatility of crude ot and refined ail products The
tluctuations in prices of crude o1l and refined ol products could have ssgnificant impact on the Group The Group uses derwvative financial instruments,
including commodity futures and swaps, to manage a portion of this risk As at 31 December 2010 the Group had certain commodity contracts of
crude ol and refined ol products designated as qualified cash flow hedges and economic hedges The fair values of these denvative financiat instruments
as at 31 December 2010 are set cut in Notes 27 and 31

As at 31 December 2010, it 1s esttmated that a general increase/decrease of USD 10 per barrel in crude o1l and refined o1l progucts, with all sther
vanables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's profit for the year and retained earnings by approximatety RMB 229 milhien (2009
decrease/increase RMB 215 millton), and decrease/increase the Group's other reserves by approximately RMB 1,066 milkon {2009 increase/decrease
RMB 1,991 million) This sensitivity analysis has been deterrmined assurming that the change in prices had occurred at the balance sheat date and the
change was applied to the Group’s derivative financial instruments at that date with exposure to commodity price risk The analysis was performed on
tha same basis for 2009

Equity price risk

The Group Is exposed to equity price nsk ansing from changes in the Company's own share price to the extent that the Company's own equity
mnstruments underlie the tair values of dervatives of the Group At 31 December 2010, the Group's exposure to equity price risk Is the derivative
ermbedded in the Convertible Bonds 1ssued by the Company as disclosed n Note 29(c)

At 31 December 2010, it1s estimated that an increase of 20% in the Company's awn share price would decrease the Group's prohit for the year and
retained earmings by approximately RMB 218 million (2009 RM8 306 million), a decrease of 20% tn the Company's own share price would increase
the Group's profit for the year and retained earnings by approximately RMB 108 milhon (2009 RMB 156 million) The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in the Company's own share pnce had occurred at the batance sheet date and that all other vaniables remam constant
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
Fair values

() Fwnanciat instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial Instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date across the three levels of the far
value huerarchy defined in [FRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument categonised inits entirety based on the
lowest level of input that s significant to that fair value measurement The levels are defined as follows

e lLevel 1 (highest level) fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for tdentical financial instruments

elevel 2 fair values measured using quoted prices in actwe markets for similar financial instruments or using valuatian techniques in whuch ali
sigmificant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data

slevel 3 (lowast level) fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input 1s not based on observable market data

2010
The Group The Company
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 tevel 3
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
‘ millions milliens millians millions millions ntillions millions
| Assets
, Financial assets held for trading 700 1,750 —_ 2,450 — — — —
! Available for sale financial assets
| — Listed 52 — — 52 18 — — 18
) Derivative fingncial instruments
j ~ Derwative financial assets 113 223 — 336 - 1 — 1
865 1,973 — 2,838 18 1 — 19
Liabilities
Denivative finangial snstruments
— Derwative components of
the Convertible Bonds —_ 340 — 340 — 340 — 340
— Dther derivatve financial habilities 164 1,299 — 1,453 —_ 259 — 259
164 1,639 — 1,803 — 599 — 599
2009
Tre Group The Company
Level | Level 2 tevel 3 Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Leveal 3 Totzl
RME RMB RWE PMB RMEB RME RME RMB
milhons inilligns tmaliions m |l ons rillions millions millions milhens
Assets
Availahle for sale financial assets
— Listed 61 — — 61 25 — — 25
= Unlisted e 1,400 —_ 1,400 — —_ —_ —_
Derivative financial instruments
— Derwvative financial assets 17 307 — 324 — 3 —_ 3
78 1,707 — 1,785 25 3 — 28
Lialities
Derivative financial instruments
- Derwative components of
the Convertible Bonds — 218 — 218 — 218 —_ 218
- Other derivatwe financial liabihties 4 754 — 758 — 171 e 171
4 972 — 976 — 389 — 389

During the year there were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
Fair values (Continued)

(n) Fair values of financial instruments carrnied at other than fair value
The disclosures of the fair value estimates, and their methods and assumptions of the Group's financial iInstruments, are made to comply with the
reguirements of IFRS 7 and |AS 39 and should be read in conjunction with the Group's cansolidated financial statements and related notes The
estimated fawr value amounts have been determined by the Group using market inforration ang valuation rnethodologies considered appropriate.
However, considerable judgement 15 required to interpret market data to develop the estimates of fairr value Accordimgly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realise in a current market exchange The use of different market assumptions
and/or esttmation methodologies may have a matenal effect on the estimated fair value amounts

The fair valugs of the Group's financial instruments (other than long term indebtedness and investments in unquoted equity securities) approximate
their carrying amounts dué to the short term matunty of these instruments The fair values of long term indebtedness are estimated by discounting
future cash flows using current market interest rates offered to the Group that range between 3 87% to 6 14% (2009 4 18% to 5 94%) The
following table presents the carrying amount and fair value of the Group's long term indebtedness other than loans from Sinopec Group Company
and fellow subsidiaries at 31 December 2010 and 2009

2010 2008
RMB millions RMEB mullions

Carrying amount 141,004 115,139 _
Fair value 139,999 114,471

The Group has not developed an internal valuatian model necessary to estimate the fair values of loans from Sinopec Group Company and fellow
subsiciaries as it 1 not considered practicable to estimate their tair values because the cost of obtaining discount and borrowing rates for
comparable barrowings would be excessive based on the Reorganization, the Group's existing capital structure and the terms of the borrowings

Investments in unquoted equity secunities are individually and in the aggregate not maternial to the Group's financial condition or results of
operations There are no listed market prices for such mterests in the PRC and, accordingly, a reasonable estumate of fair value could not be made
without incurning excessive costs The Group intends to hold these unguoted other investments in equity securities for long term purpose

41 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group's financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation
of the financial statements Management bases the assumphions and estimates on historicat experience and on various other assumptions that it
believes to be reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that are not readily apparent from ather sources Qn an on
going basis, management evaluates 1its estimates Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and conditions change

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties atfecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of
reported results to changes in conditrons and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the financial statements The sigmificant
accounting pohicies are set forth in Note 2 Management believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most significant judgerments and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements

Oil and gas properties and reserves

The accounting for the exploration and production s oil and gas activities 1s subject to accounting rutes that are unigue to the a1l and gas industry There
are two methods to account for oIl and gas business actvities, the successful efforts method and the full cost method The Group has elected to use
the successful efforts method The successiul efforts method reflects the volatiity that 1s inherent in exploring for mineral resources in that costs of
unsuccessful exploratary efforts are charged to expense as they are incurred These costs primarily include dry hole costs, seismic costs and other
exploratory costs Under the full cost method, these costs are capitalised and written-off or depreciated over time.

Engineering estimates of the Group’s o1l and gas reserves are inherently imprectse and represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective
judgements invelved in developing such information There are authoritative guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before
estimated o1l and gas reserves can be designated as “proved™ Proved and proved developed reserves estimates are updated at least annually and take
into account recent production and technical infarmation about each fietd In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of proved and proved developed reserves also changes This change 1s considered a change 1n estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a
prospective basis in related deprectation rates.

Future dismantlement costs for ol and gas properties are estimated with reference to engineering estimates after taking into consideration the
anticipated method of dismantlement required in accordance with industry practices in similar geographic area, including estimation of econamuc life
of all and gas properties, technology and price level The present values of thase estimated future dismantlement costs are captalised as ol and gas
properties with equivalent amounts recognised as provision for cismantiement costs

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering estimates, these estimates are used in deternining depreciation expense, impairment expense
and future dismantlement costs Depreciation rates are determined based on estimated proved developed reserve quantities (the denominator) and
capitahised costs of producing properties (the numerator) Producing properties’ capitalised costs are emortised based on the units of ol or gas
produced

193

CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL CORPQORATION  Annual Repart 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

tor the year ended 31 December 2010

41

42

43

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impatrment for long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book value of a long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recogmised in accordance with [AS 36 “Impairment of Assets™ The carrying amounts of long lived assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have dechined below the carrying amounts These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recover able When such a decline has oceurred,
the carrying amount 1s reduced to recoverable amount For goodwill, the recaverable amount 1s estimated annually The recoverable amount rs the
greater of the net selling price and the value in use. It 1s difficult to preeisely estimate selling price because quoted market prices for the Group's assets
or ¢ash generating units are not readily available In determinming the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset or the cash generating
unit are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to level of sale volume, selling price and amount of aperating
costs Management uses all readily avaitable information in determiming an amount that 1s a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sale volumae, selling price and amount of aperating costs

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than oil and gas properties, are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful hives of the assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value Management reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
armount of depreciation expense to be recorded duning any reporting period The useful lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets and take into account anticipated technological changes The depreciation expense for future periods 1s adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates

Impairment for bad and doubtful debis

Management estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the Group s customers to make the required
payments Management bases the estimates on the ageing of the accounts receivable balance customer credit worthiness, and historical write off
experience If the financial candition of the customers were to deteriorate, actual write offs would be higher than estimated

Allowance for dumnution in value of inventories

If the cests of inventories fall betow their net realisable values, an allowance for diminution in value of tnventories 1s recognised Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price n the ordinary course of bustness, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale Management bases the estimates on all available information, including the current market prices of the finished goods and raw
rmaterials, and historical operating costs If the actual selling prices were to be lower or the costs of comptetion were to be higher than estimated, the
actual allowance for diminution in value of inventories could be higher than estimated

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING
PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Up to the date of 1ssue of these financial statements, the IASB has 1ssued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the annual accounting period ended 31 December 2010 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements

Managernent 15 1n the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations 1s expected
to be tn the period of initial application and has so far concluded that the adoption of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations s
unhkely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

In March 2011, the Company 1ssued convertible bonds due 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of RMB 23 billion in the PRC (the “2011
Convertible Bonds") The 2011 Convertible Bonds are 1ssued at par value of RMB 100 with an initial exercise price of RMB 9 73 per share The coupon
interest rate of the 2011 Convertible Bonds per annum payable annually 1s 0 5% far the first year, O 7% for the second year, 1 0% for the third year,
1 3% for the fourth year, 1 89 for the fifth year and 2 0% for the sixth year

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider the parent and ultimate holding company of the Group as at 31 Decermber 2010 1s Sinopec Group Campany, a state owned
enterprise established in the PRC. This entity daes not produce financial statements available for public use
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